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NOTICE

No�ce is hereby given that the For�eth (40th) Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) of the Members of Max 

Heights Infrastructure Limited will be held on Wednesday, the 29th day of September, 2021 at 12: 00 P.M. 

through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) in conformity with the regulatory , 

provisions and circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

ITEM NO. 1 - Adop�on of Financial Statements and Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors

 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (Standalone as well as 

Consolidated) for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021 including the Reports of the 

Board of Directors and Auditors there on.

ITEM NO. 2- Appointment of Mr. Naveen Narang as the director liable to re�re by rota�on

  To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolu�on as an Ordinary Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 152 and other applicable provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Naveen Narang (DIN: 00095708), who re�res by rota�on 

and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment be and is hereby re-appointed as the 

Director of the Company liable to re�re by rota�on.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

ITEM NO. 3- Remunera�on to Mr. Naveen Narang (DIN:00095708), the Managing Director of the 

Company

 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolu�on as an Ordinary Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED that in terms of provisions contained in Sec�ons 196, 197, 198, Schedule V and 

other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the Rules 

framed thereunder, including any statutory modifica�ons or re-enactment thereof, and the 

Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company and in furtherance of the special resolu�on passed 

in the 39th Annual General Mee�ng held on 28th September, 2020 (“39th AGM”), approval 

of the Members be and is hereby accorded for payment of remunera�on to Mr. Naveen 

Narang (DIN: 00095708), Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company 

with effect from 1st August, 2021 as per the details set out in the Explanatory Statement
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 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT save and except as aforesaid, all other exis�ng terms and 

condi�ons of the appointment of Mr. Naveen Narang passed at the 39th AGM shall 

con�nue to remain in full force and effect. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board (which will include its commi�ee thereof) be and is 

hereby authorized to vary and /or revise the remunera�on of Mr. Naveen Narang, 

permissible under the Act within limits as approved by the members and do all such acts, 

deeds and things and execute all such documents, instruments and wri�ngs as may be 

required to give effect to the aforesaid Resolu�on.

ITEM NO. 4- Appointment of Mr. Gourav (DIN: 09008128) as an Independent Director of the Company.

  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolu�on as an Ordinary Resolu�on: -

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sec�on 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV to 

the Companies Act, 2013, and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the Companies (Appointment and Qualifica�on of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any 

statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment thereof for the �me being in force) and 

Regula�on 17 of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 

2015, Mr. Gourav (DIN: 09008128) who was appointed as an Addi�onal Director of the 

Company w.e.f 24th December, 2020 in terms of Sec�on 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company and from whom the Company has also 

received a declara�on that he meets the criteria for independence as provided in Sec�on 

149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby appointed as an 

Independent Director of the Company to hold the office for 5 (five) consecu�ve years for 

the maximum period upto 23rd December, 2025.”

ITEM NO. 5- Appointment of Mr. Jaiveer Singh (DIN: 09289046) as an Independent Director of the 

Company.

 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolu�on as an Ordinary Resolu�on: -

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sec�on 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV to 

the Companies Act, 2013, and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the Companies (Appointment and Qualifica�on of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any 

statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment thereof for the �me being in force) and 

Regula�on 17 of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 

2015, Mr. Jaiveer Singh(DIN:09289046) who was appointed as an Addi�onal Director of the 

Company w.e.f 4th September, 2021 in terms of Sec�on 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company, from whom the Company has also received 
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a declara�on that he meets the criteria for independence as provided in Sec�on 149(6) of 

the Act and who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent 

Director of the Company to hold the office for 5 (five) consecu�ve years for the maximum 

period upto 3rd September, 2026.”

ITEM NO. 6- Disinvestment in Associate/ Subsidiary/ Material Subsidiary Companies

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following 

resolu�ons as Special Resolu�ons:

 i. Disinvestment in Max Heights Developers Private Limited (Associate Company)

  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sec�on 180(1)(a) and other applicable 

provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules made thereunder, 

Regula�on 23 of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 

2015, (including any statutory modifica�ons, amendments or re-enactments of any of 

them for the �me being in force), the Memorandum and Ar�cles of Associa�on of the 

Company and subject to other requisite approvals to the extent necessary as may be 

required, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors 

of the Company (hereina�er referred to as Board) to sell or transfer up to 100% of its equity 

stake held in Max Heights Developers Private Limited, Associate Company in one or more 

tranches to any of the purchasers at a price and on such terms and condi�ons as may be 

approved by the Board, in its absolute discre�on.

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of implementa�on of this resolu�on, any of the 

directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, ma�er and 

things, including but not limited to deciding the �me, mode, manner, extent of tranches, if 

required and other terms and condi�ons of the disinvestment/ sales of the shares as 

aforesaid, nego�a�ng and finalizing the terms of sale/ offer for sale as may be necessary, 

desirable and expedient to be agreed and all incidental and necessary steps for and on 

behalf of the company and to se�le all ques�ons or queries that may arise in the course of 

implemen�ng this resolu�on.”

 ii. Disinvestment in Maxheights Realtors Limited (Subsidiary Company)

  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sec�on 180(1)(a) and other applicable 

provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules made thereunder, 

Regula�on 23 & 24 of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regula�ons, 2015, (including any statutory modifica�ons, amendments or re-enactments 

of any of them for the �me being in force), the Memorandum and Ar�cles of Associa�on of 
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the Company and subject to other requisite approvals to the extent necessary as may be 

required, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors 

of the Company (hereina�er referred to as Board) to sell or transfer up to 100% of its equity 

stake held in Maxheights Realtors Limited, Subsidiary/ Material Subsidiary Company in one 

or more tranches to any of the purchasers at a price and on such terms and condi�ons as 

may be approved by the Board of Directors in its absolute discre�on.

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of implementa�on of this resolu�on, any of the 

directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, ma�er and 

things, including but not limited to deciding the �me, mode, manner, extent of tranches, if 

required and other terms and condi�ons of the disinvestment/ sales of the shares as 

aforesaid, nego�a�ng and finalizing the terms of sale/ offer for sale as may be necessary, 

desirable and expedient to be agreed and all incidental and necessary steps for and on 

behalf of the company and to se�le all ques�ons or queries that may arise in the course of 

implemen�ng this resolu�on.”

 iii. Disinvestment in Icon Realcon Private Limited (Subsidiary Company)

  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sec�on 180(1)(a) and other applicable 

provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules made thereunder, 

Regula�on 23 & 24 of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regula�ons, 2015, (including any statutory modifica�ons, amendments or re-enactments 

of any of them for the �me being in force), the Memorandum and Ar�cles of Associa�on of 

the Company and subject to other requisite approvals to the extent necessary as may be 

required, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors 

of the Company (hereina�er referred to as Board) to sell or transfer up to 100% of its equity 

stake held in Icon Realcon Private Limited, Subsidiary/ Material Subsidiary Company in one 

or more tranches to any other purchasers at a price and on such terms and condi�ons as 

may be approved by the Board of Directors in its absolute discre�on.

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of implementa�on of this resolu�on, any of the 

directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, ma�er and 

things, including but not limited to deciding the �me, mode, manner, extent of tranches, if 

required and other terms and condi�ons of the disinvestment/ sales of the shares as 

aforesaid, nego�a�ng and finalizing the terms of sale/ offer for sale as may be necessary, 

desirable and expedient to be agreed and all incidental and necessary steps for and on 

behalf of the company and to se�le all ques�ons or queries that may arise in the course of 

implemen�ng this resolu�on.” 
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ITEM NO. 7 -  Re-appointment of Mr. Ashok Ahuja (DIN:  07287378) as the Independent Director of the 

Company

  To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following 

resolu�on as a Special Resolu�on:

  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 149, 152 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Schedule IV to the Act 

(including any statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the �me being in 

force) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualifica�on of Directors) Rules, 2014, as 

amended from �me to �me, and pursuant to the recommenda�on of the Nomina�on & 

Remunera�on Commi�ee and the Board of Directors, Mr. Ashok Ahuja (DIN: 07287378), 

who held office as an Independent Director of the Company up to 29th September, 2020 

and therea�er appointed as the Addi�onal Director (categorized as Independent Director) 

with effect from 29th September, 2020 on the Board Mee�ng held on 10th October, 2020, 

and who has submi�ed a declara�on that he meets the criteria for independence as 

provided under Sec�on 149(6) of the Act and Regula�on 16(1) (b) of the Securi�es 

Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�on and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 

2015, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable 

to re�re by rota�on, for a second term of five consecu�ve years commencing from 29th 

September, 2020 up to 28th September, 2025”

  “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its commi�ee 

thereof) and / or Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorized to do 

all such acts, deeds, ma�ers and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or 

expedient to give effect to this resolu�on.”

By Order of the Board

For MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Sd/-

Vandita Arora

Date: 4th September, 2021 Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi M.No.: 61149

Regd. Off.: Max Heights Infrastructure Limited

SD-65, Tower Apartment, Pitampura,

New Delhi- 110034. 

CIN:L67120DL1981PLC179487

E-Mail ID: maxinfra1981@gmail.com
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NOTES:

1. The present AGM has been convened through VC / OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, 17/2020 dated 

April 13, 2020, 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and Circular no. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 issued by the SEBI 

(hereina�er collec�vely referred to as 'the Circulars”). Since this AGM will be held through Video 

Conferencing ('VC') / Other Audio Visual Means ('OAVM'). Hence, Members will not be able to 

appoint proxies for this mee�ng. Further, the A�endance Slip and Route Map are not being annexed 

to this No�ce.

2. Corporate Members are requested to send a cer�fied copy (in PDF / JPG format) of the Board 

Resolu�on authorizing their representa�ves to a�end the AGM, pursuant to Sec�on 113 of the Act, 

through e-mail at cs@maxheights.com.

3. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Book of the Company shall remain closed from 

Saturday, 25th September, 2021 to Wednesday 29th September, 2021(both days inclusive).

4. Details under Regula�on 36(3) of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regula�ons, 2015 and SS-2 i.e. Secretarial Standards on General Mee�ngs in respect of the Directors 

seeking appointment / re-appointment at the Mee�ng is annexed to the No�ce as Annexure–A.

5. In conformity with the applicable regulatory requirements, the No�ce of this AGM and the Annual 

Report and Annual Accounts 2021 are being sent only through electronic mode to those Members 

who have registered their e-mail addresses with the Company or with the Depositories. Further, In 

line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the 

No�ce calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.maxheights.com. 

The No�ce can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at 

www.bseindia.com. The AGM No�ce is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for 

providing the Remote e-Vo�ng facility and e-vo�ng system during the AGM) i.e. 

www.evo�ngindia.com. Members may also note that the No�ce of the Mee�ng and the Annual 

Report will also be available on the Company's website www.maxheights.com for download.

6. Relevant Documents referred to in the accompanying No�ce, Registers and all other statutory 

documents will be made available for inspec�on in the electronic mode. Members can inspect the 

same by sending a request to the Company's investor email ID i.e. maxinfra1981@gmail.com.

7. In view of the situa�on arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the general mee�ngs of the 

companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
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(MCA) vide Circular Nos. 14/ 2020 dated April 8, 2020, 17/ 2020 dated April 13, 2020, 20/ 2020 dated 

May 05, 2020 and 02/ 2021 dated January 13, 2021. The forthcoming AGM will thus be held through 

video conferencing (VC) or Other Audio- Visual Means (OAVM).  Hence, Members can a�end and 

par�cipate in the ensuing AGM through VC/ OAVM. The detailed Instruc�on for a�ending AGM 

through VC/ OAVM is annexed to the No�ce as Annexure-B.

8. Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regula�on 44 of SEBI 

(Lis�ng Obliga�ons & Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars 

dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 05, 2020 and January 13, 2021 the Company is providing 

facility of remote e-vo�ng (facility to cast vote prior to the AGM) and also e-vo�ng during the AGM to 

its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company 

has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilita�ng 

vo�ng through electronic means, as the authorized e-Vo�ng's agency. The facility of cas�ng votes by 

a member using remote e-vo�ng as well as the e-vo�ng system on the date of the AGM will be 

provided by CDSL. The detailed instruc�on for remote E-Vo�ng & E-Vo�ng at AGM is annexed to the 

No�ce as Annexure-C.

9. Ms. Kavita, Prac�cing Company Secretary [Membership No. F9115], being a partner of M/s A. K. 

Nandwani & Associates, Company Secretaries, has been appointed as the Scru�nizer to scru�nize 

the e-vo�ng process (remote as well as at the �me of AGM) in a fair and transparent manner.

10. The remote e-vo�ng period commences on Sunday, 26th September, 2021 [09:00 A.M] and ends on 

Tuesday, 28th September, 2021 [5:00 P.M.]. During this period, Members holding shares either in 

physical form or demat form, as on 22nd September, 2021 i.e. cut-off date, may cast their vote 

electronically. The remote e-vo�ng module shall be disabled for vo�ng therea�er. Once the vote on a 

resolu�on is cast by the Member, he/ she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently or cast vote 

again.

11. The vo�ng rights of members shall be in propor�on to their shares in the paid-up equity share capital 

of the Company as on cut-off date. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or 

in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as on cut-off date only shall be 

en�tled to avail facility of remote e-vo�ng. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and 

becomes a member of the Company a�er dispatch of the No�ce and holding shares as on cut-off 

date, may cast vote a�er following the instruc�ons for e-vo�ng as provided in the No�ce convening 

the Mee�ng, which is available on the website of the Company and CDSL. However, if you are already 

registered with CDSL for remote e-vo�ng then you can use your exis�ng User ID and password for 

cas�ng vote.

12. The Results of vo�ng will be declared within 48 hours from the conclusion of the AGM and the 

Resolu�ons will be deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM, subject to receipt of requisite 
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number of votes. The declared Results, along with the Scru�nizer's Report, will be available 

forthwith on the Company's website www.maxheights.com and on the website of CDSL i.e., 

www.evo�ngindia.com immediately a�er the result is declared. The Company shall simultaneously 

forward the results to BSE Limited [BSE], where the equity shares of the Company are listed.

13. REQUEST TO MEMBERS

 (i) Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register 

their e-mail address for receiving all communica�ons including Annual Report, Circulars, 

etc. from the Company electronically. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary 

details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share cer�ficate (front and 

back), PAN (self-a�ested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-a�ested scanned copy 

of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/ RTA email id. 

 (ii) Members holding shares in demat form are requested to in�mate all changes pertaining to 

their bank details, Na�onal Electronic Clearing Service [NECS], Electronic Clearing Services 

[ECS] mandates, nomina�ons, power of a�orneys, change in address, change of name, 

email address, contact numbers, etc. to their Depository Par�cipant [DP]. Changes 

in�mated to the DP will then be automa�cally reflected in the Company's records which will 

help the Company and the Company's Registrar and Transfer Agents to provide efficient and 

be�er services. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to in�mate such 

changes to Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company.

  Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to register / update their 

e-mail addresses & mobile no. with your respec�ve Depository Par�cipant (DP) which is 

mandatory while e-Vo�ng & joining virtual mee�ngs through Depository.

 (iii) Members are requested to inform the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent i.e. 

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited, D-153/A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, 

Phase - I, New Delhi- 110020, about the changes, if any, in their registered address along 

with Pin Code, quo�ng their Folio number and DP ID. All correspondence rela�ng to 

transfer of shares may be sent directly to the aforesaid Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 

of the Company or by sending email the same at admin@skylinerta.com.

 (iv) In case of joint holders a�ending the Mee�ng, only such joint holder who is higher in the 

order of names will be en�tled to vote. Members who hold shares in physical form in 

mul�ple folios in iden�cal names or joint holding in the same order of names are requested 

to send the share cer�ficates to Registrar, for consolida�on into a single folio.

 (v) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of 

Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every par�cipant in securi�es market. Members 
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holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their 

Depository Par�cipants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members 

holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company / Registrar and 

Share Transfer Agents.

14.  If you have any queries or issues regarding a�ending AGM & e-Vo�ng from the CDSL e-Vo�ng 

System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 

022-2305 8542/43.

 All grievances connected with the facility for vo�ng by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. 

Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL,) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, 

Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 

or send an email to helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com or call  on 022-2305 8542/43. 

By Order of the Board

For MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTUCTURE LIMITED

Sd/-

Vandita Arora

Date: 4th September,2021 Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi M.No.: 61149
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“ANNEXURE A TO THE NOTICE”

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO THE REGULATION 36 OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 

REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015, AND SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON GENERAL MEETINGS ISSUED BY 

THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA ('ICSI'), INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF THE DIRECTORS 

SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT / APPOINTMENT AT THE ENSUING AGM, IS PROVIDED HERE IN BELOW:

Name of the Director Naveen Narang  Ashok Ahuja  
Age

 
44 years

 
42

 
years

 Date of Appointment by the 

Board of Directors

 

 
13th March, 2008

 

30th September, 2015

 

Brief Resume and nature of 

exper�se in func�onal areas

 

Possesses appropriate skills, 

experience and knowledge, inter 

alia, in the field of real estate. 

 

Possesses appropriate skills, 

experience and knowledge, 

inter alia, in the field of real 

estate.

 

Disclosure of rela�onship with other 

Directors, Manager and other Key 

Managerial Personnel of the Company  

inter-se

 

Mr. Sa�sh Chander Narang -Father; 

 

 

Ms. Mansi Narang - Wife 

  

N.A.

 

Terms and condi�ons of appointment 

or re-

 

appointment

 

N.A.

    

N.A.

 

The remunera�on last drawn

 

Nil

    

Nil

 

The number of Mee�ngs of the Board 
a�ended during the year  

 

8

 

(Eight)

     

8

 

(Eight)

 

Directorships held in other listed  

Companies

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

Memberships / Chairmanships of 

Commi�ees of other listed Companies 

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

Number of shares held in the Company 

 

38,63,894

 

(Thirty Eight Lakh Sixty 

Three Thousand Eight Hundred 

Ninety Four Only)

 

Nil

 

Name of the Director

 

Gourav

 

Jaiveer Singh

 

Age

 

27 years

 

46 years

 

Date of Appointment by the 

Board of Directors

 

 

24th December, 2020

 

 

2nd

 

September, 2021

 

Brief Resume and nature of 

exper�se in func�onal areas

 

A Commerce Graduate, 

               

Mr. Gourav

 

has an experience of 

more than 5 years as a consultant 

in the field of Finance, Taxa�on, 

Accoun�ng and Audi�ng. 

 

Mr. Jaiveer

 

holds a Baccalaureate 

degree in Computer Applica�ons 

and has a work experience of 

more than 20 years in the field of 

IT and office administra�on.

 

Disclosure of rela�onship with other 

Directors, Manager and other Key 

Managerial Personnel of the 

Company inter-se

N.A. N.A.

Terms and condi�ons of appointment 

or re- appointment

N.A. N.A.

The remunera�on last drawn Nil Nil

The number of Mee�ngs of 

the Board a�ended during 

the year

2 (Two) Nil

Directorships held in other listed 

Companies

Nil Nil

Memberships / Chairmanships of 

Commi�ees of other listed Companies 

Nil Nil

Number of shares held in the Company Nil Nil
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ANNEXURE: B TO THE NOTICE

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS  ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/ OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to a�end the AGM through VC/ OAVM through the CDSL 
e-Vo�ng system. Shareholders may access the same at h�ps://www.evo�ngindia.com under 
shareholders/members login by using the remote e-vo�ng creden�als. The link for VC/ OAVM will be 
available in shareholder/members login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed.

2. The Skyline Financial Services Private Limited, Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, of the Company 
will be providing VC/OAVM Services.

3. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Mee�ng through Laptops / IPads for be�er experience.

4. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid 
any disturbance during the mee�ng.

5. Please note that Par�cipants Connec�ng from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connec�ng via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/ Video loss due to Fluctua�on in their 
respec�ve network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connec�on to mi�gate 
any kind of aforesaid glitches.

6. Members who would like to ask ques�ons during the AGM may send their ques�ons from their 
registered email address men�oning their name, DP ID and Client ID/ Folio Number, PAN, mobile 
number at maxinfra1981@gmail.com  upto Wednesday, 22nd September, 2021 (5:00 p.m. IST).

7. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express 
their views/ ask ques�ons during the mee�ng. 

8. The Members can join the AGM through the VC/ OAVM mode 15 minutes before and a�er the 
scheduled �me of the commencement of the Mee�ng by following the procedure men�oned in the 
No�ce. The facility of par�cipa�on at the AGM through VC/ OAVM will be made available to atleast 
1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders 
holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Ins�tu�onal Investors, Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Commi�ee, Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee 
and Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to a�end the AGM without 
restric�on on account of first come first served basis.

9. The a�endance of the Members a�ending the AGM through VC/ OAVM will be counted for the 
purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Sec�on 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

10. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/ 2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to a�end 
and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Sec�on 112 
and Sec�on 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representa�ves of the members such as the President 
of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can a�end the AGM through VC/ OAVM and 
cast their votes through e-vo�ng.
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“ANNEXURE: C TO THE NOTICE”

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING AGM AND JOINING 

MEETING THROUGH VC/ OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

(i) The vo�ng period begins on Sunday, 26th September, 2021 [09:00 A.M] and ends on Tuesday, 28th 

September, 2021 [5:00 P.M.] During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either 

in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of i.e. Wednesday 

22nd September, 2021 may cast their vote electronically. The e-vo�ng module shall be disabled by 

CDSL for vo�ng therea�er.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the mee�ng date would not be en�tled to vote at the 

mee�ng venue.

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under 

Regula�on 44 of Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, listed en��es are required to provide remote e-vo�ng facility to 

its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders' resolu�ons. However, it has been observed that the 

par�cipa�on by the public non-ins�tu�onal shareholders/ retail shareholders is at a negligible level. 

 Currently, there are mul�ple e-vo�ng service providers (ESPs) providing e-vo�ng facility to listed 

en��es in India. This necessitates registra�on on various ESPs and maintenance of mul�ple user IDs 

and passwords by the shareholders. 

 In order to increase the efficiency of the vo�ng process, pursuant to a public consulta�on, it has been 

decided to enable e-vo�ng to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login creden�al, 

through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Par�cipants. Demat account 

holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not 

only facilita�ng seamless authen�ca�on but also enhancing ease and convenience of par�cipa�ng in 

e-vo�ng process. 

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-

Vo�ng facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securi�es in demat 

mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 

Depository Par�cipants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 

their demat accounts in order to access e-Vo�ng facility.

 Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Vo�ng and joining virtual mee�ngs for 

Individual shareholders holding securi�es in Demat mode is given below:
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Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securi�es in Demat 
mode with CDSL

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securi�es in demat 
mode with NSDL

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securi�es in 
demat mode) login 
through their 
Depository Par�cipants

Type of shareholders Login Method

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their exis�ng 
user id and password. Op�on will be made available to reach e-Vo�ng page without any 
further authen�ca�on. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 
h�ps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit  www.cdslindia.com and click 
on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

2) A�er successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Vo�ng op�on for 
eligible companies where the evo�ng is in progress as per the informa�on provided by 
company. On clicking the evo�ng op�on, the user will be able to see e-Vo�ng page of 
the e-Vo�ng service provider for cas�ng your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period or 
joining virtual mee�ng & vo�ng during the mee�ng. Addi�onally, there is also links 
provided to access the system of  al l  e-Vo�ng Service Providers i .e. 
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Vo�ng service 
providers' website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, op�on to register is available at 
h�ps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registra�on/EasiRegistra�on.

 Alterna�vely, the user can directly access e-Vo�ng page by providing Demat Account 
Number and PAN No. from a e-Vo�ng link available on  www.cdslindia.com home page. 
The system will authen�cate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the Demat Account. A�er successful authen�ca�on, user will be able to see 
the e-Vo�ng op�on where the evo�ng is in progress and also able to directly access the 
system of all e-Vo�ng Service Providers.

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website 
of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is 
launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 
'IDeAS' sec�on. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and 
Password. A�er successful authen�ca�on, you will be able to see e-Vo�ng services. 
Click on “Access to e-Vo�ng” under e-Vo�ng services and you will be able to see e-
Vo�ng page. Click on company name or e-Vo�ng service provider name and you will be 
re-directed to e-Vo�ng service provider website for cas�ng your vote during the 
remote e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual mee�ng & vo�ng during the mee�ng.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, op�on to register is available at 
h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 
h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp .

3) Visit the e-Vo�ng website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
h�ps://www.evo�ng.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once 
the home page of e-Vo�ng system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under 'Shareholder/Member' sec�on. A new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verifica�on Code as shown on the screen. A�er successful 
authen�ca�on, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-
Vo�ng page. Click on company name or e-Vo�ng service provider name and you will be 
redirected to e-Vo�ng service provider website for cas�ng your vote during the remote 
e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual mee�ng & vo�ng during the mee�ng                  

 You can also login using the login creden�als of your demat account through your 
Depository Par�cipant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Vo�ng facility.  A�er Successful 
login, you will be able to see e-Vo�ng op�on. Once you click on e-Vo�ng op�on, you will 
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site a�er successful authen�ca�on, wherein 
you can see e-Vo�ng feature. Click on company name or e-Vo�ng service provider 
name and you will be redirected to e-Vo�ng service provider website for cas�ng your 
vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual mee�ng & vo�ng during the 
mee�ng.
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password op�on available at above-men�oned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode for any technical issues related to 
login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

(v) Login method for e-Vo�ng and joining virtual mee�ng for shareholders other than individual shareholders 

holding in Demat form & physical shareholders.

 1) The shareholders should log on to the e-vo�ng website www.evo�ngindia.com.

 2) Click on “Shareholders” module.

 3) Now enter your User ID 

  a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

  b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

  c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with 

the Company.

 4) Next enter the Image Verifica�on as displayed and Click on Login.

 5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evo�ngindia.com and voted on 

an earlier e-vo�ng of any company, then your exis�ng password is to be used. 

 6) If you are a first-�me user follow the steps given below:

Login type Helpdesk details  

Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in 
Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 
by sending a request at helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com  or contact at 
022- 2305 8738 and 022-2305  8542-43.  

  

Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in 
Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact  NSDL helpdesk 
by sending a request at evo�ng@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free No.:
1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30.  
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For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and Physical Form  

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha -numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat 

shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 

· Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Par�cipant are 

requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/ RTA or contact Company/ RTA.  

Dividend 

Bank Details 

OR  

Date of Birth 

(DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat 

account or in the company records in order to login.  

· If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the 

member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as men�oned in instruc�on (3).

(vi) A�er entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selec�on screen. 
However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Crea�on' menu 
wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. 
Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for vo�ng for resolu�ons of 
any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-vo�ng 
through CDSL pla�orm. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other 
person and take utmost care to keep your password confiden�al.

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-vo�ng on the 
resolu�ons contained in this No�ce.

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

(x) On the vo�ng page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the op�on “YES/ 
NO” for vo�ng. Select the op�on YES or NO as desired. The op�on YES implies that you assent to the 
Resolu�on and op�on NO implies that you dissent to the Resolu�on.

(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the en�re Resolu�on details.

(xii) A�er selec�ng the resolu�on, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirma�on box 
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on 
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolu�on, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” op�on on the Vo�ng 
page.

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgo�en the login password then Enter the User ID and the image 
verifica�on code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xvi) Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –Remote Vo�ng
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· Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required 
to log on to www.evo�ngindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

· A scanned copy of the Registra�on Form bearing the stamp and sign of the en�ty should be emailed 
to helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com.

· A�er receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

· The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com and on 
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

· A scanned copy of the Board Resolu�on and Power of A�orney (POA) which they have issued in 
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scru�nizer to 
verify the same.

· Alterna�vely, Non-Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolu�on/ 
Authority le�er etc. together with a�ested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who 
are authorized to vote, to the Scru�nizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 
maxinfra1981@gmail.com (designated email address by company), if they have voted from 
individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-vo�ng system for the scru�nizer to verify the 
same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/ OAVM & E-VOTING DURING 
MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

1. The procedure for a�ending mee�ng &E-Vo�ng on the day of the AGM/ EGM is same as the 
instruc�ons men�oned above for Remote e-vo�ng.

2. The link for VC/ OAVM to a�end mee�ng will be available where the EVSN of Company will be 
displayed a�er successful login as per the instruc�ons men�oned above for Remote e-vo�ng.

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Vo�ng will be eligible to a�end the mee�ng. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Mee�ng through Laptops / IPads for be�er experience.

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid 
any disturbance during the mee�ng.

6. Please note that Par�cipants Connec�ng from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connec�ng via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/ Video loss due to Fluctua�on in their 
respec�ve network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connec�on to mi�gate 
any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask ques�ons during the mee�ng may register 
themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 7 days prior to mee�ng 
men�oning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company 
email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send 
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their queries in advance latest by Wednesday, 22nd September 2021 by 5:00 PM men�oning their 
name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id-
maxinfra1981@gmail.com). These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email. 

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express 
their views/ ask ques�ons during the mee�ng.

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/ OAVM facility and have not 
casted their vote on the Resolu�ons through remote e-Vo�ng and are otherwise not barred from 
doing so shall be eligible to vote through e-Vo�ng system available during the AGM.

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-vo�ng available during the AGM and if the 
same shareholders have not par�cipated in the mee�ng through VC/ OAVM facility, then the votes 
cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-vo�ng during the mee�ng is 
available only to the shareholders a�ending the mee�ng.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No. 3:

Remunera�on to Mr. Naveen Narang (DIN:00095708), the Managing Director of the Company

The Members of the Company had re-appointed Mr. Naveen Narang as the Managing Director of the 
Company for a period of two years w.e.f. 5th February, 2020 up to 4th February, 2022.  In his capacity of being 
the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, he was drawing a monthly remunera�on of 
Rs, 2,50,000/-. However, owing to the loss of revenue of the Company, due to the COVID- 19 pandemic, Mr. 
Naveen Narang voluntarily gave up his en�re remunera�on from 1st July, 2020 onwards.

However, the Board of Directors on the recommenda�on of Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee at its 
mee�ng held on 14th August, 2021, has decided to resume the payment of the remunera�on up to 
` 3,00,000/- (Rupees Three Lakh Only) per month all-inclusive with effect from 1st August, 2021. Apart from 
the remunera�on, all the other terms and condi�ons of his of his appointment shall remain same as duly 
approved by the members in the 37th Annual General Mee�ng of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 196, 197 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V, a 
company having inadequate/no profits, may subject to certain condi�ons, pay such remunera�on to its 
managerial personnel as may be decided by the Board of Directors on the recommenda�on of Nomina�on 
and Remunera�on Commi�ee. 

In the event of inadequacy of profits calculated as per Sec�on 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the financial 
years 2019-2020 and 2020-2021, Mr. Naveen Narang shall be en�tled to the remunera�on.
 
Since, Mr. Naveen Narang, Mr. Sa�sh Chander Narang and Ms. Mansi Narang, directors of the Company are 
interested in the above resolu�on, they won't be en�tled to cast their votes with respect to the said 
resolu�on.
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Apart from them, None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their rela�ves is 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolu�on.

The Board recommends enabling the Ordinary Resolu�on for the approval of the Members of the Company.

Item No. 4:

Appointment of Mr. Gourav (DIN: 09008128) as Independent Director of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company ('the Board') at their mee�ng held on 24th December, 2021, on the 
recommenda�on of the Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee ('the Commi�ee'), approved the 
appointment of Mr. Gourav (DIN: 09008128) as an Addi�onal Director of the Company with immediate effect 
and subject to the approval of the Members also as Independent Director of the Company for a period of five 
years with effect from the said date in terms of Sec�on 149 read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act 2013 
('the Act') and Regula�on 17 of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 ('the Lis�ng Regula�ons 2015). 

The Commi�ee and the Board of Directors are of the view that the associa�on of Mr. Gourav would benefit 
the Company. Declara�on has been received from Gourav that he meets the criteria of Independence 
prescribed in the category of Independent Director, prescribed under sec�on 149 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualifica�on of Directors) Rules 2014 and Regula�on 16 of the Lis�ng 
Regula�on 2015 for the appointment of the Independent Director. Further his name is not included in the 
Data bank of Independent Directors as prescribed under Rule 6(3) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualifica�on of Directors) Rules, 2014. He is independent of the management of the Company. Mr. Gourav 
will be en�tled to si�ng fees for a�ending the mee�ngs of the Board and its Commi�ees as may be decided. 

Requisite No�ce under Sec�on 160 of the Act proposing the candidature of Mr. Gourav has been received by 
the Company, and consent has been filed by him pursuant to Sec�on 152 of the Act. 

Addi�onal Informa�on in respect of his appointment pursuant to the Lis�ng Regula�on 2015 and the 
Secretarial Standard on the General Mee�ng is appearing in the Annexure – A to this No�ce. In terms of the 
provisions of Sec�on 161(1) of the Act, Mr. Gourav would hold office up to the date of the ensuing Annual 
General Mee�ng. The Company has received a no�ce in wri�ng, proposing his candidature as director. Mr. 
Gourav is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Sec�on 164 of the Act. His brief 
profile is given below:

Mr. Gourav, aged about 27 years is a commerce Graduate from Maharishi Dayanand University and has a 
working experience of more than 5 years in a CA Consultancy firm. During his tenure, he has acquired 
excellent knowledge in Finance, Taxa�on, Accountancy and Audi�ng.

He possesses appropriate skills, experience and knowledge as required for the Independent Director. Save 
and except Mr. Gourav and his rela�ves, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company / their rela�ves are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolu�on 
set out at Item No. 4 of the No�ce. The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolu�on set out at Item No. 4 of the 
No�ce for approval by the members. 



Annual Report 2020-2021 19

Item No. 5:

Appointment of Mr. Jaiveer Singh (DIN: 09289046) as an Independent Director of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company ('the Board') at their mee�ng held on 4th September, 2021, on the 
recommenda�on of the Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee ('the Commi�ee'), approved the 
appointment of Mr. Jaiveer Singh (DIN: 09289046)as an Addi�onal Director of the Company with immediate 
effect and subject to the approval of the Members also as Independent Director of the Company for a period 
of five years with effect from the said date in terms of Sec�on 149 read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act 
2013 ('the Act') and Regula�on 17 of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 ('the Lis�ng Regula�ons 2015). 

The Commi�ee and the Board of Directors are of the view that the associa�on of Mr. Jaiveer would benefit the 
Company. Declara�on has been received from Jaiveer that he meets the criteria of Independence prescribed 
in the category of Independent Director, prescribed under sec�on 149 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualifica�on of Directors) Rules 2014 and Regula�on 16 of the Lis�ng Regula�on 2015 for 
the appointment of the Independent Director. Further his name is not included in the Data bank of 
Independent Directors as prescribed under Rule 6(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifica�on of 
Directors) Rules, 2014. He is independent of the management of the Company. Mr. Jaiveer will be en�tled to 
si�ng fees for a�ending the mee�ngs of the Board and its Commi�ees as may be decided. 

Requisite No�ce under Sec�on 160 of the Act proposing the candidature of Mr. Jaiveer has been received by 
the Company, and consent has been filed by him pursuant to Sec�on 152 of the Act. 

Addi�onal Informa�on in respect of his appointment pursuant to the Lis�ng Regula�on 2015 and the 
Secretarial Standard on the General Mee�ng is appearing in the Annexure – A to this No�ce. In terms of the 
provisions of Sec�on 161(1) of the Act, Mr. Jaiveer would hold office up to the date of the ensuing Annual 
General Mee�ng. The Company has received a no�ce in wri�ng, proposing his candidature as director. Mr. 
Jaiveer is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Sec�on 164 of the Act. His brief 
profile is given below:

Mr. Jaiveer, aged about 46 years holds a Baccalaureate degree in Computer Applica�ons and has a work 
experience of more than 20 years in the field of IT and Office Administra�on. Through his work experience 
spanning over 2 decades, he has demonstrated his ability to handle complex situa�ons and good leadership 
skills.

He possesses appropriate skills, experience and knowledge as required for the Independent Director. Save 
and except Mr. Jaiveer and his rela�ves, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company / their rela�ves are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolu�on 
set out at Item No. 5 of the No�ce. The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolu�on set out at Item No. 5 of the 
No�ce for approval by the members. 
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Item No. 6: 

Disinvestment in Associate/ Subsidiary/ Material Subsidiary Companies

i. Disinvestment in Max Heights Developers Private Limited (Associate Company)

 The Board of Directors of the Company ('The Board'), approved the disinvestment by the way of sale 
of its equity shares held in its Associate/ Subsidiary/Material Subsidiary Companies in the Board 
mee�ng held on 31st July, 2021. Further, the Company a�er finaliza�on of terms and condi�ons, 
decided to sell or transfer up to 100% of its equity stake held in Max Heights Developers Private 
Limited, Associate Company, in one or more tranches, to any of the purchasers on such price and 
terms and condi�ons as may be approved by the Board in its absolute discre�on.

 The said disinvestment has been approved by the Board a�er taking into account the current market 
dynamics and a�er considering net cash inflow and economic value offered by the aforesaid 
transac�on. The considera�on of the sale of investments as proposed would generate significant 
shareholder value and presents an a�rac�ve mone�za�on opportunity to the Company. The Board 
is of the opinion that the proposed disinvestment is in the overall best interest of the Company and 
recommends the Special Resolu�on for the approval of the Members of the Company in terms of 
sec�on 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regula�on 23 of Securi�es and Exchange Board of 
India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons & Disclosure Requirements), Regula�ons, 2015.

 As per Regula�on 23 of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (“Lis�ng Regula�ons”), all en��es falling within the defini�on of 
related par�es shall abstain from vo�ng on this Resolu�on and accordingly, the promoters and the 
promoter group en��es shall not vote on this Resolu�on. 

 Since, Mr. Naveen Narang, Mr. Sa�sh Chander Narang and Ms. Mansi Narang, Promoters and 
directors of the Company are interested in the above said disinvestment, they won't be en�tled to 
cast their votes with respect to the said resolu�on.

 Apart from them, None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their rela�ves 
is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolu�on.

 The Board is of the opinion that the proposed disinvestment is in the overall best interest of the 
Company and recommends enabling the Special Resolu�on for the approval of the Members of the 
Company.

ii. Disinvestment in Maxheights Realtors Limited (Subsidiary Company)

 The Board of Directors of the Company ('The Board'), approved the disinvestment by the way of sale 
of its equity shares held in its Associate/ Subsidiary/Material Subsidiary Companies in the Board 
mee�ng held on 31st July, 2021. Further, the Company a�er finaliza�on of terms and condi�ons, 
decided to sell or transfer up to 100% of its equity stake held in Maxheights Realtors Limited, 
Subsidiary/ Material Subsidiary Company, in one or more tranches, to any of the purchasers on such 
price and terms and condi�ons as may be approved by the Board in its absolute discre�on.
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  The said disinvestment has been approved by the Board a�er taking into account the current market 
dynamics and a�er considering net cash inflow and economic value offered by the aforesaid 
transac�on. The considera�on of the sale of investments as proposed would generate significant 
shareholder value and presents an a�rac�ve mone�za�on opportunity to the Company. The Board 
is of the opinion that the proposed disinvestment is in the overall best interest of the Company and 
recommends the Special Resolu�on for the approval of the Members of the Company in terms of 
sec�on 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regula�on 23 & 24(5) of Securi�es and Exchange 
Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons & Disclosure Requirements), Regula�ons, 2015.

 As per Regula�on 23 of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (“Lis�ng Regula�ons”), all en��es falling within the defini�on of 
related par�es shall abstain from vo�ng on this Resolu�on and accordingly, the promoters and the 
promoter group en��es shall not vote on this Resolu�on. 

 Since, Mr. Naveen Narang, Mr. Sa�sh Chander Narang and Ms. Mansi Narang, Promoters and 
directors of the Company are interested in the above said disinvestment, they won't be en�tled to 
cast their votes with respect to the said resolu�on.

 Apart from them, None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their rela�ves 
is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolu�on.

 The Board is of the opinion that the proposed disinvestment is in the overall best interest of the 
Company and recommends enabling the Special Resolu�on for the approval of the Members of the 
Company.

iii. Disinvestment in Icon Realcon Private Limited (Subsidiary Company)

 The Board of Directors of the Company ('The Board'), approved the disinvestment by the way of sale 
of its equity shares held in its Associate/ Subsidiary/ Material Subsidiary Companies in the Board 
mee�ng held on 31st July, 2021. Further, the Company a�er finaliza�on of terms and condi�ons, 
decided to sell or transfer upto 100% of its equity stake held in Icon Realcon Private Limited, 
Subsidiary/ Material Subsidiary Company, in one or more tranches, to any of the purchasers on such 
price and terms and condi�ons as may be approved by the Board in its absolute discre�on.

 The said disinvestment has been approved by the Board a�er taking into account the current market 
dynamics and a�er considering net cash inflow and economic value offered by the aforesaid 
transac�on. The considera�on of the sale of investments as proposed would generate significant 
shareholder value and presents an a�rac�ve mone�za�on opportunity to the Company. The Board 
is of the opinion that the proposed disinvestment is in the overall best interest of the Company and 
recommends the Special Resolu�on for the approval of the Members of the Company in terms of 
sec�on 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regula�on 23 and 24(5) of Securi�es and Exchange 
Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons & Disclosure Requirements), Regula�ons, 2015.

 As per Regula�on 23 of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (“Lis�ng Regula�ons”), all en��es falling within the defini�on of 
related par�es shall abstain from vo�ng on this Resolu�on and accordingly, the promoters and the 
promoter group en��es shall not vote on this Resolu�on. 
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 Since, Mr. Naveen Narang, Mr. Sa�sh Chander Narang and Ms. Mansi Narang, Promoters and 
directors of the Company are interested in the above said disinvestment, they won't be en�tled to 
caste their votes with respect to the said resolu�on.

 Apart from them, None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their rela�ves 
is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolu�on.

 The Board is of the opinion that the proposed disinvestment is in the overall best interest of the 
Company and recommends enabling the Special Resolu�on for the approval of the Members of the 
Company.

Item No. 7:

Re-appointment of Mr. Ashok Ahuja (DIN: 07287378) as the Independent Director of the Company

Mr. Ashok Ahuja (DIN: 07287378) was appointed as the Independent Director of the Company pursuant to 
Sec�on 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Companies (Appointment and Qualifica�on of 
Directors) Rules, 2014, by the Shareholders at the Annual General Mee�ng held on 30th September, 2015 to 
hold office upto 29th September, 2020 (“first term” as per the explana�on to Sec�on 149(10) and 149(11) of 
the Act.). The Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee at its Mee�ng held on 10th October, 2020 a�er taking 
into account the performance evalua�on of Mr. Ashok Ahuja, as the Independent Director, during his first 
term of five years and considering the knowledge, acumen, exper�se and experience and the substan�al 
contribu�on made by him during his tenure as the Independent Director since his appointment, has 
recommended to the Board that his con�nued associa�on as an Independent Directors would be in the 
interest of the Company. The Board of Directors appointed him Addi�onal Director- Independent on 
10th October, 2020, with effect from 29th September, 2020. Based on the above, the Nomina�on & 
Remunera�on Commi�ee and the Board has recommended his re-appointment as the Independent Director 
on the Board of the Company, to hold office for the second term of five consecu�ve years commencing from 
29th September, 2020 up to 28th September, 2025 and not liable to re�re by rota�on. The Company has 
received a no�ce in wri�ng pursuant to Sec�on 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a Member proposing the 
candidature of Mr. Ashok Ahuja for his appointment to the office of Independent Director.

Brief profile of Mr. Ashok Ahuja is as under: 

Mr. Ashok Ahuja, aged 42 years, possesses an experience of more than 12 years and appropriate skills and 

knowledge in the field of real estate.

The Board recommends enabling the Special Resolu�on for the approval of the Members of the Company.

By Order of the Board
For MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Sd/-
Vandita Arora

Date: 4th September,2021 Company Secretary
Place: New Delhi M.No.: 61149

Regd. Off.: Max Heights Infrastructure Limited
SD-65, Tower Apartment, Pitampura,
New Delhi- 110034. 
CIN:L67120DL1981PLC179487
E-Mail ID: maxinfra1981@gmail.com
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BOARD'S REPORT

To,                       

The Members of

Max Heights Infrastructure Limited.

 Your directors have pleasure in presenting the 40thDirectors' Report of your Company together with 

the Audited Statement of Accounts and the Report of Auditors of your company for the Financial Year 

ended 31st March, 2021.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

a) FINANCIAL RESULTS
(Amount in ₹)

Particulars

 

Standalone

 

Consolidated

Current Year

     

Previous Year

  

Current Year

 

Previous Year

Total Income

 

4,38,28,084.73

 

3,51,63,426.00

 

13,09,15,208.26

 

43,99,25,235.82

Total Expenses

 

(1,93,69,970.27)

 

(3,04,99,865.27)

 

(11,68,87,170.39)

 

(42,10,59,466.98)

Profit/ (Loss) before tax

 

2,44,58,114.46

 

46,63,560.73

 

1,40,28,037.87

 

1,88,65,768.84

Tax Expenses

    Current Tax

         

39,17,790.00

 

10,89,050.00

 

48,88,850.00

 

46,77,110.00

Earlier years tax

  

0.00

 

0.00

 

0.00

 

0.00

Deferred Tax

         

(54,370.00)

 

(23,020.00)

 

(56,776.00)

 

(1,21,31.16)

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax

 

2,05,94,694.46

 

35,97,530.73

 

91,96,263.87

 

1,42,00,790.00

Net Profit Transferred

 
to Reserves

 

0.00 0.00

 

0.00

 

0.00

Earnings per share 

 
Basic     

Diluted
 

1.32
1.32  

0.23
0.23  

0.78
0.78

0.66
0.66

(b) (i) Highlights of the Company's Performance (Standalone) for the year ended 
 31st  March, 2021 are as under:

  During the year, the Company recorded a Total Revenue of ₹ 4,38,28,084.73/- 

(previous year ₹ 3,51,63,426.00/-). The Company recorded a Net Profit of 

₹ 2,05,94,694.46/- during the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 as compared to 

a Net Profit of ₹ 35,97,530.73/- in the previous year.
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61,814.00

3,492.823,091.22

2,788.51 2,874.68

(ii) Highlights of the Company's Performance (Consolidated) for the year ended 

31st March, 2021 are as under:

  During the year, the Company recorded a Total Consolidated Revenue of 

₹13,09,15208.26 /- (previous year ₹43,99,25,235.82/-). The Company recorded a 

Net Profit of ₹ 91,96,263.87/- during the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 as 

compared to a Net Profit of ₹ 1,42,00,790.00/-  in the previous year.

(c) Segment-wise position of business and its operations;  (Amount in ₹)

1,307.34 4,384.08

1,307.34 4,384.08

SAssets
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(d)  Share Capital

 The Authorised Share Capital as at 31st March, 2021 stood at ₹17,00,00,000/- (Rupees 

Seventeen Crores only) divided into 1,70,00,000 ( One Crore Seventy Lakh) equity shares of 

₹ 10/- (Ten) each and the paid up Equity Share Capital as on 31st March, 2021 stood at 

₹15,60,92,250/- (Rupees Fifteen Crore Sixty Lakh Ninety Two Thousand Two Hundred and 

Fifty only) divided into 1,56,09,225 (One Crore Fifty Six Lakh Nine Thousand Two Hundred 

and Twenty Five) equity shares of ₹ 10/- (Ten) each. During the year under review there was 

no change reported.

(e)               Transfer to Reserves in Terms of Section 134 (3) (J) of The Companies Act, 2013 ('The 

Act')

 For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021, the Company has not proposed to carry any 

amount to the General Reserve Account.

(f) Dividend
 
 During the year under review, the Board of Directors has not recommended dividend on the 

equity shares of the Company, due to meager profit in the financial year 2020-21.

(g)    Material Changes and Commitments

 There are no material changes from the end of Financial Year till the date of this report.

2.  PUBLIC DEPOSITS

 During the year under report, your Company did not accept any deposits from the public 

within the ambit of Section 73 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 

2014.

3.     DIRECTORSAND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

(a)              Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel as on the date of this report

 l Mr. Kartar Chand Ahuja, ceased to be the Independent Director of the Company due 

to his sudden demise as on 27th September, 2020.

 l Mr. Gourav was appointed as an Additional Director (Independent) with effect from 

24th December, 2020 who will hold office till the conclusion of this AGM. The Board 

of Directors on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 

proposed the appointment of Mr. Gourav as an Independent director in the ensuing 

AGM for the approval of members of the Company. Mr. Gourav, aged about 27 years 

is a Commerce Graduate from Maharishi Dayanand University and has a working 

experience of more than 5 years in a CA consultancy firm. During his tenure, he has 

acquired excellent knowledge in Finance, Taxation, Accountancy and Auditing.
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(b) Retirement by rotation

 In terms of the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Act and the Articles of Association of the 

Company, Mr. Naveen Narang (DIN: 00095708), retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting ('AGM') of the Company and, being eligible, offers himself for 

re-appointment. Your Board has recommended his re-appointment.

(c) Code of conduct of Board of Directors and Senior Management

 The Company has formulated a Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management 

Personnel. Further, the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have fully 

complied with the provisions of the Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and Senior 

Management of the Company during the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2021.

(d) Declaration of Independence by the Independent Directors

 A declaration from Mr. Jawahar Lal, Mr.  Ashok Ahuja and Mr. Gourav, the Independent 

Directors of your Company has been received confirming that they meet the criteria of 

Independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act read with Rule 5 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 16(1) 

(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

("SEBI Listing Regulations").

 The Independent Directors have complied with the Code for Independent Directors 

prescribed in Schedule IV to the Act.

 Framework for Familiarization Programme for the Independent Directors and the 

Familiarization Programmes imparted to independent directors are made available on the 

website of the Company at web link  .http://www.maxheights.com/Policies.aspx#

(e) Key  Managerial Personnel of the Company

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company as on the date of this report are Mr. Naveen Narang, Managing Director & Chief 

Financial Officer and Ms. Vandita Arora, Company Secretary.

(f) Attributes, qualifications and appointment of Directors

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has adopted the attributes and qualifications 

as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, in respect of Independent Directors. The Committee 

has also adopted the same attributes and qualifications, to the extent applicable, in respect 

of Non-Independent Directors.

http://www.maxheights.com/Policies.aspx
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 All the Non-Executive Directors of the Company fulfil the fit and proper criteria for 

appointment as Directors. Further, all Directors of the Company, other than Independent 

Directors, are liable to retire by rotation. One-third of the Directors who are liable to retire by 

rotation, retire every year and are eligible for re-election.

(g) Remuneration Policy

 The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 

approved the Remuneration Policy for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other 

employees of the Company, a copy of which is enclosed as Annexure- I to this Report.

(h) Board Evaluation

 The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board 

committees and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act, SEBI Listing 

Regulations and the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017, as required in terms of Section 134(3) (p) of the 

Act. The performance evaluation of the Board and individual Directors was based on criteria 

approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Directors expressed their 

satisfaction with the overall evaluation process.

 In a separate meeting of independent directors, performance of non-independent directors, 

the Chairman of the Company and the board as a whole was evaluated, taking into account 

the views of executive directors and non-executive directors.

4. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

 Eight (8) Meetings of the Board were held during the year. Details of the same are available in 

the Corporate Governance Report section of the Annual Report.

5. BOARD COMMITTEES

 Presently, the Company has three Board Committees with the following members:

 

 

Audit Committee

 

Mr. Ashok Ahuja, Chairman 

Mr. Naveen Narang, Member

Mr. Jawahar Lal, Member

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

 

Mr.  Jawahar Lal, Chairman
Mr. Satish Chander Narang, Member 
Mr. Ashok Ahuja, Member

Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Ms. Mansi Narang,  Chairperson
Mr.  Jawahar Lal, Member 

Mr. Ashok Ahuja , Member

Details of the Committee Meetings are available in the Corporate Governance Report section of the Annual Report.
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6. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

 As required under Section 134(5) of the Act, your Board of Directors to the best of their 

knowledge and ability confirm that: -

 i. in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have 

been followed and there are no material departures;

 ii. they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true 

and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and 

of the profit of the Company for that period;

 iii. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 

irregularities;

 iv. they  have  prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

 v. they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and 

such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively;

 vi. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

7. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 In accordance with the Act and Accounting Standard (AS) - 21 on Consolidated Financial 

Statements read with AS - 23 on Accounting for Investments in Associates, the Audited 

Consolidated Financial Statements is provided in the Annual Report.

8. SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

 As on 31st March, 2021, your Company had 2 (Two) Subsidiary Companies i.e., Icon 

Realcon Private Limited and Maxheights Realtors Limited and 1 (One) Associate Company 

i.e., Max Heights Developers Private Limited. There has been no material change in the 

nature of the business of the subsidiaries. 

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing the salient 

features of Financial Statements of the Company's subsidiaries in the Form no. AOC-1 is 

attached herewith as Annexure-II which forms part of this report.
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 Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the Financial Statements of the 

Company, Consolidated Financial Statements along with relevant documents and separate 

Audited Financial Statements in respect of subsidiaries, are available on the website of the 

Company.

 The policy determining the material subsidiaries as approved is available on the website of 

the Company at web link .http://www.maxheights.com/Policies.aspx#

9. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

 The Company provides a gender friendly workplace and has complied with provisions 

relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment 

of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and constituted 

an Internal Complaints Committee accordingly. During the year under review, there were no 

cases filed pursuant to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal) Act, 2013.

 None of the employees of your Company is covered under the provisions of Rule 5(2) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

 Disclosures relating to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of 

the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 are also provided in Annexure-III.

10. LISTING INFORMATION

 The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and 

Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE). However, the Application for delisting of the equity 

shares of the Company from the CSE is pending with the Exchange.

 The payment of listing fees for the year 2020-21 has been made to BSE Limited.

11. DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES

 The securities of the Company are admitted with NSDL and CDSL, the ISIN allotted to the 

Company is INE393F01010.

12. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

 To comply with the conditions of Corporate Governance, pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read 

with Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations with the Stock Exchanges, a Report on 

Corporate Governance, Declaration by Managing Director and Auditor's Certificate, are 

included in the Annual Report as Annexure – IV to the Board Report.

http://www.maxheights.com/Policies.aspx
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13. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

 During the Financial Year 2020-21, the provisions of Section 135(1) of the Act read with the 

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are not applicable.

14. RISK MANAGEMENT

 The Board has approved the Risk Management Policy of the Company. The Company's risk 

management framework is designed to address risks intrinsic to operations, financials and 

compliances arising out of the overall strategy of the Company. The Company manages, 

monitors and reports on the principal risks and uncertainties that can impact its ability to 

achieve its objectives. The responsibility for management of risks vests with the Managers/ 

officers responsible for the day- to-day conduct of the affairs of the Company, which lead to 

identification of areas where risk management processes, need to be strengthened. Annual 

update is provided to the Board on the effectiveness of the Company's risk management 

systems and policies.

15. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS & INTERNAL AUDIT

 The Company has adequate internal financial controls with respect to the financial 

statements, commensurate with the size and scale of the operations of the Company. During 

the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in operation has 

been observed. Internal audit of the Company has been carried out during the year. The Audit 

Committee reviews the internal audit findings, provides guidance on internal controls and 

ensures that the internal audit recommendations are implemented.

16. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

 The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Act have 

been disclosed in the Financial Statements.

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

 During the year under review, all the contracts / arrangements/ transactions entered by the 

Company during the Financial Year under review with related parties were in ordinary course 

of business / on an arm's length basis.

 The details in AOC-2 of transactions entered into by the Company with its related party are 

provided in  Annexure- V to this Report.

 All Related Party Transactions were placed before the Audit Committee for approval. 

Omnibus approval of the Audit Committee was obtained for the transactions which were of a 

repetitive nature. The transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted 
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were reviewed and statements giving details of all related party transactions were placed 

before the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. The Policy on materiality of related party 

transactions and dealing with related party transactions as approved by the Board is 

available on the website of the Company at web link . http://www.maxheights.com/Policies.aspx#

18. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS / COURT / 

TRIBUNALS

 During the year under review, no significant or material orders were passed by the 

Regulators / Courts / Tribunals which would impact the going concern status of the Company 

and its future operations.

19. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

 The details of Annual return is available on the website of the Company at the weblink 

http://www.maxheights.com/AnnualReport.aspx#.

20. STATUTORY AUDITORS  AND  AUDIT REPORT

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act read with Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, M/s Praveen Om Jain & Co., Chartered 

Accountants (Firm Registration No. No.019993N), were appointed as Statutory Auditors 
 from the conclusion of the 36th Annual General Meeting (AGM)  held on 29th September, 

2017 till the conclusion of the 41st  AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2022.

 The comments made by the Auditors' in their Report are self- explanatory and do not call for 

any further comments. The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or 

adverse remark.

21. COST RECORDS

 The Company is not required to maintain cost records in terms of Section 148 of the Act read 

with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014.

22. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR & SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed    

M/s P B & Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of 

the Company, for the Financial Year 2020-21. The Secretarial Audit Report given by M/s. P B 

& Associates, Company Secretaries, in MR- 3 is provided under Annexure- VI to this Report.

http://www.maxheights.com/Policies.aspx
http://www.maxheights.com/Policies.aspx
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 The comments made by the Secretarial Auditor are self - explanatory and do not require any 

further comments. The Secretarial Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification, 

reservation or adverse remark.

 Pursuant to Circular No. CIR/ CFD/ CMD1/ 27/ 2019 dated 8th February, 2019, issued by the 

SEBI, the Company has obtained Annual Secretarial Compliance Report from a Practicing 

Company Secretary on compliance of all applicable SEBI Regulations and circulars/ 

guidelines issued there under and the copy of the same has been submitted with the Stock 

Exchanges within the prescribed due date.

23. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

 Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under 

Regulation 34(2) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI Listing Regulations'), is presented in a separate 

section forming a part of the Annual Report.

24. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO

 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

 Steps taken on conservation of energy and impact thereof: Efforts to conserve 

electricity by operating only necessary lights, fittings and fixtures were made during the 

financial year 2020-21.

 Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:  NIL 
 Capital investment on energy conservation equipment: NIL. 

 TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

 (I) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption and benefits derived as a 

result of the above efforts, e.g. product improvement, cost reduction, product 

development, import substitution, etc : Nil

 (II) No technology was/ is imported during the last 3 years reckoned from the beginning 

of the Financial Year,
 
 Expenditure incurred on research and development – NIL 

25. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 There were no foreign exchange earnings or outflow during the Financial Year 2020-21.
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26. ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM

 The Vigil Mechanism Policy of the Company is formulated in terms of Section 177 (9) of the 

Act read with the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations and thereby also incorporates 

Whistle Blower Policy, to address the genuine concerns, if any, of the directors and 

employees. As per the said policy protected disclosures can be made by the whistle blower to 

the dedicated e-mail / telephone line/ letter to Chairman of Audit Committee.

 The details of the Policy on Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy, as approved by the 

Board have been stated in the Report on Corporate Governance available on the website of 

the Company at web link http://www.maxheights.com/Policies.aspx#.

27. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

 During the year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial 

Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

28. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

 Your directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and                     

co-operation received from the financial institutions, banks, Government authorities, 

customers, vendors and shareholders during the year under review.

 Your directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the 

committed services by the Company's executives, staff and workers.

By Order of the Board
For MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTUCTURE LIMITED

Sd/-
Naveen Narang

Date : 14th August, 2021 Managing Director & CFO
Place : New Delhi  DIN : 00095708

Max Heights Infrastructure Limited
Regd. Off.: SD-65, Tower Apartment,
Pitampura, New Delhi- 110034.
CIN:L67120DL1981PLC179487
E-Mail ID: maxinfra1981@gmail.com

http://www.maxheights.com/Policies.aspx
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Annexure-I

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY
(DIRECTORS, KMP & SENIOR MANAGEMENT)

INTRODUCTION

In pursuance of the Company's philosophy to consider its employees as its invaluable assets, to pay 

equitable remuneration to all the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and employees of the 

Company, to harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the 

Company and, in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, this policy on nomination and 

remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management has been formulated 

by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.

OBJECTIVE

The objective and purpose of the Policy are as given below:

1. To  lay down criteria and terms and conditions with regard to identifying persons who are 

qualified to become Directors (Executive and Non-Executive) and persons who may be 

appointed in Senior Management and Key Managerial positions and to determine their 

remuneration.

2. To carry out evaluation of the performance of Directors, as well as Key Managerial and 

Senior Management Personnel.

3. To provide them reward linked directly to their effort, performance, dedication and 

achievement of Organization's goals as entrusted on them.

4. To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term retention of talented 

managerial persons and create competitive advantage. In the context of the aforesaid 

objectives the following policy has been framed and recommended by the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee and adopted by the Board of Directors.
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PART – A 

POLICY FOR APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR 

MANAGEMENT APPOINTMENT

1. The candidate for a position at Director, KMP or Senior Management level is met by the 

Managing Director in consultation with the other Directors. The interview is targeted at 

assessing the candidate on his/ her functional & leadership capabilities and cultural fitment 

to the organization.

2. The MD assesses the shortlisted candidates.

3. The selected candidate's details and the proposed compensation is shared with the 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee for their review and suggestions. The same is 

shared with the Board at the next board meeting.

TERM/ TENURE

The tenure for Directors shall be governed by the terms defined in the Companies Act, 2013. 

However, the tenure for other KMP and Senior Management Personnel will be governed by Terms of 

Appointment in accordance with the Recruitment Policy of the Company.

EVALUATION

The performance of the KMP and Senior Management Personnel is evaluated at regular intervals 

(half yearly/ yearly) by the Managing Director. The performance evaluation of Independent Directors 

shall be done by the Board, excluding the Director being evaluated, basis the contributions made to 

the Board deliberations on various matters including business strategy, financial strategy, 

operations, cost and risk management, etc., and suggestions given in this regard.

REMOVAL

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made 

thereunder or under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Managing Director may 

recommend, to the Committee and the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, 

subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations.

For other KMP or Senior Management Personnel, the removal will be governed by the Terms of 

Appointment in accordance with the Recruitment Policy of the Company and the subsequent 

approval of the Managing Director.

RETIREMENT

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Managing Director will have 

the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position / 

remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.
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PART – B

POLICY RELATING TO EVALUATION AND REMUNERATION OF THE KMP AND SENIOR 

MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

EVALUATION PROCESS:

The three Point Rating scale for performance review of Executive Director, KMP, and Senior 

Management is to be followed:

1. Rating on Basic Job Responsibilities: indicating whether the basic job responsibilities have 

been met during the year.

2. Rating on Goals: Annual rating on each goal on a five-point scale. Weighted average of the 

ratings is calculated to arrive at a 'Weighted Goal Score'.

3. Rating on Capabilities Factors: The qualitative aspects of the performance is assessed 

using the Capabilities Factors by the supervisor on a five-point scale.

Based on a holistic view of the Three Point Rating, the supervisor provides an overall Rating. This 

rating is reviewed by the Managing Director along with the immediate reporting officer, who does a 

Qualitative review of the performance based on the efforts put in by the employee, results achieved 

and impact of the external and internal factors, to arrive at a 'Final Annual Rating'.

The revision in the total remuneration is directly linked to the 'Final Annual Rating' for all employees.

1. The remuneration/ compensation/ commission etc. to the KMP and Senior Management 

Personnel will be determined by the Managing Director in consultation with other Directors 

(except the Independent Directors) in accordance with the Recruitment Policy of the 

Company, which is based upon the Final Annual Rating, employee potential and market 

benchmark compensation. The revised remuneration is shared with the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee for review.

2. The remuneration/ compensation/ commission etc. shall be subject to the prior/ post 

approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever required.

*****
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MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
SD-65, TOWER APARTMENT, PITAMPURA, NEW DELHI - 110034 CIN: L67120DL1981PLC179487

Form AOC -I

Annexure-II (Pursuant to the First Provision to Sub -Section (3) of Section 129 Read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries/ Associate Companies/ Joint Ventures

Sl. No.
 

Particulars
 

  

1
 

Serial No.
 

I
 

II
 

2
 

Name of the Subsidiary
 

Icon Realcon
 

Private 
Limited

 
Max Heights  Realtors 

Limited ( Formerly Known 

as Max Heights  

Finance Limited )  

3 The date since when subsidiary was acquired 30th April, 2015 25th April, 2015  

4 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the 
holding company's reporting period 

 
NA  

 
NA 

5
 

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the 
relevant Financial Year in the case of original subsidiaries. 

 
NA 

 
NA  

6 Share Capital 1,00,00,000.00 2,00,00,000.00  

7 Reserves & surplus (1,40,98,108.67) 42,82,505.54  
8 Total assets 1,01,85,44,029.28 2,47,77,875.54  
9 Total liabilities 1,02,26,42,137.95 4,95,370.00  
10 Investments -  -  
11 Turnover 2,11,59,716.53 1,15,80,863.00  
12 Profit before taxation (1,42,86,618.97) 18,49,052.70  
13
 

Provision for taxation
 

(2,406.00)
 

4,65,370.00
 

14
 

Profit after taxation
 

(1,42,84,212.97)
 

13,83,672.70
 

15
 

Proposed Dividend
 

-
 

-
 

16
 

% of Shareholding
 

74.00
 

100.00
 

Part "A": Subsidiaries                                                              
( Amount in ` )
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S.No. Name of Associates/ Joint Ventures Max Heights Developers Private Limited (Associate Company) 

1 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date  

2 
Date on which the Associate or Joint 
Venture was associated and acquired 

17th March 2009 

3 

Shares of Associate/ Joint Ventures 
Held by the Company on the year end        

 NA 

No. 2,50,000 

Amount of Investment in Associates/     
Joint Venture   ₹ 25,00,000/- 

Extent of Holding % 47.17 

4 Description of how there is significant 
influence 1.   One out of two directors is common 

 2.  The Company holds more than 20% of paid up share capital of 

Max Heights Developers  Private Limited 

5
 

Reason why the associate/ joint 
venture is not consolidated 

N.A  

6
 

Net worth attributable to Shareholding as 
per latest audited Balance Sheet 

 

7 Profit /Loss for the year  

(i) Considered in Consolidation ₹  7,08,540.00/- 

(ii) Not Considered in Consolidation ₹  7,93,560.00/- 

Part  "B": Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Sec�on 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate companies and Joint Ventures

In terms of our report attached. 
For Praveen Om Jain & Co. 
Chartered Accountants Firm 
Regd. No. 019993N 

 
 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Praveen Kumar 
Proprietor
Membership No. 503734

Date : 14.08.2021
Place : New Delhi

Sd/-
Vandita Arora
Company Secretary
M.No. 61149

Sd/-
Satish Chander Narang
Chairman                 
DIN: 00095693

Sd/-
Naveen Narang
Managing Director & CFO
DIN: 00095708

₹ 37.69/- per Equity Share of ₹ 10/- each
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Annexure-III

MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

SD-65, TOWER APARTMENT, PITAMPURA, NEW DELHI - 110034

CIN: L67120DL1981PLC179487

Particulars of employees in accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act”) read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are as under:-

1. Details of Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and median 

Remuneration

Name of Directors and Key 

Managerial Personnel  

Designation  Ratio of remuneration of director/ 

KMP to median remuneration of  
employees

 

 

% increase in 

remuneration in 

the Financial Year 

2020-21

Mr. Satish Chander Narang

 

Non -Executive Director and 

Chairman

 

-

 

-

Mr. Naveen Narang #

 

Managing Director & Chief 

Financial

 

Officer

 

1.30:1

 

25

Ms. Mansi Narang

 

Non -Executive

 

Director

 

-

 

-

Mr. Jawahar Lal

 

Independent Director

 

-

 

-

Mr. Kartar Chand Ahuja *

 

Independent

 

Director

 

-

 

-

Mr . Ashok Ahuja

 

Independent

 

Director

 

-

 

-

Mr. Gourav** Independent Director _ _

Ms. Vandita Arora Company Secretary 1:1 -

* Ceased to be the Independent Director of the Company with effect from 27th September, 2020.

** Appointed as Additional Director (being categorized as Independent Director) with effect from 

24th  December, 2020. 

# Mr. Naveen Narang voluntarily gave up his entire remuneration which he was drawing in his capacity of 

being the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company from 1st July, 2020 onwards, 

owing to the loss of revenue of the Company, due to the COVID- 19 pandemic.
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Notes

1. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 2021: 3

2. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 

: Nil

3. Compared to the previous year 2019-20, the figure for the current year 2020-21 reflects 

that:

 i) Median remuneration of employees is ₹ 3,85,000/- and average remuneration of 

employees is ₹ 5,31,108.30/-.

 ii) The remuneration of Mr. Naveen Narang was increased from  2,00,000/- per month ₹

during the year 2019-20 to  2,50,000/- per month during the year 2020-21.  ₹

The remuneration of the Managing Director was increased keeping in view his duties 

and responsibilities, the performance of the Company and prevailing industry standards.

 However, Mr. Naveen Narang voluntarily gave up his entire remuneration with effect from 1st July, 

2020 onwards, owing to the loss of revenue of the Company, due to the COVID- 19 pandemic.

4. The remuneration paid as above was as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

5. For the purpose of calculating median and average remuneration, the remuneration of only those 

employees is  considered who were employed for  the whole financia l  year

 2020-21.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date : 14.08.2021
Place : New Delhi

Sd/-
Satish Chander Narang
Chairman
DIN: 00095693

Sd/-
Naveen Narang
Managing Director & CFO
DIN: 00095708

Max Heights Infrastructure Limited
Regd. Off.: SD-65, Tower Apartment,
Pitampura, New Delhi- 110034 
CIN: L67120DL1981PLC179487
E-Mail ID: maxinfra1981@gmail.com
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ANNEXURE – IV 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTUCTURE LIMITED

In accordance with Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing Regulations), the Report containing the 

details of Corporate Governance system is as follows:

1. Company's Philosophy on Code of Governance:

 It has been a constant endeavor on the part of the Company to achieve excellence in the 

Corporate Governance by following the principles of transparency, accountability and 

integrity in functioning so as to constantly enhance value for all stakeholders and fulfill the 

social obligations entrusted upon the corporate sector.

 The Company has also complied with the requirements of Corporate Governance Code, the 

disclosure requirements of which are given below:

2. The Board of Directors:

 i. The Chairman of the Company is a promoter Non-Executive Director and one half of 

the Directors on the Board are Independent Directors.

 ii. The Composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is as per the following 

details:

S. No. Name of the Director   
 

Category 
 Executive/ Non- Executive 

 

Remuneration
paid during the F.Y 

2020-21 ( Amount In  ₹ )

1 Mr. Satish Chander Narang  
 

Promoter-Chairman

 

Non-Executive

 

Nil

2 Mr. Naveen Narang ##

 

Promoter-Managing Director

 
 

Executive

 

5,00,000

3 Ms. Mansi Narang

 

Promoter

 

Non -Executive

 

Nil

4 Mr. Ashok Ahuja

 

Independent

 

Non -Executive

 

Nil

5 Mr. Jawahar Lal

 

Independent

 

Non -Executive

 

Nil

6 Mr. Kartar Chand Ahuja* Independent Non -Executive Nil

7 Mr. Gourav # Independent Non -Executive Nil
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* Mr. Kartar Chand Ahuja ceased to be the Independent Director of the Company due to his sudden 

demise with effect from 27th September, 2020.

# Mr. Gourav was appointed as an Additional Director (Independent) with effect from 

24th December, 2020.

## Mr. Naveen Narang voluntarily gave up his entire remuneration which he was drawing in his 

capacity of being the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company from 1st July, 

2020 onwards, owing to the loss of revenue of the Company, due to the COVID- 19 pandemic.

The details of directorship, committee memberships and chairmanship of various 
committees held by the Directors is as follows:

S. No. Name of the Director 
Number of

Directorships
Number of Committee/s

Membership/s Chairmanship

1

 
Mr. Satish Chander Narang

 
7

 
1 Nil

2

 

Mr. Naveen Narang

 

6

 

1 Nil

3

 

Ms. Mansi Narang

 

1

 

Nil 1

4

 

Mr. Ashok Ahuja

 

3

 

2 1

5 Mr. Jawahar Lal 6 2 1

6 Mr. Gourav 1 Nil Nil

 None of the above Directors is a director in any other Listed Company except Max 

Heights Infrastructure Limited.

iii. The details of the Board Meetings held during the year and attendance thereat are 

as follows:

S. No. 
Date of the Board 

Meeting
 

 
Total No. of Directors Associated

as on the date of meeting
No. of Directors who

 attended the meeting

1 27/06/2020 6  6

2 11/07/2020
 

6
 

6

3 14/08/2020
 

6
 

6

4 20/08/2020
 

6
 

6

5 10/10/2020

 
5

 
5

6 13/11/2020

 

5

 

5

7 24/12/2020

 

6

 

6

8 12/02/2021 6 6
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iv. The Board Meetings were held within a gap of 120 (One Hundred and Twenty Days) 

between two meetings.

v. The details of the Board Meetings attended by each of Director are as follows:

S. No. Name of the Director 
No. of Board  Meetings 

held  
Total No. of  Meetings attended

1 Mr. Satish Chander Narang
 

8
 

8

2 Mr. Naveen Narang
 

8
 

8

3 Ms. Mansi Narang
 

8
 

8

4 Mr. Ashok Ahuja

 
8

 
8

5 Mr. Jawahar Lal

 

8

 

8

6 Mr. Kartar Chand Ahuja *

 

4

 

4

7 Mr. Gourav# 2 2

* Mr. Kartar Chand Ahuja ceased to be the Director of the Company with effect from 27th October, 

2020 due to his sudden demise.
 # Mr. Gourav was appointed as an Additional Director, Categorized as Independent Director with 

effect from 24th December, 2020.

vi. The last 39th Annual General Meeting held on 28thSeptember, 2020 was attended  

by Mr. Satish Chander Narang, Chairman and Non-Executive Director, Mr. Naveen 

Narang, Managing Director, Ms. Mansi Narang, Non-Executive Director and Mr. 

Ashok Ahuja the Independent Director of the Company.

vii. Code of Conduct

 

 The Code of Conduct for all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel, laid 

d o w n  b y  t h e  B o a r d ,  i s  a v a i l a b l e  o n  t h e  C o m p a n y ' s  w e b s i t e 

(www.maxheights.com). The Code of Conduct is applicable to all the Board 

Members and Senior Management Executives. The Code is circulated annually 

among all the Board members and Senior Management; the compliance is affirmed 

by them annually. A declaration signed by Mr. Naveen Narang, Managing Director & 

CFO regarding affirmation of the compliance with the Code of Conduct by the Board 

members and senior management. The same is provided as to this Annexure IV (a) 

report.
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viii. Disclosure of Relationships between directors inter-se;

 Mr. Satish Chander Narang, Mr. Naveen Narang and Ms. Mansi Narang, Directors 

of the Company are related to each other.  Mr. Satish Chander Narang (Chairman) is 

the father of Mr. Naveen Narang (Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer) 

and Ms. Mansi Narang (Non-Executive Director) is the wife of Mr. Naveen Narang. 

 Apart from this, none of the other directors are related to each other.

ix. Number of shares and convertible instruments held by Non- Executive Directors;   

 Mr. Satish Chander Narang, Chairman and Ms. Mansi Narang, Non-Executive 

Director, hold following shares in the Company.

S. No. Name  Number of Shares  
1.

 
Mr. Satish Chander Narang

 
17,36,251

 2.
 

Ms. Mansi Narang
 

3,84,396
 

 Other than Equity Shares, there is no other class of security, issued by the Company.

 x. Web link for details of familiarization Programme imparted to independent directors. 

Framework for Familiarization Programme imparted to independent directors is 

made available on the website of the Company at .  h�p://www.maxheights.com/Policies.aspx# 

3.  Audit Committee:

 i. The terms of reference of Audit Committee are stipulated by the Board of Directors, 

in accordance with the Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

 ii. The Composition of the Audit Committee and the details of the meeting attended by 

the Directors are given below:

Name of the Member 
 

Category 
No. of Meetings 
held during  the 
Financial Year 

2020-21  

No. of Meetings
attended during the 

Financial Year

2020-21

Mr. Ashok Ahuja Independent Non-Executive Director –

Chairman 
5  5  

Mr. Naveen Narang
 

Promoter Executive Director – Member 5
 

5
 

Mr. Jawahar Lal
 

Independent Non-Executive Director – 
Member 

5
 

5
 

http://www.maxheights.com/Policies.aspx
http://www.maxheights.com/Policies.aspx
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iii. The details of the Audit Committee Meetings during the year and attendance thereat 

are as follows:

S. No. Date of the Audit Committee 
Meeting

  

Total No. of Directors
entitled to attend the meeting  

No. of directors who attended 
the meeting

1. 27/06/2020 3  3

2. 14/08/2020
 

3
 

3

3. 20/08/2020
 

3
 

3

4. 13/11/2020
 

3
 

3

5. 12/02/2021 3 3

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

  i. The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are 

stipulated by the Board of Directors, in accordance Regulation 19 of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations.

 ii. The Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the details of 

the meeting attended by the Directors are given below:

Name of the Member
  

Category
 

No. of  Meetings held 
during the Financial

Year 2020-21 

No. of Meetings
attended during the 

Financial year 2020-21 

Mr. Jawahar Lal Non-Executive

 
Independent

 
Director –

 Chairman
 

 5

 

5

 
 Mr. Satish Chander Narang

 
Promoter

 

Non-Executive Director –

 
Member

 

5

 
5

Mr. Ashok Ahuja Non-Executive Independent Director –
Member

 
5 5

* The details of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting during the year 

and attendance there at are as follows:
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S. No. Date of Nomination and Remuneration   
Committee Meeting

 

Total No. of Directors
entitled to attend the meeting

No. of directors who  
attended the meeting

1. 27/06/2020
 

3
 

3

2. 14/08/2020
 

3
 

3

3. 10/10/2020
 

3
 

3

4. 24/12/2020

 

3

 

3

5. 12/02/2021 3 3

 iii. The Company paid remuneration to Mr. Naveen Narang, Executive Director of the 

Company, for his services rendered to the Company in his capacity of being the 

Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer, by the way of salary and perquisites, 

based on the approval of the Board and the Shareholders of the Company, which is 

separately disclosed in the financial statements. The remuneration paid to him is 

determined keeping in view the industry benchmark and the relative performance of 

the Company. The minutes of the Committee are reviewed by the Board. However, 

Mr. Naveen Narang voluntarily gave up his entire remuneration which he was 

drawing in his capacity of being the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer 

owing to the loss of revenue of the Company, due to the COVID-19 pandemic from 

1st July, 2020 onwards.

 iv. Details pertaining to the performance evaluation criteria for all the directors and 

payment of remuneration to all the directors is mentioned in the Nomination and 

Remuneration Policy which forms the part of this Annual Report.

5. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

 i. Ms. Mansi Narang, Promoter Non-Executive Director is the Chairperson of the 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

  ii. The details of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee during the year and 

attendance thereat are as follows:
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S. No. 

Date of Shareholders/ Investor’s 
Grievance Committee Meeting

 

Total No. of Directors
entitled to attend the meeting

 No. of Directors who attended 
the meeting

1.

 
27/06/2020 3

 
3

2.

 

14/08/2020 3

 

3

3.

 

13/11/2020 3 3

4. 12/02/2020 3 3

 iii. The Composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee and details of the 

meeting attended by Director/s are as follows:

Name Category No. of Meetings held during 
the Financial Year 2020-21  

No. of Meeting/s attended during
the Financial Year 2020-21

Ms. Mansi Narang

 

Promoter Non- Executive
 Director –

 
Chairperson

 

4
 

4

Mr. Ashok Ahuja

 

Independent Non - Executive 
Director –

 
Member

 

4

 

4

Mr. Jawahar Lal 

 

Independent Non -Executive 

Director –Member

4

 

4

 iv. Name and designation of the Compliance Officer

Name and Designation Ms. Vandita Arora, Company Secretary  

Telephone 011-2731  4646, 2731  2522  
E-mail Id

 
cs@maxheights.com

 

 v. Number of shareholders' complaints received so far

   During the year under review the Company has not received any complaints from 

any shareholders.

 vi. Number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders:

   Not  Applicable

 vii. Number of pending complaints:

  Not  Applicable
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6. Subsidiary Companies' Monitoring Framework:

 All subsidiary companies are managed by their Boards having the rights and obligations to 

manage such companies in the best interest of their stakeholders. The Company monitors 

performance of the subsidiary companies, inter alia, by the following means:

 a. Financial statements, in particular investments made by unlisted subsidiary 

companies, are reviewed quarterly by the Company's  Audit Committee.

 b. Minutes of Board meetings of unlisted subsidiary companies are placed before the 

Company's Board regularly.

 c. A statement containing all the significant transactions and arrangements entered 

into by unlisted subsidiary companies is placed before the Company's Board.

7. General Body meetings:

 Location and time, where last three AGMs held.

Date Location Time  Special Resolution Passed

28/09/2020

 

Through Video Conferencing

 

 

 01:00 P.M.

 

Yes, Special Resolution was passed :

 To approve Re-appointment of Mr. Naveen Narang 
(DIN: 00095708) as the Managing Director of the 
Company.

 

30/09/2019

 

Khushi Banquet, MP Mall, MP Block, 
Pitampura, New Delhi-110034 

 

 

12:30 A.M

 

 

Yes, Special Resolution was passed :

To Appoint Mr. Kartar Chand Ahuja  
(DIN.00457440) as an Independent Director of the 
Company.

 

29/09/2018

  

 

11:00 A.M

Yes, Special Resolutions were passed :

i.

 

To appoint Mr. Jawahar Lal (DIN. 00761139) 
as an Independent Director of the Company.

ii. To Revise the terms of remuneration of  
Mr. Naveen Narang, Managing Director         
(DIN: 00095708) of the Company.



Annual Report 2020-2021 49

8. Means of communication: 

 Quarterly Results

 The quarterly results, published in the Performa prescribed by the SEBI Listing Regulations 

are approved and taken on record by the Board of Directors. The approved results are 

forthwith uploaded on the BSE Listing Center.

 Newspapers

 The quarterly results are normally published in Financial Express (English) and Jansatta 

(Hindi)/ Business Standard (English) and Business Standard (Hindi). The results are also 

posted on the Company's website .h�p://maxheights.com/Financials.aspx

9. General Shareholder Information:

 i. AGM : Date, time and venue

  The Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to be held on 

Wednesday, 29th September, 2021 at 12:00 P.M. through Video Conferencing.

 ii. Financial Year

  The Financial Year of the Company ended on 31st March, 2021.

 iii. Date of Book closure

  The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain 

closed from Saturday, 25th September, 2021 to Wednesday 29th September, 2021 

(both days inclusive).

 iv. Listing on Stock Exchanges

  The Company's shares remain listed on the following two Stock Exchanges in India:

  s Bombay Stock Exchange, 25th Floor, P J Towers Dalal Street, Mumbai, 

Maharashtra- 400001, and

  s Calcutta Stock Exchange, 7 Lyons Range, Kolkata-700001.*

http://maxheights.com/Financials.aspx


Annual Report 2020-2021 50

   * The Board of Directors of the Company passed a resolution on 4th September, 2012 for 

delisting of securities from Calcutta Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations 2009 and 

the application for the same is pending with the Exchange.

 v. Stock Code:

i. Bombay Stock Exchange  534338

ii. Calcutta Stock Exchange

 
28191

iii. International Securities Identification Number 
(ISIN) of Equity Shares INE393F01010

vi. Market Price Data: High, Low during each month in last financial year

* Information is taken from the website of BSE i.e.www.bseindia.com.

BOMBAY STOCK EXCHANGE 

 
Month 

 
High 

 
Low 

 
No. of Shares 

Apr -20 10.05 648 

May -20  11.00 2,382 

Jun -20  10.70 4,736 

Jul -20  10.75 4,779 

Aug -20  10.75 9,027 

Sept -20  10.50 4,539 

Oct -20  11.00 3,474 

Nov -20  9.50 4,668 

Dec -20  10.35 8,292 
Jan -21  11.76 9,331 

Feb -21  10.20 13,816 

Mar -21 

11.20 

11.40

11.70

11.60

12.49

12.45

12.10

11.60

13.85
13.95

15.45

15.00 13.90 15,239 

http://www.bseindia.com/
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The Share of the Company continued to be listed on the Calcutta Stock Exchange, however 

no trading was carried out during the financial year, thus no data is available in respect of 

market price.

vii. Registrar and Transfer Agents

Name and Address
 

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited  
Add: 

 
D-153/A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase – I,

New Delhi –
 

110020
 Telephone

 
+91 (0) 11 6473 2681/

 

6473 2682

 +91 (0) 11 2681 2682/

 

83

 E-mail Id admin@skylinerta.com

viii. Share Transfer System

 Securities lodged for transfer at the Registrar's address are normally processed 

within 15 days from the date of lodgment, if the documents are clear in all respects.
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x. Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

 Total 1,55,11,375 of shares of Company constituting 99.37%, are in dematerialized 

form out of which 29.30% of shares are dematerialized with the CDSL and 70.08% of 

shares are dematerialized with the NSDL.

xi. GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or any Convertible instruments

 The Company has not issued GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or any Convertible 

instruments during the year.

xii. Plant Locations

 Not Applicable

xiii. Address for Correspondence

 SD-65, Tower Apartment, Pitampura, New Delhi – 110034

 Ph. No. 011-2731 4646, 011-2731 2522, 011-2731 8772 

ix. Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2021

Share holding   Number of Shareholders  % to Total Numbers  No. of Shares  % to Total Amount

Up To 500  629 78.92 32,432  0.21

501 To 1000  30 3.76 24,792  0.16

1001 To 2000  11 1.38 16,632  0.11

2001 To 3000  8 1.00 22,567  0.14

3001 To 4000  2 0.25 6,925  0.04

4001 To 5000  5 0.63 22,903  0.15

5001 To 10000 26 3.26 2,05,815  1.32

1,00,01 and 
Above  

86 10.79 1,52,77,159  97.87

Total  797 100 1,56,09,225  100
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10. Disclosures:            

 Related Party Transactions

 During the year there was no materially significant related party transaction/s that may have 

potential conflict with the interests of company at large.

 Web link for policy determining the 'Material Subsidiaries'

 The policy determining the material subsidiaries as approved is available on the website 

of the Company at web link h�p://www.maxheights.com/Policies.aspx#.

 Web link for Policy on dealing with related party transactions and Policy on 

materiality of Related Party Transactions and on dealing with Related Party 

Transactions

 The policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party 

transactions as approved by the Board is available on the website of the Company at web 

link h�p://www.maxheights.com/Policies.aspx#.

 Statutory Compliances, Penalties and structures

 The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any 

other statutory authority, on matter/s related to capital markets, during the last three years. 

No penalty or strictures has been imposed on the Company by these authorities.

 Whistle Blower policy

 The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower policy to provide a mechanism whereby the 

employees are given a direct access to the Chairman and the Audit Committee to report 

about the unethical behavior, fraud and violation of Company's Code of Conduct and to 

provide sufficient provisions for the protection against the victimization of employees who 

avail such mechanism and it is affirmed that no personnel has been denied access to the 

Audit Committee.

 Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the 

non-mandatory requirements of this regulation.

 The Company has complied with mandatory requirements of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

http://www.maxheights.com/Policies.aspx
http://www.maxheights.com/Policies.aspx
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 Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities

 Not  Applicable

 Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified 

institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A).

 Not  Any

 Non-acceptance of any recommendation of any committee of the board by the Board 

of Directors, which is mandatorily required during the financial year.

 Not  Any

11. Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice

 The certificate Required under Schedule V of SEBI Listing Regulations from a Company 

Secretary in Practice that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been 

debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors by the Board/ 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority has been received and was 

placed before the Board. The same is provided as Annexure IV (b) to this report. 

`

12. Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a 

consolidated basis, to the Statutory Auditor and all entities in the network 

firm/network entity of which the Statutory Auditor is a part: 

 ₹ 1,25,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Twenty Five Thousand only)

13. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

 a. Number of complaints  filed  during  the  financial  year  :  0 

 b. Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: NA

 c. Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: 0
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14. Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of sub-paras (2) 

to (10) of Para C of Schedule V

 Not any
 
15. The extent to which the discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule 

II have been adopted.

 The discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II have not been adopted.

16. The disclosures of the compliance with corporate governance requirements 

specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of 

Regulation 46

 The Company has complied with the corporate governance requirements specified in 

Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of SEBI Listing Regulations.

17. Compliance Certificate

 Compliance Certificate from practicing company secretaries regarding compliance of 

conditions of corporate governance is annexed with the Directors' Report.

18. CEO and CFO Certification

 The Certificate required under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, duly signed by               

Mr. Naveen Narang, the Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer of the Company, was 

placed before the Board. The same is provided as Annexure IV(c) to this report.

19. The Certificate of Compliance as stipulated under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of 

the SEBI Listing Regulations is obtained from Statutory Auditor of the Company M/s Praveen 

Om Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants. The same is provided as Annexure IV (d) to this 

report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date : 14.08.2021
Place : New Delhi

Sd/-
Satish Chander Narang
Chairman
DIN: 00095693

Sd/-
Naveen Narang
Managing Director & CFO
DIN: 00095708

Max Heights Infrastructure Limited
Regd. Off.: SD-65, Tower Apartment,
Pitampura, New Delhi- 110034 
CIN: L67120DL1981PLC179487
E-Mail ID: maxinfra1981@gmail.com



Annual Report 2020-2021 56

Annexure IV (a)

Declaration

I, Naveen Narang, Managing Director & CFO of the Company, do hereby confirm that the Company 

has received from all the members of the Board and Senior Management, for the financial year ended 

31st March, 2021, a confirmation that they are in compliance with the Company's Code of Conduct.

By Order of the Board
For MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Sd/-
Naveen Narang

Date : 14.08.2021 Managing Director & CFO
Place : New Delhi  DIN : 00095708

Max Heights Infrastructure Limited
Regd. Off.: SD-65, Tower Apartment,
Pitampura, New Delhi- 110034.
CIN:L67120DL1981PLC179487
E-Mail ID: maxinfra1981@gmail.com

Annexure IV (b)

CERTIFICATE FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE

We, M/s P B & Associates, Company Secretaries having M. No. FCS- 7673 and COP. No. 6485 

hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or 

disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/ Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.
For P B & Associates Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Date : 14.08.2021         Pooja Bhatia 

Place : New Delhi  Mem. No.: FCS- 7673
COP: 6485
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Annexure IV(c)

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)/ Chief Financial Officer (CFO) certification

I Naveen Narang, Managing Director & CFO of Max Heights Infrastructure Limited certify to the 
Board that:

(a) I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 
31st March, 2021 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

 (I) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

 (ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and 
are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and 
regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 
company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company's code of 
conduct.

(c) I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting and that I have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the 
company pertaining to financial reporting and I have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit 
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which I 
are aware and the steps I have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) I have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee:

 (i) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

 
 (ii) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have 

been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

 (iii) Instances of significant fraud of which I have become aware and the involvement 
therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the 
company's internal control system over financial reporting.

By Order of the Board
For MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Sd/-
Naveen Narang

Date : 14.08.2021 Managing Director & CFO
Place : New Delhi  DIN : 00095708
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Annexure IV (d)

AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members
Max Heights Infrastructure Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement with Max Heights 
Infrastructure Limited ('the Company').

2. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, 
for the year ended on 31st March, 2021, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) 
to (i) of regulation 46(2) and Para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the Listing Regulations).

MANAGEMENTS' RESPONSIBILITY

3. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 
Management. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of 
internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of the 
Corporate Governance stipulated in Listing Regulations.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

4. Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, 
adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate 
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of 
the Company.

5. We have examined the books of accounts and other relevant records and documents 
maintained by the Company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the 
compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

OPINION

6. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and 
explanations provided to us and the representations provided by the Management, we 
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Para C and D 
of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations during the year ended 31st March, 2021.

7. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company.

For Praveen Om Jain & Co 
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Praveen Kumar Prop.
M.No. 530734
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 14-08-2021
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FORM NO. MR – 3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To 

The Members,

Max Heights Infrastructure Limited 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Max Heights Infrastructure Limited, a Company 

incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office at SD-

65, Pitampura, Delhi-110034 (hereinafter referred to as the 'Company') for the period commencing 
  from 1st April, 2020 till 31st March, 2021 (hereinafter referred to as the 'Audit Period'). Secretarial 

Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinions thereon. The audit was conducted on 

the basis of the information/documents submitted by the Company electronically and no 

physical audit was carried out due to Covid-19 restrictions imposed by the Government.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company and available on MCA portal and also the information provided 

by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives by way of Management 

Representation during the conduct of Secretarial Audit 2020-21, we hereby report that in our opinion, 
  the Company has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2021 

complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-

processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 

reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
st maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2021, according to the 

provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

Annexure - VI
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(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings; (to the extant applicable)

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

 (a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

 (b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; 

 (c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time;

 (d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 

client;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) The mandatory Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India with respect to Board Meetings and General Meetings.

(ii) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, and Standards etc. as mentioned above.

 

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-Executive 

Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 

took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors for the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings, agenda 

and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and where meeting was held 
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on shorter notice due compliance in respect of the same was made, and a system exists for seeking 

and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 

meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in 

the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the 

size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with the applicable laws, 

rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company has had no specific events/actions that 

have a major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, 

regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

This Certificate is issued within the limited available resources under the ongoing situation 

due to COVID-19 pandemic.

For P B & Associates

Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Pooja Bhatia

FCS:7673      

CP:6485

Place: New Delhi
 Dated:14th  August, 2021 

UDIN: F007673C000786242

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an 

integral part of this report.
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Annexure: A

The Members,

Max Heights Infrastructure Limited

Our report of the even date is to be read along with this letter

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The 

verification was done on the random test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 

secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 

reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the 

verification of procedures on the random test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 

the Company.

For P B & Associates

Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Pooja Bhatia

FCS: 7673      

CP:6485

Place: New Delhi                                                                  

Dated: 14th August, 2021 



Annual Report 2020-2021 64

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Max Heights Infrastructure Limited (also referred to as 'Max' or 'the Company'), a growing 

Real Estate Company is under the management control of the Promoters having rich 

experience in the Real Estate Sector. Various internal and external factors has resulted in the 

challenging and complex operating environment for the Company.

The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the 

Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 33 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI Listing Regulations) and the Indian 

Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) in India. Our Management accepts responsibility for the integrity and 

objectivity of these Financial  Statements, as well as for the various estimates and judgments used 

therein. The estimates and judgments relating to the Financial Statements have been made on a 

prudent and reasonable basis, so that these Financial Statements reflect in a true and fair manner the 

form and substance of transactions  and reasonably present our state of affairs, profits and cash 

flows for the Financial Year 2020-21.

I. OVER VIEW OF THE ECONOMY

 The COVID-19 pandemic is a once in a lifetime occurrence that has brought with it 

unimaginable suffering to people and to almost all sections of the economy. When the 

pandemic struck and led to nationwide lockdowns to curtail the transmission of disease, it 

was natural to fear that the global economy would stay in extreme stress of the kind not seen 

since the Great Depression and would have a long-lasting economic impact.

 The Financial Year 2020-21 was deeply impacted by the brunt of COVID-19 pandemic. 

According to International Monetary Fund, the global economy in 2020 was in deep 

recession and shrunk by 4.4%. India's Gross Domestic Product contracted by a whopping 

23.9% in the First Quarter of the Financial Year 2020-21 and 7.3% for the complete year.

 The Third quarter (October-December, 2020) saw a small positive growth of 0.4% compared 

to the same period in the previous year. The second advance estimates of national income 

for the Financial Year 2021 released by the Central Statistics Office (CSO) on 26th February, 

2021 anticipates the total contraction for the Financial Year 2021 to be 8% implying a 

significant 'V') shaped bounce-back in the second half of the year. The most recent IMF 

forecast has also raised India's GDP growth estimate for the Financial Year 2022 from 11.5% 

to 12.5%. If that were to occur, it will be the most significant growth turnaround among all the 

major nations of the world, including China.
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 Hopefully, a serious increase in the pace of vaccinations across the country will bring this 

surge down; and if we keep all enterprises and workers open for business, it should not affect 

the economy in any significant manner.

II. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

 As per the latest report of Indian Brand Equity Foundation (IBEF), the Real Estate Sector is 

one of the most globally recognized sectors. It is also expected that this sector will incur more 

non-resident Indian (NRI) investments in both the short term and the long term. Bengaluru, 

Ahmedabad, Pune, Chennai, Goa, Delhi and Dehradun are expected to be the most favored 

property investment destination for NRIs.

 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has given its approval for the Real 

Estate Investment Trust (REIT) platform, which will allow all kind of investors to invest in the 

Indian real estate market. It would create an opportunity worth Rs 1.25 trillion (US$ 19.65 

billion) in the Indian market in the coming years. Responding to an increasingly well-

informed consumer base and bearing in mind the aspect of globalization, Indian real estate 

developers have shifted gears and accepted fresh challenges. The most marked change 

has been the shift from family-owned businesses to that of professionally managed ones. 

Real estate developers, in meeting the growing need for managing multiple projects across 

cities, are also investing in centralized processes to source material and organize manpower 

and hiring qualified professionals in areas like project management, architecture and 

engineering.

 The growing flow of FDI in Indian real estate is encouraging increased transparency. 

Developers, in order to attract funding, have revamped their accounting and management 

systems to meet due diligence standards.

 According to Savills India, real estate demand for data centers is expected to increase by 

15-18 million sq. ft. by 2025.

III. OPPORTUNITIES  AND THREATS

 Infrastructure sector plays an important role in the growth and development of Indian 

economy. The Real Estate Sector comprises four sub sectors - housing, retail, hospitality, 

and commercial. The growth of this sector is well complemented by the growth of the 

corporate environment and the demand for office space as well as urban and semi-urban 

accommodations.

 In India, the real estate sector is the second-highest employment generator, after the 

agriculture sector. Real estate sector in India is expected to reach US$ 1 trillion by 2030. 
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By 2025, it will contribute 13% to country's GDP. Emergence of nuclear families, rapid 

urbanisation and rising household income are likely to remain the key drivers for growth in all 

spheres of real estate, including residential, commercial, and retail. Rapid urbanisation in the 

country is pushing the growth of real estate. According to India Ratings and Research (Ind-

Ra), the Indian real estate sector may stage a sharp K-shaped recovery in FY22. However, 

the overall sales in FY22 could still be ~14% below the FY20 levels.

 Government of India's Housing for All initiative is expected to bring US$ 1.3 trillion 

investments in the housing sector by 2025. As of December 2019, under Pradhan Mantri 

Awas Yojana (Urban) [PMAY (U)], 1.12 crore houses were sanctioned in urban areas, with a 

potential to create 1.20 crore jobs. The scheme is expected to push affordable housing and 

construction in the country and give a boost to the real estate sector. On July 09, 2020, Union 

Cabinet approved the development of Affordable Rental Housing Complexes (AHRCs) for 

urban migrants and poor as a sub-scheme under PMAY–U.

 Government has also released draft guidelines for investment by Real Estate Investment 

Trusts (REITs) in non-residential segment.

 The Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs has recommended all the states to consider 

reducing stamp duty of property transactions in a bid to push real estate activity, generate 

more revenue and aid economic growth.

 Your Company continues to target the mid income residential segment to remain strong as 

we believe there is a significant potential for demand in this particular category across the 

country during these unprecedented times. 

 Driven by increasing transparency and returns, there's surge in private investment in the real 

estate sector.

 However, the Real Estate Market is inherently a cyclical market and is affected by macro 

economic conditions changes in applicable governmental schemes, changes in supply and 

demand for projects, availability of consumer financing and illiquidity. Major threat faced by 

the industry right now is continuing slowdown in the economy. Further the businesses 

worldwide have been hugely impacted by the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic which has 

resulted in significant reduction in economic activities across all sectors. The Company's 

operations has also been affected due to interruption in construction activities, supply chain 

disruption, unavailability of personnel, closure/ lock down of various other facilities etc. 

Although, the Company has now restarted operations at various project offices and sites 

whilst adhering to various guidelines on COVID-19 as issued by the Government authorities 

from time to time.
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IV. RESIDENTIAL REAL ESTATE

 Home sales volume across eight major cities in India jumped twice from October 2020 to 

December 2020, signifying healthy recovery post the strict lockdown imposed in the second 

quarter due to the spread of COVID-19 in the country. According to Anarock, housing sales in 

seven cities increased by 29% and new launches by 51% in Q4 FY21 over Q4 FY20.

 Demand for residential real estate revived in Q4 FY21 as home buyers took advantage of low 

mortgage rates and incentives rendered by developers. Residential sales in this quarter 

recovered to >90% volumes recorded in 2020 across the top seven cities.

 Under Union Budget 2021-22, tax deduction up to ` 1.5 lakh (US$ 2069.89) on interest on 

housing loan, and tax holiday for affordable housing projects have been extended until the 

end of fiscal 2021-22.

 Also, the Atmanirbhar Bharat 3.0 package announced by Finance Minister Mrs. Nirmala 

Sitharaman in November 2020 included income tax relief measures for real estate 

developers and home buyers for primary purchase/sale of residential units of value (up to 

Rs. 2 crore (US$ 271,450.60) from November 12, 2020 to June 30, 2021).

 In the current times of uncertainty amidst the pandemic, the Company is not in a position to 

gauge the demand sentiments of the customers in order to realign our business and 

strategies for the coming months.

V. FINANCE SEGMENT

 India has a diversified financial sector undergoing rapid expansion, both in terms of strong 

growth of existing financial services firms and new entities entering the market. The sector 

comprises commercial banks, insurance companies, non-banking financial companies, co-

operatives, pension funds, mutual funds and other smaller financial entities. The banking 

regulator has allowed new entities such as payment banks to be created recently, thereby 

adding to the type of entities operating in the sector. However, financial sector in India is 

predominantly a banking sector with commercial banks accounting for more than 64% of the 

total assets held by the financial system.

 Further, it is to be noted that:

 l India is expected to be the fourth largest private wealth market globally by 2028.

 l India is today one of the most vibrant global economies on the back of robust 
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banking and insurance sectors. The relaxation of foreign investment rules has 

received a positive response from the insurance sector, with many companies 

announcing plans to increase their stakes in joint ventures with Indian companies. 

Over the coming quarters, there could be a series of joint venture deals between 

global insurance giants and local players.

 l The Association of Mutual Funds in India (AMFI) is targeting nearly five-fold growth 

in AUM to ` 95 lakh crore (US$ 1.47 trillion) and more than three times growth in 

investor accounts to 130 million by 2025.

 l India's mobile wallet industry is estimated to grow at a Compound Annual Growth 

Rate (CAGR) of 150% to reach US$ 4.4 billion by 2022, while mobile wallet 

transactions will touch Rs. 32 trillion (USD $ 492.6 billion) during the same period.

 The Government of India has introduced several reforms to liberalise, regulate and enhance 

this industry. The Government and Reserve Bank of India (RBI) have taken various 

measures to facilitate easy access to finance for Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

(MSMEs). These measures include launching Credit Guarantee Fund Scheme for MSMEs, 

issuing guideline to banks regarding collateral requirements and setting up a Micro Units 

Development and Refinance Agency (MUDRA). With a combined push by Government and 

private sector, India is undoubtedly one of the world's most vibrant capital markets.

 (Source: Indian Brand Equity Foundation, IBEF).

VI. OUTLOOK

 The Management looks forward to take up various land development projects and 

construction projects relating the development of residential projects (townships, villas, 

penthouses, studio apartments etc.) and development of commercial complexes etc.

VII. RISKS & CONCERNS

 The Company is exposed to different types of risks such as credit risk, market risk (including 

liquidity risk, interest rate risk), operational risk and legal risk.  The Company monitors credit 

and market risks, as well as portfolio and operational risk through the oversight of senior 

management personnel in each of its business segments. Legal risk is subject to there view 

of the Company's legal department and external advisers. The Company is exposed to 

specific risks in connection with the management of investments and the environment within 

which it operates. The Company aims to understand, measure and monitor the various risks 

to which it is exposed and to ensure that it adheres, as far as reasonably and practically 

possible, to the policies and procedures established by it to mitigate these risks. 
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Par�culars
For the Financial Year Ended 

31.03.2021
  

31.03.2020
 Revenue

 Revenue from Opera�ons (net)

 

1,97,53,800.00 3,51,57,639.00

Other income 2,40,74,284.73 5,787.00

Total Revenue 4,38,28,084.73 3,51,63,426.00

Expenditure

 

Cost of land, plots, development rights, constructed

 

proper�es and others

 

94,99,923.00 1,85,16,400.20

Employee benefits expense

 

24,26,339.00 57,68,241.79

Finance costs 36,23,204.07 19,98,589.62

Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on expense

 

13,07,496.00 13,40,355.00

Other Expenses 25,13,008.20 28,76,278.66

Total Expenses 1,93,69,970.27 3,04,99,865.27

Profit / (Loss) before excep�onal and extraordinary items 
and Tax 2,44,58,114.46 46,63,560.73

Excep�onal items

 

0.00 0.00

Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax

 

2,44,58,114.46 46,63,560.73

Extraordinary items

 

0.00 0.00

Profit / (Loss) before Tax

 

2,44,58,114.46 46,63,560.73

Tax expense

 

Current tax 39,17,790.00 10,89,050.00

Earlier years tax 0.00 0.00

Deferred tax (54,370.00) (23,020.00)

Total Tax Expense

 

38,63,420.00 10,66,030.00

Profit / (Loss) from con�nuing opera�ons 2,05,94,694.46 35,97,530.73

Profit / (Loss) for the year 2,05,94,694.46 35,97,530.73

Earnings per equity share 1.32 0.23

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Amount in `)

VIII. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

 The Company has in place proper and adequate system of internal controls to ensure that all 

the assets are safe guarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, 

and to ensure that all transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly and 

adequately.

 The Company's internal controls are supplemented by an extensive program of internal 

audits, review by management and documented policies, guidelines and procedures. The 

internal control is designed to ensure that financial and other records are reliable for 

preparing financial information and for maintaining accountability of assets. All financial and 

audit control systems a real so reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of 

the Company.

IX. DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL 

PERFORMANCE

  Operations & Financial Review (Standalone)
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The salient features of the performance are:

n The total revenue has increased from  ₹ 3,51,57,639/- in 2019-20 to ₹ 4,38,28,084.73/-  in 

2020-21.

n The expenses of the Company decreased from ₹ 3,04,99,865.27/- in 2019-2020 to 

₹ 1,93,69,970.27/- in 2020-21.

n The Company has earned a profit of  ₹ 2,05,94,694.46/- during the year 2019-20.

n Segment–wise or product-wise performance - as detailed in Board's Report.

X. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

FRONT, INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED

 Human resource continues to be the backbone of Max' business. The Company lays strong 

emphasis on attracting and retaining the best talent. Personal developmental initiatives 

including training, both technical and managerial, are regularly conducted to enhance 

human potential.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's objectives, 

projections, estimates and expectations may be 'forward looking statements' with in the meaning of 

applicable laws and regulations. Actual results might differ substantially or materially from those 

expressed or implied. Important developments that could affect the Company' operations include 

downtrend in the real estate sector, significant changes in political and economic environment in 

India or key financial markets abroad, tax laws, litigation, labour relations, exchange rate fluctuations, 

interest and other costs.

For & on behalf of Board of Directors 
of MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

     
 Sd/- Sd/-
 Sa�sh Chander Narang Naveen Narang
Date: 14th August, 2021 Chairman Managing Director
Place: New Delhi DIN: 00095693 DIN: 00095708

Regd. Off.: Max Heights Infrastructure Limited
SD-65, Tower Apartment, Pitampura,
New Delhi- 110034. 
CIN:L67120DL1981PLC179487
E-Mail ID: maxinfra1981@gmail.com
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Standalone Financial Results
F.Y. 2020-2021
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Max Heights Infrastructure Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Max Heights Infrastructure Limited 

which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and statement of 

cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accoun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on.

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the aforesaid 

Standalone Financial Statements give the informa�on required by the Act in the manner so required and give 

a true and fair view in conformity with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 

affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and profit/ loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that 

date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng (SAs) specified under sec�on 143(10) 

of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 

Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements sec�on of our report. We are independent of the 

Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India 

together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Ma�ers

Key audit ma�ers are those ma�ers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 

of the financial statements of the current period. These ma�ers were addressed in the context of our audit of 

the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 

opinion on these ma�ers.

We draw your a�en�on to the financial statements, which describes the economic and social

disrup�on the en�ty is facing as a result of COVID-19 which is impac�ng supply chain and personnel being 

able to access offices. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this ma�er.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the ma�ers stated in sec�on 134(5) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the prepara�on of these standalone financial statements that give a true 

and fair view of the financial posi�on, financial performance, (changes in equity) and cash flows of the 
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Company in accordance with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, including the accoun�ng 

Standards specified under sec�on 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 

accoun�ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 

and for preven�ng and detec�ng frauds and other irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of appropriate 

implementa�on and maintenance of accoun�ng policies; making judgments and es�mates that are 

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng 

records, relevant to the prepara�on and presenta�on of the financial statement that give a true and fair view 

and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 

con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accoun�ng unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so that the Board of Directors is also responsible for 

overseeing the company's financial repor�ng process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skep�cism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 

not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from 

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the 

override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 

for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has in place adequate internal financial controls 

with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements and the opera�ng effec�veness of such 

controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng 

es�mates and related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors in the standalone 

financial statements. 
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's and Board of Director's use of the going concern 

basis of accoun�ng and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 

con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 

draw a�en�on in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 

on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or 

condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the 

underlying transac�ons and events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope 

and �ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 

that we iden�fy during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers 

that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers that were 

of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and are 

therefore the key audit ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our auditors' report unless law or regula�on 

precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 

ma�er should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communica�on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the 'Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-sec�on (11) of sec�on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the 

“Annexure A” statement on the ma�ers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examina�on of those books.

b.  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 

Report are in agreement with the books of account.

c. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accoun�ng 

Standards specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014.
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d. On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from 

being appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on 164 (2) of the Act. 

e. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the 

Company and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

“Annexure B”. 

f. With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informa�on 

and according to the explana�ons given to us:

 i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending li�ga�ons on its financial posi�on in its 

financial statements.

 ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accoun�ng 

standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including 

deriva�ve.

 iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 

Educa�on and Protec�on Fund by the Company.

With respect to the ma�er to be included in the Auditors' Report under sec�on 197(16) of the Act: 

In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the remunera�on paid by the 

Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of sec�on 197 of the Act. 

The remunera�on paid to any director is not in excess of the limits laid down under sec�on 197 of the Act. The 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under sec�on 197(16) of the Act which are 

required to be commented upon by us.

For Praveen Om Jain & Co
Chartered Accountants
F.R.N. 019993N

Sd/-
(Praveen Kumar)
Prop
M.No. 503734�

Place: New Delhi
Date:  30.06.2021
UDIN: 21503734AAAACW6883
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“Annexure A” to the Auditors' Report

(Referred to in our Audit Report of even date) 

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED for the 
styear Ended on 31  March 2021.

1) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars, including 

quan�ta�ve details and situa�on of fixed assets; 

 b) As explained to us all the assets have been physically verified by the management at regular 

interval. As informed to us no material discrepancies were no�ced on such verifica�on.

 c) The �tle deeds of immovable proper�es are held in the name of the company. 

2) a) The inventory has been physically verified during the year by management. In our opinion, 

the frequency of verifica�on is reasonable.

 b) The procedures of physical verifica�on of inventory followed by the management are 

reasonable and adequate in rela�on to the size of the company and the nature of its 

business.

 c) The Company has maintained proper records of inventory and no material discrepancies 

were no�ced on physical verifica�on as compare to book records.

3) The Company has not granted unsecured loans to companies, firms or other par�es covered in the 

register maintained under sec�on 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year and in our 

opinion, hence para (a) and (b) are not applicable. 

4) In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the company has 

complied with the provisions of sec�on 185 and I86 of the Companies Act, 2013, In respect of loans, 

investments, guarantees and security. 

5) In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, the Company has not 

accepted any deposits in contraven�on of the direc�ves issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the 

provisions of sec�ons 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013  and the 

rules framed there under, where applicable, have been complied with. No order has been passed by 

the Company Law Board or Na�onal Company Law Tribunal or RBI or any court or any other tribunal.



Annual Report 2020-2021 77

6) According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, government has not prescribed 

maintenance of cost records under sub sec�on (1) of sec�on 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the 

products of the Company. 

7) a) According to our opinion the Company is regular in deposi�ng undisputed statutory dues 

including income-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and 

any other statutory dues with the appropriate authori�es.

  Further, since the Central Government has �ll date not prescribed the amount of cess 

payable under sec�on 441A of the Companies Act, 1956, we are not in a posi�on to 

comment upon the regularity or otherwise of the Company in deposi�ng the same.

 b) According to informa�on and explana�on given to us, there are no dues on account of 

income tax or sales tax or wealth tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or 

value added tax or cess, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

 c) According to informa�on and explana�on given to us, there is no amount which is required 

to be transferred to Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund in accordance with the 

relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and rules made thereunder.

8) According to informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment 

of any dues to a financial ins�tu�on or bank or debenture holders during the year of audit.

9) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informa�on and explana�ons given by the 

management, the Company has not raised moneys by way of ini�al public offer or further public offer 

including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order 

are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

10) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informa�on and explana�ons given by the 

management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or 

employees has been no�ced or reported during the year. 

11) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informa�on and explana�ons given by the 

management, the managerial remunera�on has been paid or provided in accordance with the 

requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of sec�on 197 read with Schedule V to the 

Companies Act; 

12) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xii) of the 

Order are not applicable to the Company. 
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13) In our opinion, all transac�ons with the related par�es are in compliance with sec�on 177 and 188 of 

Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by 

the applicable accoun�ng standards. 

14) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informa�on and explana�ons given by the 

management, the Company has not made any preferen�al allotment or private placement of shares 

or fully or partly conver�ble debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of 

clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

15) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informa�on and explana�ons given by the 

management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transac�ons with directors or 

persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not 

applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

16) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under sec�on 45 IA of the Reserve Bank 

of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to 

the Company and hence not commented upon.

For Praveen Om Jain & Co

Chartered Accountants

F.R.N. 019993N

Sd/-

(Praveen Kumar)

Proprietor

M.No. 503734�

Place: New Delhi

Date:  30.06.2021

UDIN: 21503734AAAACW6883
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“Annexure B” to the Auditors' Report
(Referred to in our Audit Report of even date) 

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED for the 
styear Ended on 31  March 2021.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-sec�on 3 of Sec�on 143 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE 

LIMITED as of March 31, 2021 in conjunc�on with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the 

Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls. These 

responsibili�es include the design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 

that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 

adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on and detec�on of frauds and 

errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, and the �mely prepara�on of reliable 

financial informa�on, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 

repor�ng based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Audi�ng, 

issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under sec�on 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 

and, both issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial repor�ng was established and 

maintained and if such controls operated effec�vely in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system over financial repor�ng and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of internal 

financial controls over financial repor�ng included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 

over financial repor�ng, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tes�ng and evalua�ng the 

design and opera�ng effec�veness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng 

A company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on of financial statements for 

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles. A company's internal 

financial control over financial repor�ng includes those policies and procedures that 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transac�ons and disposi�ons of the assets of the Company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are recorded as necessary to permit prepara�on of 

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles, and that receipts 

and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authoriza�ons of 

management and directors of the Company; and 

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorized acquisi�on, 

use, or disposi�on of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 

statements. 

Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng 

Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projec�ons of any evalua�on of the internal financial controls over 

financial repor�ng to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 

repor�ng may become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or that the degree of compliance with 

the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial repor�ng and such internal financial controls over financial repor�ng were opera�ng effec�vely as at 

March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company 

considering the essen�al components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Praveen Om Jain & Co
Chartered Accountants
F.R.N. 019993N

Sd/-
(Praveen Kumar)
Prop
M.No. 503734�

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30.06.2021
UDIN: 21503734AAAACW6883
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MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

SD-65, PITAMPURA, NEW DELHI - 110034

CIN: L67120DL1981PLC179487

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

Particulars Note No.

Figures as at the 

end of current 

reporting period

Figures as at the 

end of the previous 

reporting period

1 2 3 4

ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2.1            4,553,413.00            8,010,446.00 

(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 2.2           34,824,800.00           49,864,800.00 

(ii) Loans

(iii) Others (to be specified) 2.3               100,000.00               100,000.00 

(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 2.4               710,025.00               655,655.00 

(d) Other non-current assets                            -                              -   

          40,188,238.00           58,630,901.00 

(2) Current assets

(a) Inventories 2.5         345,854,024.00         262,789,798.00 

(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 2.2                 89,917.72                 89,917.72 

(ii) Trade receivables 2.6            2,078,727.00            2,066,227.00 

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 2.7            9,437,522.96            1,560,321.05 

(v) Loans 2.8           23,089,504.00           44,685,755.00 

(vi) Others (to be specified) 2.3           10,578,617.55           14,410,966.00 

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net)

(d) Other current assets 2.9               655,769.00            5,165,346.00 

        391,784,082.23         330,768,330.77 

Total Assets         431,972,320.23         389,399,231.77 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity 2.10

(a) Equity Share capital         156,092,250.00         156,092,250.00 

(b) Other Equity         153,020,441.43         132,036,302.97 

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 2.11         114,935,109.00           70,632,534.00 

(ii) Trade payables

(iii) Other financial liabilities (other than those specified in item 

(b), to be specified)
2.12            1,000,000.00            1,000,000.00 

(b) Provisions

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

(d) Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 2.11                            -             25,786,773.00 

(ii) Trade payables 2.13               866,568.00               771,312.00 

(iii) Other financial liabilities (other than those specified in item 

(c)
2.12            2,140,161.80            1,991,009.80 

(b) Other current liabilities

(c) Provisions 2.14            3,917,790.00            1,089,050.00 

(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)                            -                              -   

Total Equity and Liabilities         431,972,320.23         389,399,231.77 

Significant Accounting Policies 1

Web- www.maxheights.com, email id- maxinfra1981@gmail.com, Ph- 011-2731 4646, CIN - L67120DL1981PLC179487

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

For Praveen Om Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regd. No. 019993N Satish Chander Narang Naveen Narang

Director Director

DIN: 00095693 DIN: 00095708

Praveen Kumar

 Membership No. 503734 

Place : New Delhi

Date :30.06.2021
UDIN: 21503734AAAACW6883

Proprietor

Vandita Arora

Company Secretary

M.No.: 61149Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
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MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

SD-65, PITAMPURA, NEW DELHI - 110034

CIN: L67120DL1981PLC179487

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

Figures for the current 

reporting period

Figures for the previous 

reporting period

I Revenue From Operations 2.15                    19,753,800.00                      35,157,639.00 

II Other Income 2.16                    24,074,284.73                              5,787.00 

III Total Income (I+II)                    43,828,084.73                      35,163,426.00 

EXPENSES

Cost of land, plots, development rights, constructed properties 

and others
2.17                      9,499,923.00                      18,516,400.20 

Employee benefits expense 2.18                      2,426,339.00                        5,768,241.79 

Finance costs 2.19                      3,623,204.07                        1,998,589.62 

Depreciation and amortization expense 2.1                      1,307,496.00                        1,340,355.00 

Other expenses 2.20                      2,513,008.20                        2,876,278.66 

Total expenses (IV)                    19,369,970.27                      30,499,865.27 

V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (I- IV)                    24,458,114.46                        4,663,560.73 

VI Exceptional Items                                      -                                          -   

Profit/(loss) before tax

(V-VI)

Tax expense:

(1) Current tax                      3,917,790.00                        1,089,050.00 

(2) Deferred tax                         (54,370.00)                           (23,020.00)

                     3,863,420.00                        1,066,030.00 

Profit (Loss) for the period from

continuing operations (VII-VIII)

X Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations                                      -                                          -   

XI Tax expense of discontinued operations                                      -                                          -   

XII Profit/(loss) from Discontinued operations (after tax) (X-XI)                                      -                                          -   

XIII Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XII)                    20,594,694.46                        3,597,530.73 

Other Comprehensive Income                                      -                                          -   

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 

to profit or loss

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 

to profit or loss

Total Comprehensive Income for the

period (XIII+XIV)(Comprising Profit

(Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income

for the period)

Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation):

(1) Basic                                  1.32                                    0.23 

(2) Diluted                                  1.32                                    0.23 

Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operation):

(1) Basic

(2) Diluted

Earnings per equity share(for discontinued

& continuing operations)

(1) Basic                                  1.32                                    0.23 

(2) Diluted                                  1.32                                    0.23 

XIV

XVI

                                     -                                          -   
XVII

                       3,597,530.73 

VII                    24,458,114.46                        4,663,560.73 

Note No.Particulars

XVIII

XV                    20,594,694.46 

IV

VIII

IX                    20,594,694.46                        3,597,530.73 

Web- www.maxheights.com, email id- maxinfra1981@gmail.com, Ph- 011-2731 4646, CIN - L67120DL1981PLC179487

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

For Praveen Om Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regd. No. 019993N Satish Chander Narang Naveen Narang

Director Director

DIN: 00095693 DIN: 00095708

Praveen Kumar

 Membership No. 503734 

Place : New Delhi

Date :30.06.2021
UDIN: 21503734AAAACW6883

Proprietor

Vandita Arora

Company Secretary

M.No.: 61149

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-

(`) (`)
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Particulars For the year ended 

March 31,2021

For the year ended 

March 31,2020

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax 24,458,114.46 4,663,560.73

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 1,307,496.00 1,340,355.00

Interest Received (3,853,800.00) (5,085,139.00)

Interest 3,623,204.07

                    

1,998,589.62

Less: Profit on sale of Vehicle (24,068,158.00)

                 

-

Less: Last Year Provision 389,444.00

                       

572,089.00

 

Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 1,856,300.53

                    

3,489,455.35

Changes in working capital:

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:

Inventories (83,064,226.00)

                 

(54,329,834.80)

Trade receivables (12,500.00)

                       

(405,630.00)

Short Term Loans & Advances 21,596,251.00

                  

17,742,792.00

Other current assets 8,341,925.45

                    

(4,997,934.15)

Short Term Provisions 2,828,740.00

                    

(1,225,170.00)

Trade Payable & Other liabilities 244,408.00

                       

(7,480,877.00)

Cash Generated from Operating activities (48,209,101.02)

                 

(47,207,198.60)

Taxes Paid 3,917,790.00

                    
1,089,050.00

Net Cash Flow from operating activities (52,126,891.02)
                 

(48,296,248.60)

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets (28,305.00)

                       

-

Sale of Fixed Assets/investments 41,286,000.00

                  

-

Interest received 3,853,800.00

                    

5,085,139.00

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 45,111,495.00

                  

5,085,139.00

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from Borrowing 18,515,802.00

                  

34,193,512.00

Interest Payments (3,623,204.07) (1,998,589.62)

14,892,597.93 32,194,922.38

Net Cash Flow during the year (A+B+C) 7,877,201.91 (11,016,187.22)

Cash & Cash Equivalent (Opening Balance) (D) 1,560,321.05

                    

12,576,508.27

Cash & Cash Equivalent (Closing Balance) (E) 9,437,522.96 1,560,321.05

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 7,877,201.91 (11,016,187.22)

MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flow

SD-65, PITAMPURA, NEW DELHI - 110034

CIN: L67120DL1981PLC179487

Effective April 1, 2017, the Company adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which require the entities to provide disclosures that enable 

users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash 

flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for 

liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement. The adoption of amendment did not have any material 

impact on the financial statements.

Web- www.maxheights.com, email id- maxinfra1981@gmail.com, Ph- 011-2731 4646, CIN - L67120DL1981PLC179487

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

For Praveen Om Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regd. No. 019993N Satish Chander Narang Naveen Narang

Director Director

DIN: 00095693 DIN: 00095708

Praveen Kumar

 Membership No. 503734 
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Date :30.06.2021
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Company Secretary

M.No.: 61149
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MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

SD - 65, Tower Apartment, Pitampura, New Delhi – 110034

CIN: L67120DL1981PLC179487

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

CORPORATE INFORMATION

MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED ('the Company') incorporated in India on July 28, 1981, a company 

incorporated under the laws of India. The Company's shares are publicly traded on the Bombay Stock 

Exchange ('BSE'), India and Calcu�a Stock Exchange. The Registered office of the Company is situated at SD – 

65, Tower Apartments, Pitampura, New Delhi – 110034.

NATURE OF PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Max Heights Infrastructure Limited ('the Company') is engaged primarily in the business of real estate 

development. The opera�ons of the Company span in all aspects of real estate development, from the 

iden�fica�on and acquisi�on of land, to planning, execu�on, construc�on and marke�ng of projects. The 

Company is also engaged in the business of maintenance services and recrea�onal ac�vi�es which are related 

to the overall development of real estate business. The Company is domiciled in India.

GENERAL INFORMATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH IND AS

These Standalone Financial Statements ('financial statements') of the Company have been prepared in 

accordance with the Indian Accoun�ng Standards (hereina�er referred to as the 'Ind AS') as no�fied by 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') under Sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read with the 

Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The Company has uniformly applied the accoun�ng policies during the periods presented. 

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accoun�ng principles 

generally accepted in India. Accoun�ng policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued 

accoun�ng standard is ini�ally adopted or a revision to an exis�ng accoun�ng standard requires a change in 

the accoun�ng policy hitherto in use.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accoun�ng 

principles in India under the historical cost conven�on on accrual basis.
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Based on the nature of products and the �me between the acquisi�on of assets for processing and their 

realiza�on in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has ascertained its opera�ng cycle as twelve months for 

the purpose of current/ non-current classifica�on of assets and liabili�es.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT 

Impact of Covid-19 Pandemic 

Post declara�on of COVID-19 as a pandemic by the World Health Organiza�on, the Government in India and 

across the world have taken significant measures to curtail the wide spread of virus, including country wide 

lockdown and restric�on in economic ac�vi�es.

In view of such lockdowns, opera�ons at Company facili�es in India were scaled down from the end week of 

March 2020 and the immediate steps were taken to counter the issues. In view of the impact of COVID-19, the 

Company has assessed the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, inventories, trade 

receivables, and other assets. In assessing the recoverable value of such assets, the Company has considered 

various internal and external informa�on such as exis�ng long-term arrangements with customers and 

vendors, long-term business plan, cash flow forecasts and possible future uncertain�es in economic 

condi�ons because of the pandemic including lockdowns and supply chain disrup�ons

across various geographies of the world. As per the Company's current assessment of recoverability of these 

assets no significant impact on carrying amounts of these assets is expected.

The eventual outcome of the impact of the global health pandemic may be different from

those es�mated as on the date of approval of these financial statements and the Company

con�nues to closely monitor the situa�on including any material changes to future economic

condi�ons and consequen�al impact on its financial statements.

Use of es�mates

The prepara�on of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make 

es�mates, judgments and assump�ons. These es�mates, judgments and assump�ons affect the applica�on 

of accoun�ng policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabili�es, the disclosures of con�ngent assets 

and liabili�es at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 

the period. The applica�on of accoun�ng policies that require cri�cal accoun�ng es�mates involving complex 

and subjec�ve judgments and the use of assump�ons in these financial statements have been disclosed 

wherever required.

Accoun�ng es�mates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those es�mates. 

Appropriate changes in es�mates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances 

surrounding the es�mates. Changes in es�mates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in 

which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accoun�ng policies and 

measurement basis summarized below. These were used throughout all periods presented in the 

financial statements, except where the Company has applied certain accoun�ng policies and 

exemp�ons upon transi�on to Ind-AS as summarized.

 
 1.1 Current and non-current classifica�on

  All assets and liabili�es have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's 

normal opera�ng cycle and other criteria set-out in the Act. Deferred tax assets and 

liabili�es are classified as non-current assets and non-current liabili�es, as the case may be.

1.2 Property, plant and equipment

  Recogni�on and ini�al measurement
 
  Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisi�on. The cost comprises 

purchase price, borrowing cost if capitaliza�on criteria are met and directly a�ributable 

cost of bringing the asset to its working condi�on for the intended use. Any trade discount 

and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in 

the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it 

is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 

Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit or 

loss as incurred.

  Subsequent measurement (deprecia�on and useful lives)

  Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 

deprecia�on and impairment losses. Deprecia�on on property, plant and equipment is 

provided on a straight-line basis, computed on the basis of useful lives (as set-out below) 

prescribed in Schedule II to the Act:

S.No. Assets Life as per schedule II Life Taken  

1. Vehicles 8 Years 8 Years  

2. Computers 3 Years 3 Years  

3. Mobile Phone 5 Years 5 Years  

4. Office Equipment 5 years 5 years  

  The residual values, useful lives and method of deprecia�on are reviewed at the end of 

each financial year.
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  De-recogni�on

  An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part ini�ally recognized is de-

recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or 

disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recogni�on of the asset (calculated as the difference 

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in 

the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is de-recognized.

  Impairment

  At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying value of tangible and 

intangible assets for any possible impairment. An impairment loss is recognized when the 

carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is 

determined as higher of the asset's net selling price or es�mated future cash flows 

expected to arise from the con�nuing use of the assets and from their disposal at the end of 

their useful lives, which are discounted to their present value based on appropriate 

discount rates. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the levels 

for which there are separately iden�fiable cash flows (cash genera�ng unit). Assessment is 

done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indica�on that an impairment 

loss recognized for an asset in prior accoun�ng period may no longer exist or may have 

decreased.

1.3 Revenue recogni�on

  Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 

Company and it can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 

considera�on received/receivable net of rebate and taxes. The Company applies the 

revenue recogni�on criteria to each nature of revenue transac�on the details of same is 

men�oned under note no. 2.15

  Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contract with Customers: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has no�fied the Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with 

Customers. The core principle of the new standard is that an en�ty should recognize 

revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount 

that reflects the considera�on to which the en�ty expects to be en�tled in exchange for 

those goods or services. Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the 

nature, amount, �ming and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the en�ty's 

contracts with customers. 
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  The standard permits two possible methods of transi�on: 

  l Retrospec�ve approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied 

retrospec�vely to each prior repor�ng period presented in accordance with Ind AS 

8 - Accoun�ng Policies, Changes in Accoun�ng Es�mates and Errors.

   l Retrospec�vely, with cumula�ve effect of ini�ally applying the standard 

recognized at the date of ini�al applica�on (Cumula�ve catch - up approach).

1.4 Financial Instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabili�es are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured ini�ally at fair value adjusted for 

transac�on costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured 

ini�ally at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabili�es is described 

below:

 a. Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

  Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are stated 

at cost as per Ind AS 27 'Separate Financial Statements.

 b. Investments in other equity instruments

  Investments in equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at fair value 

through profit or loss (FVTPL).

 c. Investments in mutual funds

  Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

 De-recogni�on of financial assets

 

 A financial asset is primarily de-recognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from 

the asset have expired or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

 Offse�ng of financial instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabili�es are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet 

if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an 

inten�on to se�le on a net basis, to realise the assets and se�le the liabili�es simultaneously.
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 Other financial assets

 In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial 

assets has increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on. If the credit risk has not increased 

significantly since ini�al recogni�on, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal 

to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the life�me expected credit losses. 

 When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over 

the expected life of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a 

default occurring on the financial asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default 

occurring on the financial asset as at the date of ini�al recogni�on and considers reasonable and 

supportable informa�on, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indica�ve of 

significant increases in credit risk since ini�al recogni�on. The Company assumes that the credit risk 

on a financial asset has not increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on if the financial asset is 

determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

1.5 Inventories

 Inventories are valued as under:

 l Land and plots other than area transferred to constructed proper�es at the 

commencement of construc�on are valued at lower of cost/ approximate average cost/ as 

re-valued on conversion to stock and net realisable value. Cost includes land (including 

development rights) acquisi�on cost, borrowing cost, es�mated internal development 

costs and external development charges.

 l Cost of construc�on/development material is valued at lower of cost or net realisable 

value.

 l Building material and consumable stores are valued at cost, which is determined on the 

basis of FIFO.

 l Land is valued at cost, which is determined on average method. Cost includes cost of 

acquisi�on and all related costs. 

 l Unsold Por�on / Por�on under construc�on is shown at cost under the head stock in trade 

Construc�on Ac�vity.



Annual Report 2020-2021 90

1.6 Advances for Assets

 Advances paid towards the acquisi�on of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each 

Balance Sheet date is classified as capital advances under Short Term Loans & Advances. Subsequent 

expenditures rela�ng to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that 

future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can 

be measured reliably. 

1.7 Foreign Currency Transac�ons

         The Company had not done any foreign currency transac�ons during the year.

1.8 Employee Benefits

 Short term employee benefits are recognized in the year during which the services have been 

rendered.

 The employees of the Company are en�tled to compensate absences which are non-accumula�ng in 

nature. Expense on non-accumula�ng compensated absences is recognized in the period in which 

the absences occur.

 No employee of the company has been into employment of the company for more than 5 Years. 

Therefore, no provision is accrued for gratuity and leave encashment.

 

1.9 Borrowing Cost

 Financial Costs rela�ng to borrowed funds a�ributable to the acquisi�on or construc�on of fixed 

assets which takes substan�al period of �me to get ready for its intended use is capitalized as part of 

the cost of that asset. The interest cost incurred for funding a qualifying asset during the construc�on 

period is capitalized based on actual investment in the asset at the average interest rate for specific 

borrowings. However, financing costs (including interest) on fixed assets purchased on deferred 

credit basis or on the monies borrowed for the construc�on or acquisi�on of fixed assets are not 

capitalized to the extent that such costs relate to periods a�er such assets are ready to be put to use.

1.10 Taxes on Income 

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognized in 

net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Current income tax for current and prior periods is 

recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authori�es, using the tax 

rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substan�vely enacted by the Balance Sheet date. 
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Deferred income tax assets and liabili�es are recognized for all temporary differences arising 

between the tax bases of assets and liabili�es and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. 

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each repor�ng date and are reduced to the extent that it is no 

longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 

 Deferred income tax assets and liabili�es are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been 

enacted or substan�vely enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable 

income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or se�led. 

The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabili�es is recognized as income 

or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substan�ve enactment date. A deferred 

income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be 

available against which the deduc�ble temporary differences and tax losses can be u�lized. Deferred 

income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries and branches where it is 

expected that the earnings of the subsidiary or branch will not be distributed in the foreseeable 

future. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabili�es, where it has a legally 

enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to se�le on a net 

basis, or to realize the asset and se�le the liability simultaneously. (Refer Note 2.4)

1.11 Trade Receivable

 In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which 

requires measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to life�me expected credit losses. 

Life�me expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default 

events over the expected life of a financial instrument. (For Details regarding Type of Trade 

Receivable and expected Loss refer Note 2.6)

1.12 Earnings Per Share

 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period a�ributable to 

equity shareholders (a�er deduc�ng a�ributable taxes) by the weighted-average number of equity 

shares outstanding during the period. The weighted-average number of equity shares outstanding 

during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue.

 For the purpose of calcula�ng diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period 

a�ributable to equity shareholders and the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during 

the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilu�ve poten�al equity shares.

S.No. PARTICULARS

 

For the year ended 
March  31, 2021

 

For the year ended 
March  31, 2020

 
A. Net Profit Available for Shareholders

 

20,594,694.46

 

35,97,530.73

B. No. of Equity Shares

  

1,56,09,225

 

1,56,09,225

C. EPS

 

1.32

 

0.23

D. Diluted No. of Equity Share

 

-

  

-

E. DEPS

 

1.32

  

0.23
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1.13 Cash & Cash equivalents

 l Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and cash on deposit with banks and 

corpora�ons. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining 

maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily conver�ble to 

known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

 l Cash in hand has been cer�fied by the management at the close of the year.

1.14 Current Assets

 In the opinion of the management, current assets, loans & advances have the value on the 

realiza�on in the ordinary course of business equal to the amount at which they are stated and all 

known liabili�es have been adequately provided for.

1.15 Cash Flow Statement

 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the 

effects of transac�ons of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future opera�ng cash 

receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with inves�ng or financing cash 

flows. The cash flows from opera�ng, inves�ng and financing ac�vi�es of the Company are 

segregated. The company considers all highly liquid investments that are readily conver�ble to 

known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents. 

 Effec�ve April 1, 2017, the Company adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which require the en��es 

to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabili�es 

arising from financing ac�vi�es, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash 

changes, sugges�ng inclusion of a reconcilia�on between the opening and closing balances in the 

Balance Sheet for liabili�es arising from financing ac�vi�es, to meet the disclosure requirement. The 

adop�on of amendment did not have any material impact on the financial statements.

1.16 Provisions and Con�ngencies

 l A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or 

construc�ve obliga�on that is reasonably es�mable, and it is probable that an ou�low of 

economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on. Provisions are determined by 

discoun�ng the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 

assessments of the �me value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
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 l A con�ngent liability is a possible obliga�on that arises from past events whose existence 

will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 

events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obliga�on that is not 

recognized because it is not probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic 

benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on or the amount of the obliga�on cannot be 

measured with sufficient reliability. Con�ngent liability has been disclosed in accordance 

with AS-29, issued by The Ins�tute of Chartered Accountant of India.

As per our report of even date      
For Praveen Om Jain & Co. 
Chartered Accountants

For & on behalf of Board

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Praveen Kumar Sa�sh Chander Narang Naveen Narang Vandita Arora 
Prop. Chairman Managing Director Company Secretary 
M.No. 503734 DIN: 00095693 DIN: 00095708 M.No. 61149 

Date: 30.06.2021
Place: New Delhi

UDIN: 21503734AAAACW6883
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 MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED        

SD-65, PITAMPURA, NEW DELHI - 110034        

        

Notes forming part of the financial statements        

        

2.1 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT        

        

Accounting Policies        

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Costs 

directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as 

intended by the management. The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated 

useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:        

1 Vehicles 8 Years 8 Years

2 Computers 3 Years 3 Years

3 Mobile Phone 5 Years 5 Years

4 Office Equipment 5 years 5 years

 Life as per 

schedule II 
 Life Taken  S.No.  Assets 

@Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives 

as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use 

these assets.     

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically, including at each financial 

year end.      
      
Impairment      

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying value of tangible and intangible assets for any 

possible impairment. An impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined as higher of the asset’s net selling price or 

estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the assets and from their disposal at the 

end of their useful lives, which are discounted to their present value based on appropriate discount rates. For the 

purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the levels for which there are separately identifiable 

cash flows (cash generating unit). Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any 

indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting period may no longer exist or may 

have decreased.      
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Following are the changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended 

March 31, 2021:      

Particulars  Vehicle  Office 

Equipment 

 Computer Mobile Phone Total

21,521,699.00

    

69,700.00

          

137,280.00 133,000.00 21,861,679.00

-

                    

-

                   

28,305.00 - 28,305.00

8,555,218.00

      

-

                   

- - 8,555,218.00

12,966,481.00

    

69,700.00

          

165,585.00 133,000.00 13,334,766.00

13,580,494.00

    

66,215.00

          

130,416.00 74,108.00 13,851,233.00

1,291,090.00 - 2,726.00 13,680.00 1,307,496.00

6,377,376.00 - - - 6,377,376.00

8,494,208.00 66,215.00 133,142.00 87,788.00 8,781,353.00

4,472,273.00 3,485.00 32,443.00 45,212.00 4,553,413.00

7,941,205.00 3,485.00 6,864.00 58,892.00 8,010,446.00

Additions

Deletions

Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2021

Depreciation

Carrying value as at March 31, 2021

Carrying value as at April 1, 2020

Accumulated depreciation on deletions

Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2021

Gross carrying value as at April 1, 2020

Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2020

2.2 FINANCIAL ASSETS        
        
Initial recognition
        
The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, 

except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly 

attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, that may or may not at fair value 

through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial 

assets are accounted for at trade date.        
        
2.2.1 INVESTMENT
        
Investments are either classified as current or long-term based on Management’s intention at the time of 

purchase. Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value of each investment individually. 

Long term investments are carried at cost less provisions recorded to recognize any decline, if any, other than 

temporary, in the carrying value of each investment        
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Total

Total 34,824,800.00

34,824,800.00

                                

-

                                                

-

                                                

As at 31 March, 2021

Unquoted

(In `)

34,824,800.00                                (b) Investment in Equity Instrument

(Investment Stated as cost)

(c) Investment in Preference Shares

Less : Provision for dimunition in the value 

of Investments

-
                                                

-

-

                                               -

                                               

-
                                               

(a) Investment in Properties

49,864,800.00

49,864,800.00

                               

Other Investments (Refer Note A Below)

49,864,800.00                               

Unquoted

(In `)

  As at 31 March, 2020

Particulars

For Accounting Polices please refer note no. 1      

  
        
Non-current investments        

Details of Other Investments - F.Y. 2020-21  

M/s Maxheights 

Township & 

Projects Private 

Limited

M/s Maxheights 

Promoters Priavte 

Limited

M/s Icon Realcon 

Private Limited

M/s Maxheights 

Realtors Limited

M/s Maxheights 

Developers Private 

Limited

M/s Ranjitgarh 

Finance Company 

Private Limited

M/s New Delhi 

Realcon Private 

Limited

Other Other Subsidary Subsidary Associates Other Other

                                                -                                      396,000                                    740,000                                 2,000,000                                    250,000                                    388,800                          576,000 

Unquoted Unquoted Unquoted Unquoted Unquoted Unquoted Unquoted

Fully Paid Fully Paid Fully Paid Fully Paid Fully Paid Fully Paid Fully Paid

0.00% 19.80% 74% 100% 47.17% 9.98% 19.96%

                                                -                                   3,960,000                                 7,400,000                              20,000,000                                 2,500,000                                    388,800                          576,000 

                                6,000,000                               13,000,000                                 7,400,000                              20,000,000                                 2,500,000                                    388,800                          576,000 

Quoted / Unquoted

Amount Invested as on 1st 

April 2020

Name of the Body Corporate

Party Paid/ Fully Paid

Extend of Holding

Amount Invested as on 31st 

March 2021

Subsidiary / Associate / JV/ 

Controlled Entity / Others

No of Share/Units
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Current investments

Total 89,917.72

89,917.7289,917.72

89,917.72

Non Trade, Unquoted and Fully Paid

(Investment stated at Cost)

Invement in Mutual Funds

 Axis Equity Fund

As at 31 March, 2021

Quoted 

(In `)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2020

Quoted 

(In `)

2.3 Other Financial Assets

Particulars

Non Currents

Total

Current

Balances with government authorities 

Unsecured, considered good

(i) FBT Refundable 37,878.00

           
37,878.00

(ii) Income Tax Refund Refundable 2,948,451.00

      

2,702,656.00

(iii) Advance Income Tax 3,276,000.00

      

624,000.00

(iv) TDS/TCS 763,964.55

         

1,043,846.00

(v) Income Tax Demand (Appeal) 25,000.00

           

25,000.00

(vi) Cess Refundable 53,370.00

           

53,370.00

(vii) GST 31,637.00

           

-

Others

(i) Deposits (Booking of Plot & Flat) 3,420,000.00

      

9,901,899.00

(ii) Other 22,317.00 22,317.00

Total

Total 10,678,617.55 14,510,966.00

10,578,617.55

100,000.00

                                   

14,410,966.00

As at 31 March, 2020

(In `)

100,000.00

                                    
         - Ansal Prop. & Infra. Ltd. 100,000.00

                                   

100,000.00

                                    Security Deposit Unsecured Considered 

Good

As at 31 March, 2021

(In `)
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2.4 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)    
    
Accounting Policy 
   
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 

substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in 

which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on 

deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the 

enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is 

probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax 

losses can be utilized. Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries and 

branches where it is expected that the earnings of the subsidiary or branch will not be distributed in the 

foreseeable future. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally 

enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to 

realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.    
    
"Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset wherever the Company has a legally 

enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and where the deferred tax assets and 

deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority."    
    
The gross movement in the deferred income tax account for the year ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:     

Deferred Tax 

Liability/(Asset)

Change in Current 

Year Liability/(Asset)

As at 01.04.2020 As at 31.03.2021

Difference between book and tax 
               (336,050.00)                 (54,370.00)

Brought Forward Unabsorbed Business 

Loss (2007-08)
               (267,801.00)                              -   

Brought Forward Unabsorbed 

Depreciation (2007-08)
                (53,806.00)                              -   

Others (Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets)                    2,002.00                              -   

               (655,655.00)Total

Particulars
Deferred Tax 

depreciation
             (390,420.00)

             (267,801.00)

               (53,806.00)

                  2,002.00 

             (710,025.00)
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2.5 Inventories

 As at 31 March, 
2021 

 As at 31 March, 

2020 

(In `) (In `)

Finished Goods

Real Estate 345,854,024.00 262,789,798.00

345,854,024.00 262,789,798.00

@Valued at cost, unless otherwise stated

2.6 Trade Receivables

 As at 31 March, 
2021 

 As at 31 March, 

2020 

(In `) (In `)

Current 

Unsecured Considered Good 2,078,727.00 2,066,227.00

Less:Allowance for Credit Loss (refer below) - -

2,078,727.00 2,066,227.00

Particulars

Total

Total

Particulars

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach    

Real estate business    

The Company’s trade receivables does not have any expected credit loss as registry of properties sold is 

generally carried out once the Company receives the entire payment. During the periods presented, the 

Company made no write-offs of trade receivables and no recoveries from receivables previously written off.    
    
"Rental business" 
   
In respect of trade receivables, the Company considers provision for lifetime expected credit loss. Given the 

nature of business operations, the Company’s trade receivables has low credit risk as the Company holds 

security deposits equivalents ranging from three to six months rentals. Further historical trends indicate any 

shortfall between such deposits held by the Company and amounts due from customers have been negligible   . 
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2.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents   
   
Accounting Policy 
  
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits with banks/ corporations and short-term 

highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amount of cash and are subject to an 

insignificant risk of change in value.   

 As at 31 March, 

2021 

 As at 31 March, 
2020 

(In `) (In `)

            1,764,361.08              1,464,691.62 

            7,500,000.00                              -   

               173,161.88                  95,629.43 

            9,437,522.96              1,560,321.05 

Particulars

Balance with Banks

In Current Accounts

In Deposits

Cash in Hand

Total

Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 include restricted cash and bank balances 

of ` 2,92,806.85/- and ` 2,93,131.35/- respectively. The restrictions are primarily on account of bank balances 

held in unpaid dividend bank accounts. 
   
The deposits maintained by the Company with banks and financial institutions comprise of time deposits, which 

can be withdrawn by the Company at any point without prior notice or penalty on the principal.   
   
2.8 Loans   

 As at 31 March, 

2021 

 As at 31 March, 
2020 

(In `) (In `)

                            -                                -   

               318,700.00                 263,700.00 

Other Loans           22,770,804.00            44,422,055.00 

          23,089,504.00            44,685,755.00 

                            -                                -   

          23,089,504.00            44,685,755.00 Total

Particulars

Current

Unsecured Considered Good

Advance to Employees

Less: Allowance for Credit Loss
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2.9 Other Current Assets

Particulars
 As at 31 March, 

2021 

 As at 31 March, 
2020 

(In `) (In `)

Prepaid Expense

Insurance -

                         

1,65,346.00

Other 8,844.00

                 

-

Advances Recoverable 6,46,925.00 5,000,000.00

Total 6,55,769.00 5,165,346.00

2.10 Statement of Change in Equity

For F.Y. 2020-21

Particulars

Balance as on April 1, 2020     156,092,250.00   127,728,000.00       39,403,824.89               -                         -     (35,095,521.92)                    -                     -                         -          288,128,552.97 

 Changes in equity for the year 

ended March 31, 2021 

                       -                        -                           -                 -   
                      -                       -                      -                     -   

                      -                              -   

 Dividends (including dividend 

distribution tax) 

-                      -                           -                 -   
                      -                       -                      -                     -   

                      -                              -   

 Profit for the Period -                      -         20,594,694.46               -                         -                       -                      -                     -                         -            20,594,694.46 

Add: Excess Provision for Last year            389,444.00               389,444.00 

Balance as on March 31, 2021 156,092,250.00 127,728,000.00 60,387,963.35 - - (35,095,521.92) - - - 309,112,691.43

Equity Share 

Capital

Capital Reserve

Capital 

Reserve

Business

transfer

adjustment

reserve

Security 

Premiun 

Account

Retained Earning  General 

Reserve 

Share options 

Outstanding 

Capital 

Redumption 

Reserve

Reserves & Surplus Other 

Comprehensive 

Income

Total Equity 

attributable to 

equity holders of 

the Company

 Other Equity 



Annual Report 2020-2021 102

2.11 Borrowings

As on March 31, 

2021

As on March 31, 

2020

As on March 31, 

2021

As on March 31, 

2020

Secured

ICICI Bank Limited -

                          

1,279,070.00

Less: Amount disclosed under other current liabilities as ‘Current 

maturities of long-term borrowings’ -

                          

(670,118.00)

Yes Bank Limited 1,652,894.00

           

2,218,526.00

Less: Amount disclosed under other current liabilities as ‘Current 

maturities of long-term borrowings’ (617,785.00)

             

(565,632.00)

1,035,109.00

           

2,261,846.00 - -

Unsecured

Loans and advances from related parties 113,900,000.00

        
68,370,688.00 - -

Other - 25,786,773.00

114,935,109.00         70,632,534.00 - 25,786,773.00

Non Current Current

Particulars

Additional Disclosure regarding Non Current Borrowings    
    
1. Unsecured Loan from Related parties consists of Loan from Directors/Shareholders and are Interest Free loan. The Details 

of same as under    

As on March 31, 

2021

As on March 31, 

2020

Mansi Narang 30,500,000.00

          

34,500,000.00

Pitampura Leasing & Housing Finance Ltd 17,500,000.00

          

-

Manan Narang -

                         

5,070,688.00

Naveen Narang 65,900,000.00

          

28,800,000.00
Total 113,900,000.00

        

68,370,688.00

Additional Disclosure regarding Current Borrowings

As on March 31, 

2021

As on March 31, 

2020

Meridian Securities Private Limited - 20,550,060.00

(Borrowed at rate of Interest @ 12%)

Rajan Wadhwa Estates Pvt Ltd - 5,236,713.00

(Borrowed at rate of Interest @ 10%)
Total - 25,786,773.00

Particulars

Loans and advances from related 

parties - Non Current

Particulars

Loans and advances from Others - 

Current



Annual Report 2020-2021 103

2.12 Other Financial Liabilities

 As at 31 March, 
2021 

 As at 31 March,
2020 

(In `) (In `)

Lokdhun Telemedia (P) Ltd             1,000,000.00              1,000,000.00 

            1,000,000.00              1,000,000.00 

Current maturities of long-term debt - Secured

ICICI Bank Ltd                             -                   670,118.00 

Yes Bank                617,785.00                 565,632.00 

Other payables 

TDS Payable 71,375.00

                 
224,760.00

269,652.75
               

269,652.75

5,400.00                  90,300.00

1,000,000.00            -

Audit fees 115,625.00 112,500.00

Others 60,324.05 58,047.05

            2,140,161.80              1,991,009.80 

            3,140,161.80              2,991,009.80 

Rental Security

Particulars

Non Current

Current

i) Statutory remittances

Dividend  unpaid a/c

GST Payable

(ii) Advances from Customers

(iii) Expenses payable

Total

2.13 Trade Payables

 As at 31 March, 
2020 

(In `) (In `)

Trade Payable 866,568.00 771,312.00

866,568.00 771,312.00

Particulars

Current

Total

As the company has not received any information from any of the creditors 

of their being a micro or small scale industries undertaking hence amount 

due to micro or small scale industrial undertaking as on the balance sheet 

are not ascertainable.

          

            

          

            

          

         

         
 As at 31 March, 

2021 
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2.14       Provisions

 As at 31 March, 
2021 

 As at 31 March,
2020 

(In `) (In `)

Provisions for Income tax 3,917,790.00 1,089,050.00

3,917,790.00 1,089,050.00

Particulars

Total

Current

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it 

relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income. 

Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered 

from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 

Balance Sheet date. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences 

arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. 

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer 

probable that the related tax benefit will be realized   

2.15  Revenue from Operations    
    
In Respect of Real Estate Transaction
    
Definition of ‘revenue’ given in the Ind AS 18 is broad compared to the definition of ‘revenue’ given in existing AS 

9 because it covers all economic benefits that arise in the ordinary course of activities of an entity which result in 

increases in equity, other than increases relating to contributions from equity participants. On the other hand, as 

per the existing AS 9, revenue is gross inflow of cash, receivables or other consideration arising in the course of 

the ordinary activities of an enterprise from the sale of goods, from the rendering of services, and from the use by 

others of enterprise resources yielding interest, royalties and dividends.
    
In case of Real Estate transaction, the same is recognised only when registry of same is done only after entire 

payment relating to same is recovered from the customer thus adoption of IND AS 18 doesnt have any impact on 

revenue recognition.    
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 As at 31 March, 

Sale of Real Estate/ Property

Lease Rental

Commission Income

Professional Charges

Interest Income

Bank Deposit

Loans & Advances

          19,753,800.00 

Particulars

Total

2021 

 As at 31 March, 

2020 

(In `) (In `)

           9,900,000.00           23,300,000.00 

           4,000,000.00            5,157,900.00 

                           -              1,614,600.00 

           2,000,000.00                            -   

33,699.00
                

587,092.00

3,820,101.00

           
4,498,047.00

          35,157,639.00 

Additional Disclosure Regarding Revenue Recognition    
    
1. Sale of land and plot
    
 Sale of land and plots (including development rights) is recognized in the financial year in which the 

agreement to sell/application forms (containing salient terms of agreement to sell) is executed and 

there exists no uncertainty in the ultimate collection of consideration from buyers. Where the Company 

has any remaining substantial obligations as per agreements, revenue is recognized on ‘percentage of 

completion method’ as explained above under ‘revenue from real estate projects’.    
    
2. Rental Income    
 
 Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the lease, except for contingent 

rental income which is recognized when it arises and where scheduled increase in rent compensates 

the lessor for expected inflationary costs. Parking income and fit out rental income is recognized in 

statement of profit and loss on accrual basis.    
    
3. Interest income    

 Interest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method    
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2.16 Other Income    

 As at 31 March, 

2021 

 As at 31 March, 

2020 

(In `) (In `)

Profit on sale of car               172,158.00                            -   

Short & Excess                     900.06                            -   

Profit on Sale of Investment           23,896,000.00                            -   

Other Interest                   5,226.67                   5,787.00 

                           -   

          24,074,284.73                   5,787.00 Total

Particulars

2.17 Cost of land, plots, development rights, constructed properties and others

 As at 31 March, 

2021 

 As at 31 March, 

2020 

(In `) (In `)

      Inventory at beginning of the year (Real Estate)         262,789,798.00         208,459,963.20 

     Add: Purchases & Cost of construction during the year           92,564,149.00           72,846,235.00 

        355,353,947.00         281,306,198.20 

      Less: Inventory at the closing of the year         345,854,024.00         262,789,798.00 

           9,499,923.00           18,516,400.20 

           9,499,923.00           18,516,400.20 

Particulars

Total 

2.18 Employee benefits expense

 As at 31 March, 

2021 

 As at 31 March, 

2020 

(In `) (In `)

Salaries            1,703,325.00            3,170,434.00 

Director's Remuneration               500,000.00            2,400,000.00 

Keyman Insurance Policy 223,014.00

              

197,807.79

           2,426,339.00            5,768,241.79 Total

Particulars
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 As at 31 March, 

2021 

 As at 31 March, 

2020 

(In `) (In `)

Interest on

Car Loan               298,186.44               374,897.00 

Borrowings            3,310,691.00            1,619,141.00 

Other - Statutory Interest

On TDS 7,449.00 24.00

Bank Charges 6,877.63 4,527.62

           3,623,204.07            1,998,589.62 

Particulars

Total

2.19 Finance Cost

2.20 Other Expenses

 As at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020

(In `) (In `)

Insurance                   194,332.00                 192,143.06 

Telephone Charges                     38,794.00                   49,603.00 

Printing And Stationery                     68,740.00                   78,450.00 

Electricity, GAS And Water Expenses                   608,786.75 723,553.00

Advertisement                   146,592.00 182,812.00

Website Maint.                      4,423.00 15,647.00

Vehicle Running and Maintenance                     47,930.45 150,617.00

Filing Fees                     17,900.00 43,600.00

Legal and Professional Charges                   749,244.00 811,800.00

Annual Fees (BSE)                   354,000.00 354,000.00

Annual General Meeting Expenses                                -   30,250.00

General Expenses                      2,948.00 6,503.00

Postage and Courier                                -   112.60

Processing Charges                                -   24,047.00

Share Transfer Expenses                     48,600.00 -

NCLT Application Fees                                -   1,000.00

Repair & Maintenance                   105,718.00 87,141.00

Payment to Auditors

As Auditors - Statutory Audit                   125,000.00 125,000.00

               2,513,008.20               2,876,278.66 Total

Particulars
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4.  Notes to the Accounts

 I. EXPENDITURE/ EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (ON ACCRUAL BASIS) 

 II. CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS

 III. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

 IV. DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER THE MSMED 
ACT, 2006

  The informa�on regarding applicability of MSMED Act, 2006 to the various 
suppliers/par�es is not available with the assessee, hence informa�on as required vide 
Clause 22 of Chapter V of MSMED Act, 2006 is not been given.

Par�culars
 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

Expenditure  

On account of:  
Traveling NIL  NIL

Interest NIL  NIL

Total:- NIL  NIL

 

Earnings  

Sale NIL  NIL

Total:- NIL  NIL

Par�culars
 

Raw Materials NIL  NIL

Consumables NIL  NIL

Finished Goods NIL  NIL

Capital Goods NIL  NIL
Total:-  NIL  NIL

Par�culars
 

Audit Fee 1,25,000.00  

Total:-  1,25,000.00  

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

1,25,000.00

1,25,000.00
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 V. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

 VI. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

  In accordance with the requirements of Accoun�ng Standards (AS) -18 on Related Party 
Disclosures, the names of the related par�es where control exists and/or with whom 
transac�ons have taken place during the year and descrip�on of rela�onships, as iden�fied 
and cer�fied by the management are:

 Nate (a): Transac�ons with related par�es:-

Par�culars
 

Salary 5.00 Lacs  24.00 Lacs

Others Nil  Nil

Total:- 5.00 Lacs  24.00 Lacs

Sr. No. Name of the Related Party 
 

Rela�onship  

1. Sa�sh Chander Narang Key Management Personnel (KMP) –  Director of the Company  

2. Naveen Narang Key Management Personnel (KMP) –  Managing Director of the Company and Chief 
Financial Officer  

3.    
4.    

Jawahar Lal Key Management Personnel (KMP) – Director of the Company

Kartar Chand Ahuja Key Management Personnel (KMP) – Director of the Company

 
5.

6.

  

Mansi Narang Key Management Personnel (KMP) – Director of the Company

 

7.   

Ashok Ahuja Key Management Personnel (KMP) – Director of the Company

8. Vandita Arora Key Management Personnel (KMP) –  Company Secretary  

9. Max Heights Promoters 
Private Limited 

Enterprises Controlled by company –  Subsidiary of Company  

10. Max Heights Township & 
Projects Private Limited 

Enterprises Controlled by company –  Subsidiary of Company  

11. Icon Realcon Private Limited Enterprises Controlled by company –  Subsidiary of Company  

12. Max Heights Realtors Limited Enterprises Controlled by company –  Subsidiary of Company  

13. Max Heights Developers 
Private Limited 

Enterprises Controlled by company –  Associates of Company  

14. Naveen Narang HUF Enterprises controlled by KMP  

15. Manan Narang Rela�ve of KMP  

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

(In `)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

(In `)

Gourav Key Management Personnel (KMP) – Addi�onal Director of the Company
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 VII. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

  Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report 
informa�on about opera�ng segments and related disclosures about products and 
services, geographic areas, and major customers. The Company's opera�ons 
predominantly relate to Real Estate Development. Based on the 'management approach' as 
defined in Ind AS 108, Management evaluates the Company's performance and allocates 
resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments 
and geographic segments. Accordingly, informa�on has been presented both along 
business segments and geographic segments. The accoun�ng principles used in the 
prepara�on of the financial statements are consistently applied to record revenue and 
expenditure in individual segments, and are as set out in the significant accoun�ng policies.

  Segment repor�ng Policies:-

  a) Iden�fica�on of Segments:-  Primary – Business Segment

   Before Amalgama�on the company was a single segment company. A�er 
amalgama�on of three Transferor Companies, the company has iden�fied three 
reportable segments viz. financing of vehicles and other finance, Real Estate 
business and dealing in stock and shares.

S.No. Nature of 
transac�on 
(excluding 

reimbursement) 

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
(KMP) 

Others Opening  
Balance  

01/04/2020  

During the  
year  

 
 

Closing 
Balance 

31/03/2021

1 Balance of 
Unsecured Loan 

Mansi Narang  3,45,00,000.00  
 

10,00,000.00  
(50,00,000.00)  

 

3,05,00,000.00

2 Balance of 
Unsecured Loan 

Naveen Narang
 

 2,88,00,000.00  7,21,00,000.00  
(35000000.00)  

6,59,00,000.00

3. Balance of  
Unsecured Loan 

 Pitampura 
Leasing & 
Housing 
Finance 
Limited 

-  1,79,88,855.00  
(4,88,855.00)  

1,75,00,000.00

Interest Paid   -  5,28,493.00  -

4. Balance of 
Unsecured Loan 

 Manan 
Narang 

50,70,688.00  73,98,844.00  
(1,24,69,532.00)  

-

5. Interest Paid  -  6,98,844.00  -

6. Remunera�on Paid Naveen Narang
 

 -  5,00,000.00  
(5,00,000.00)  

7. Remunera�on Paid Vandita Arora  -  3,85,000.00  
(3,85,000.00)  
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  Secondary – Geographical Segments

   The company operates en�rely in India and hence no geographical segment has 
been made.

  b) Revenue and expenses have been iden�fied to the segment on the basis of 
rela�onship to opera�ng ac�vi�es of the segment. Revenue and expenses which 
relate to enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on reasonable 
basis have been disclosed as un-allocable expenses.

  c) Segment assets and liabili�es represent assets and liabili�es in respec�ve 
segments. Investments, tax related assets and other assets and liabili�es that 
cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as 
unallocated assets and liabili�es.

 VIII. Notes 1 to 4 forms the integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date      
For Praveen Om Jain & Co. 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 019993N For & on behalf of Board

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Praveen Kumar Sa�sh Chander Narang Naveen Narang Vandita Arora 
Prop. Chairman Managing Director Company Secretary 
M.No. 503734 DIN: 00095693 DIN: 00095708 M.No. 61149 

Date: 30.06.2021
Place: New Delhi
UDIN: 21503734AAAACW6883
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Max Heights Infrastructure Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Max Heights Infrastructure 

Limited which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and 

statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 

of significant accoun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on .

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the aforesaid 

Consolidated Financial Statements give the informa�on required by the Act in the manner so required and 

give a true and fair view in conformity with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, of the state 

of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that 

date.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng (SAs) specified under sec�on 143(10) 

of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 

Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements sec�on of our report. We are independent of the 

Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India 

together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Ma�ers

Key audit ma�ers are those ma�ers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 

of the financial statements of the current period. These ma�ers were addressed in the context of our audit of 

the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 

opinion on these ma�ers.

We draw your a�en�on to the financial statements, which describes the economic and social

disrup�on the en�ty is facing as a result of COVID-19 which is impac�ng supply chain and personnel being 

able to access offices. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this ma�er.

Responsibility of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the ma�ers stated in sec�on 134(5) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the prepara�on of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a 

true and fair view of the financial posi�on, financial performance, (changes in equity) and cash flows of the 

Company in accordance with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, including the accoun�ng 

Standards specified under sec�on 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
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accoun�ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 

and for preven�ng and detec�ng frauds and other irregulari�es, selec�on and applica�on of appropriate 

implementa�on and maintenance of accoun�ng policies, making judgments and es�mates that are 

reasonable and prudent, and design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng 

records, relevant to the prepara�on and presenta�on of the financial statement that give a true and fair view 

and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 

con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accoun�ng unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so. 

That the Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company's financial repor�ng process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skep�cism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 

not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from 

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the 

override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 

for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has in place adequate internal financial controls 

with reference to consolidated financial statements and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng 

es�mates and related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors in the consolidated 

financial statements. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's and Board of Director's use of the going concern 

basis of accoun�ng and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
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con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 

draw a�en�on in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 

on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or 

condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the 

underlying transac�ons and events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope 

and �ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 

that we iden�fy during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers 

that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
 
From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers that were 

of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are 

therefore the key audit ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our auditors' report unless law or regula�on 

precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 

ma�er should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communica�on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the considera�on of report on separate 

financial statements and the other financial informa�on of subsidiaries and associates as noted in the other 

ma�er paragraph, we report to the extent applicable, that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examina�on of those books.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 

account maintained for the purpose of prepara�on of Consolidated Financial Statements. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Accoun�ng 

Standards specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014. 



Annual Report 2020-2021 116

e. On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from 

being appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on 164 (2) of the Act. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the 

Company and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 

A”. 

g. With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informa�on 

and according to the explana�ons given to us:

 i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending li�ga�ons on its financial posi�on in its 

financial statements.

 ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accoun�ng 

standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including 

deriva�ve.

 iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 

Educa�on and Protec�on Fund by the Company.

With respect to the ma�er to be included in the Auditors' Report under sec�on 197(16) of the Act: 

In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the remunera�on paid by the 

Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of sec�on 197 of the Act. 

The remunera�on paid to any director is not in excess of the limits laid down under sec�on 197 of the Act. The 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under sec�on 197(16) of the Act which are 

required to be commented upon by us.

For Praveen Om Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
F.R.N. 019993N

Sd/-
(Praveen Kumar)
Prop
M.No. 503734�

Place: New Delhi
Date:30.06.2021
UDIN: 21503734AAAACX7530 
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' sec�on of our 

report to the Members of Max Heights Infrastructure Limited of even date).

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng under Clause (i) of Sub-sec�on 3 of 

Sec�on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunc�on with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year 

ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of Max Heights 

Infrastructure Limited (hereina�er referred to as “Company”) and its subsidiary companies, which are 

companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in 

India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control 

over financial repor�ng criteria established by the respec�ve Companies considering the essen�al 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). These 

responsibili�es include the design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 

that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 

adherence to the respec�ve company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on and detec�on 

of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, and the �mely prepara�on of 

reliable financial informa�on, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the 

Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Repor�ng (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 

Standards on Audi�ng, prescribed under Sec�on 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 

to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

adequate internal financial controls over financial repor�ng was established and maintained and if such 

controls operated effec�vely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system over financial repor�ng and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of internal 

financial controls over financial repor�ng included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 

over financial repor�ng, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tes�ng and evalua�ng the 

design and opera�ng effec�veness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng of the Company and its 

subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng

A company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on of financial statements for 

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles. A company's internal 

financial control over financial repor�ng includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transac�ons and 

disposi�ons of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are recorded as 

necessary to permit prepara�on of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 

authoriza�ons of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 

preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorized acquisi�on, use, or disposi�on of the company's assets that 

could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng

Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projec�ons of any evalua�on of the internal financial controls over 

financial repor�ng to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 

repor�ng may become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or that the degree of compliance with 

the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the Company 

and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an 

adequate internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng and such internal financial controls over 

financial repor�ng were opera�ng effec�vely as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over 

financial repor�ng criteria established by the respec�ve companies considering the essen�al components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng 

issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Praveen Om Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
F.R.N. 019993N

Sd/-
(Praveen Kumar)
Prop
M.No. 503734 

Place: New Delhi
Date:  30.06.2021
UDIN: 21503734AAAACX7530 
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Particulars Note No.

Figures as at the end of 

current reporting 

period

Figures as at the end of 

the previous reporting 

period

1 2 3 4

ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2.1                  4,752,868.00                   16,239,429.03 

(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 2.2                  4,924,800.00                       964,800.00 

(ii) Loans

2.3                  1,167,750.00                       723,600.00 

(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 2.4                     715,586.00                       896,160.09 

(d) Other non-current assets                                  -                                      -   

                11,561,004.00                   18,823,989.12 

(2) Current assets

(a) Inventories 2.5            1,361,553,420.81              2,603,144,401.93 

(b) Financial Assets                                    -   

(i) Investments 2.2                       89,917.72                         89,917.72 

(ii) Trade receivables 2.6                  2,078,727.00                 129,787,044.00 

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 2.7                 30,553,389.53                   36,116,040.90 

(v) Loans 2.8                 33,089,504.00                   55,026,029.00 

2.3                 39,381,903.67                   95,486,610.41 

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net)

(d) Other current assets 2.9                  1,164,368.00                    9,637,351.00 

           1,467,911,230.73              2,929,287,394.96 

Total Assets            1,479,472,234.73              2,948,111,384.08 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity 2.10

(a) Equity Share capital               156,092,250.00                 156,092,250.00 

(b) Other Equity               153,793,106.26                 166,137,744.31 

Equity attributable to owners of Holding Company               309,885,356.26                 322,229,994.31 

Non-Controlling Interest                  9,487,902.72                   47,177,845.44 

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 2.11               445,581,276.00                 431,846,328.93 

(ii) Trade payables

2.12                  1,000,000.00                    1,000,000.00 

(b) Provisions

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)                                  -   

(d) Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 2.11               348,332,117.00                 627,337,844.00 

(ii) Trade payables 2.13               266,921,594.95                 277,005,031.92 

2.12                 93,375,437.80              1,236,837,229.48 

(b) Other current liabilities

(c) Provisions 2.14                  4,888,550.00                    4,677,110.00 

(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Total Equity and Liabilities            1,479,472,234.73              2,948,111,384.08 

MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

SD-65, PITAMPURA, NEW DELHI - 110034

CIN: L67120DL1981PLC179487

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

Web- www.maxheights.com, email id- maxinfra1981@gmail.com, Ph- 011-2731 4646, CIN - L67120DL1981PLC179487

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors For Praveen Om Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regd. No. 019993N

Satish Chander Narang Naveen Narang

Director Director

DIN: 00095693 DIN: 00095708Praveen Kumar

 Membership No. 503734 

Place : New Delhi

Date   : 30.06.2021
UDIN : 21503734AAAACX7530

Proprietor

Vandita Arora

Company Secretary

M.No.: 61149

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-
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Figures for the current 

reporting period

Figures for the previous 

reporting period

I Revenue From Operations 2.15                      103,438,262.00                    434,045,781.50 

II Other Income 2.16                        27,476,946.26                        5,879,454.32 

III                      130,915,208.26                    439,925,235.82 

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed

Cost of land, plots, development rights, constructed properties and

others
2.17                        70,016,175.00                    365,581,345.88 

2.18                          5,124,339.00                      10,867,513.79 

Finance costs 2.19                        35,391,424.89                      35,684,577.43 

Depreciation and amortization expense 2.1                          1,343,780.00                        2,571,731.04 

Other expenses 2.20                          5,011,451.50                        6,354,298.84 

                     116,887,170.39                    421,059,466.98 

V                        14,028,037.87                      18,865,768.84 

VI Exceptional Items                                          -                                          -   

(V-VI)

Tax expense:

(1) Current tax                          4,888,550.00                        4,677,110.00 

(2) Deferred tax                             (56,776.00)                           (12,131.16)

                         4,831,774.00                        4,664,978.84 

continuing operations (VII-VIII)

X                                          -                                          -   

XI Tax expense of discontinued operations                                          -                                          -   

XII                                          -                                          -   

XIII                          9,196,263.87                      14,200,790.00 

Other Comprehensive Income                                          -                                          -   

(Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income

for the period)

XVI Minority Interest                         (2,920,837.39)                        3,960,978.78 

XVI                        12,117,101.26                      10,239,811.22 

Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation):

(1) Basic                                      0.78                                    0.66 

(2) Diluted                                      0.78                                    0.66 

Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operation):

(1) Basic

(2) Diluted

Earnings per equity share(for discontinued

& continuing operations)

(1) Basic                                      0.78                                    0.66 

(2) Diluted                                      0.78                                    0.66 

MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

SD-65, PITAMPURA, NEW DELHI - 110034

CIN: L67120DL1981PLC179487

VIII

VII                        14,028,037.87 

                     14,200,790.00 

Note No.Particulars

IV

                     18,865,768.84 

XV                          9,196,263.87 

IX                          9,196,263.87 

XIV

XVI

                                         -                                          -   
XVII

                     14,200,790.00 

XVIII

Web- www.maxheights.com, email id- maxinfra1981@gmail.com, Ph- 011-2731 4646, CIN - L67120DL1981PLC179487

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

For Praveen Om Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regd. No. 019993N Satish Chander Narang Naveen Narang

Director Director

DIN: 00095693 DIN: 00095708
Praveen Kumar

 Membership No. 503734 

Proprietor

Vandita Arora

Company Secretary

M.No.: 61149Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Place : New Delhi

Date   : 30.06.2021
UDIN : 21503734AAAACX7530

` `
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Particulars For the year ended 

March 31,2021

For the year ended 

March 31,2020

14,028,037.87 18,865,768.84

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 1,343,780.00 2,571,731.04

(24,068,158.00) (705,312.55)

Interest Received (3,407,888.20)

                   

(8,358,986.86)

Interest 35,391,424.89

                  

32,015,811.19

Last Year provision 387,516.00

                       

572,089.00

Refund -

                                  

4,073.00

 

23,674,712.56

                  

44,965,173.66

Changes in working capital:

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:

Inventories (31,371,308.88)

                 

176,251,369.11

Trade receivables (12,500.00)

                       

112,649,690.00

21,936,525.00

                  

35,988,133.82

Other current assets 13,976,436.95

                  

(6,070,644.15)

2,695,650.00

                    

(1,314,410.00)

Trade Payable & Other liabilities (55,072,352.15)

                 

(275,899,527.29)

Cash Generated from Operating activities (24,172,836.52)

                 

86,569,785.15

4,888,550.00

                    

4,677,110.00

Net Cash Flow from operating activities (29,061,386.52)

                 
81,892,675.15

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Addition to Fixed Assets (28,305.00)

                       

(2,626,627.09)

Sale of Fixed Assets 41,286,000.00

                  

924,460.00

Interest received 3,407,888.20

                    

8,358,986.86

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 44,665,583.20

                  

6,656,819.77

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from Borrowing 42,179,613.00

                  

(52,041,594.68)

Interest Payments (35,391,424.89)

                 

(32,015,811.19)

6,788,188.11 (84,057,405.87)

Net Cash Flow during the year (A+B+C) 22,392,384.79 4,492,089.05

Cash & Cash Equivalent (Opening Balance) (D) 8,161,004.74 31,623,951.85

Cash & Cash Equivalent (Closing Balance) (E) 30,553,389.53 36,116,040.90

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 22,392,384.79 4,492,089.05

MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

SD-65, PITAMPURA, NEW DELHI - 110034

CIN: L67120DL1981PLC179487

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

Web- www.maxheights.com, email id- maxinfra1981@gmail.com, Ph- 011-2731 4646, CIN - L67120DL1981PLC179487

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

For Praveen Om Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regd. No. 019993N Satish Chander Narang Naveen Narang

Director Director

DIN: 00095693 DIN: 00095708
Praveen Kumar

 Membership No. 503734 

Proprietor

Vandita Arora

Company Secretary

M.No.: 61149Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Place : New Delhi

Date   : 30.06.2021
UDIN : 21503734AAAACX7530
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MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
SD - 65, Tower Apartment, Pitampura, New Delhi – 110034

CIN: L67120DL1981PLC179487

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

CORPORATE INFORMATION

MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED ('the Holding Company') incorporated in India on July 28, 1981, a 
company incorporated under the laws of India. The Company's shares are publicly traded on the Bombay 
Stock Exchange ('BSE'), India and Calcu�a Stock Exchange. The Registered office of the Company is situated at 
SD – 65, Tower Apartments, Pitampura, New Delhi – 110034.

NATURE OF PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Max Heights Infrastructure Limited ('the Group') is engaged primarily in the business of real estate 
development and Financing Ac�vity. The opera�ons of the Group span all aspects of real estate development, 
from the iden�fica�on and acquisi�on of land, to planning, execu�on, construc�on and marke�ng of 
projects. The Company is also engaged in the business of leasing, maintenance services and recrea�onal 
ac�vi�es which are related to the overall development of real estate business. The Company is domiciled in 
India.

GENERAL INFORMATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH IND AS

These Consolidated Financial Statements ('financial statements')of the Group have been prepared in 
accordance with the Indian Accoun�ng Standards (hereina�er referred to as the 'Ind AS') as no�fied (by 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA')) under Sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read with the 
Companies(Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. 
The Group has uniformly applied the accoun�ng policies during the periods presented.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 were authorized and approved by 
the Board of Directors on 30th June, 2021.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with 
accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India. Accoun�ng policies have been consistently applied except 
where a newly issued accoun�ng standard is ini�ally adopted or a revision to an exis�ng accoun�ng standard 
requires a change in the accoun�ng policy hitherto in use.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accoun�ng 
principles in India under the historical cost conven�on on accrual basis.

Based on the nature of products and the �me between the acquisi�on of assets for processing and their 
realiza�on in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has ascertained its opera�ng cycle as twelve months for 
the purpose of current/ non-current classifica�on of assets and liabili�es.

Impact of Covid-19 Pandemic 

Post declara�on of COVID-19 as a pandemic by the World Health Organiza�on, the Government in India and 
across the world have taken significant measures to curtail the wide spread of virus, including country wide 
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lockdown and restric�on in economic ac�vi�es.

In view of such lockdowns, opera�ons at Company facili�es in India were scaled down from the end week of 
March 2020 and the immediate steps were taken to counter the issues. In view of the impact of COVID-19, the 
Company has assessed the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, inventories, trade 
receivables, and other assets. In assessing the recoverable value of such assets, the Company has considered 
various internal and external informa�on such as exis�ng long-term arrangements with customers and 
vendors, long-term business plan, cash flow forecasts and possible future uncertain�es in economic 
condi�ons because of the pandemic including lockdowns and supply chain disrup�ons
across various geographies of the world. As per the Company's current assessment of recoverability of these 
assets no significant impact on carrying amounts of these assets is expected.

The eventual outcome of the impact of the global health pandemic may be different from those es�mated as 
on the date of approval of these financial statements and the Company con�nues to closely monitor the 
situa�on including any material changes to future economic condi�ons and consequen�al impact on its 
financial statements.

Use of es�mates

The prepara�on of the Consolidated Financial Statements, in conformity with Ind AS requires the 
management to make es�mates, judgments and assump�ons. These es�mates, judgments and assump�ons 
affect the applica�on of accoun�ng policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabili�es, the disclosures 
of con�ngent assets and liabili�es at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the period. The applica�on of accoun�ng policies that require cri�cal accoun�ng 
es�mates involving complex and subjec�ve judgments and the use of assump�ons in these financial 
statements have been disclosed wherever required.

Accoun�ng es�mates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those es�mates. 
Appropriate changes in es�mates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances 
surrounding the es�mates. Changes in es�mates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in 
which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

Basis of Consolida�on
  
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all en��es (including structured en��es) over which the Group has control. The Group 
controls an en�ty when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with 
the en�ty and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant ac�vi�es of the 
en�ty.

The Group combines the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries line by line adding 
together like items of assets, liabili�es, equity, income and expenses. Inter-company transac�ons, balances 
and unrealized gains on transac�ons between the group companies are eliminated. Accoun�ng policies of 
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the 
Group.

Non-controlling interests, presented as part of equity, represent the por�on of a subsidiary's statement of 
profit and loss and net assets that is not held by the Group. Statement of profit and loss balance (including 
other comprehensive income ('OCI')) is a�ributed to the equity holders of the Holding Company and to the 
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non-controlling interests basis the respec�ve ownership interests and such balance is a�ributed even if this 
results in controlling interests having a deficit balance.

During the year the Company has made disinvestment in two subsidiary companies namely Max Heights 
Township & Projects Pvt. Ltd and Max Heights Promoters Pvt. Ltd. Hence, the financials of these two 
companies are not considered for consolida�on during the year.

Associates

Investment in en��es in which there exists significant influence but not a controlling interest are accounted 
for under the equity method i.e. the investment is ini�ally recorded at cost, iden�fying any goodwill arising at 
the �me of acquisi�on, as the case maybe, which will be inherent in investment. The carrying amount of the 
investment is adjusted therea�er for the post acquisi�on changes in the share of net assets of the investee,  
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accoun�ng policies of the Group. The consolidated 
statement of profit and loss (including the other comprehensive income) includes the Group's share of the 
results of the opera�ons of the investee.

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accoun�ng policies and 
measurement basis summarized below. These were used throughout all periods presented in the 
financial statements, except where the Company has applied certain accoun�ng policies and 
exemp�ons upon transi�on to Ind AS summarized:

 
 1.1 Current and non-current classifica�on

  All assets and liabili�es have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's 
normal opera�ng cycle and other criteria set-out in the Act. Deferred tax assets and 
liabili�es are classified as non-current assets and non-current liabili�es, as the case may be.

 1.2 Property, plant and equipment

  Recogni�on and ini�al measurement

  Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisi�on. The cost comprises 
purchase price, borrowing cost if capitaliza�on criteria are met and directly a�ributable 
cost of bringing the asset to its working condi�on for the intended use. Any trade discount 
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included 
in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit or 
loss as incurred.

  Subsequent measurement (deprecia�on and useful lives)

  Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
deprecia�on and impairment losses. Deprecia�on on property, plant and equipment is 
provided on a straight-line basis, computed on the basis of useful lives (as set-out below) 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Act:
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  The residual values, useful lives and method of deprecia�on are reviewed at the end of 
each financial year.

  De-recogni�on

  An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part ini�ally recognized is de-
recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or 
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recogni�on of the asset (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in 
the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is de-recognized.

  Impairment

  At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying value of tangible and 
intangible assets for any possible impairment. An impairment loss is recognized when the 
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is 
determined as higher of the asset's net selling price or es�mated future cash flows 
expected to arise from the con�nuing use of the assets and from their disposal at the end of 
their useful lives, which are discounted to their present value based on appropriate 
discount rates. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the levels 
for which there are separately iden�fiable cash flows (cash genera�ng unit). Assessment is 
done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indica�on that an impairment 
loss recognized for an asset in prior accoun�ng period may no longer exist or may have 
decreased.

S.No. Assets 
 

Life as per schedule II Life Taken  

1. Vehicles 8 Years 8 Years  

2. Computers 3 Years 3 Years  
3. Mobile Phone 5 Years 5 Years  

4. Office Equipment 5 years 5 years  

5. Fax Machine 5 Years 5  Years  

6. Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years 10  Years  

7. Air condi�oner 5 years 5 years  

8. Photocopier Machine 5 Years 5  Years  

9. Water Purifier 5 Years 5 Years  

10. Mixer Machine Set 5 Years 5 Years  

11. Note Coun�ng Machine 5 Years 5 Years  

12. DG Set 5 Years 5 Years  

13. Printer 3 Years 3  Years  

14. Refrigerator 5 Years 5  Years  

15. Motorcycle 10 Years 10  Years  
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 1.3 Capital Work-in-Progress

  Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets underdevelopment represents expenditure 
incurred in respect of capital projects/ intangible assets under development and are carried 
at cost. Cost includes land, related acquisi�on expenses, development/construc�on costs, 
borrowing costs and other direct expenditure.

 1.4 Revenue recogni�on

  Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and it can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
considera�on received/receivable net of rebate and taxes. The Company applies the 
revenue recogni�on criteria to each nature of revenue transac�on the details of same is 
men�oned under note no. 2.15

  Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contract with Customers: On March 28, 2018, Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has no�fied the Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with 
Customers. The core principle of the new standard is that an en�ty should recognize 
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount 
that reflects the considera�on to which the en�ty expects to be en�tled in exchange for 
those goods or services. Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the 
nature, amount, �ming and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the en�ty's 
contracts with customers. 

  The standard permits two possible methods of transi�on: 

  l Retrospec�ve approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied 
retrospec�vely to each prior repor�ng period presented in accordance with Ind AS 
8 - Accoun�ng Policies, Changes in Accoun�ng Es�mates and Errors.

  l Retrospec�vely with cumula�ve effect of ini�ally applying the standard 
recognized at the date of ini�al applica�on (Cumula�ve catch - up approach).

  The effec�ve date for adop�on of Ind AS 115 is financial periods beginning on or a�er April 
1, 2018. The Company will adopt the standard on April 1, 2018 by using the cumula�ve 
catch-up transi�on method and accordingly compara�ves for the year ending or ended 
March 31, 2018 will not be retrospec�vely adjusted. The effect on adop�on of Ind AS 115 is 
expected to be insignificant.

 1.5 Cost of Revenue

  Cost of constructed proper�es other than SEZ projects, includes cost of land (including cost 
of development rights/ land under agreements to purchase), es�mated internal 
development costs, external development charges, cost of development rights, 
construc�on and development cost, borrowing cost, construc�on materials, which is 
charged to the statement of profit and loss based on the percentage of comple�on method 
as explained in accoun�ng policy for revenue from real estate projects above, in 
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consonance with the concept of matching costs and revenue. Final adjustment is made on 
comple�on of the applicable project.

  Cost of land and plots includes land (including development rights), acquisi�on cost, 
es�mated internal development costs and external development charges, borrowing cost 
which is charged to the statement of profit and loss based on the percentage of 
land/plo�ed based on the percentage of comple�on method as explained in accoun�ng 
policy for revenue from land and plots, in consonance with the concept of matching cost 
and revenue. Final adjustment is made on comple�on of the specific project.

 1.6 Financial Instruments

  Financial assets and financial liabili�es are recognized when the Company becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured ini�ally at fair 
value adjusted for transac�on costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or 
loss which are measured ini�ally at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets 
and financial liabili�es is described below:

  a. Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

   Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are 
stated at cost as per Ind AS 27 'Separate Financial Statements.

  b. Investments in other equity instruments

   Investments in equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at 
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

  c. Investments in mutual funds

   Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit and loss 
(FVTPL).

  De-recogni�on of financial assets

  A financial asset is primarily de-recognized when the contractual rights to receive cash 
flows from the asset have expired or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash 
flows from the asset.

  Offse�ng of financial instruments

  Financial assets and Financial Liabili�es are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts 
and there is an inten�on to se�le on a net basis, to realise the assets and se�le the liabili�es 
simultaneously.
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  Other financial assets

  In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those 
financial assets has increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on. If the credit risk has not 
increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on, the Company measures the loss allowance 
at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the 
life�me expected credit losses. 

  When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default 
occurring over the expected life of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the 
Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the balance 
sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of ini�al 
recogni�on and considers reasonable and supportable informa�on, that is available 
without undue cost or effort, that is indica�ve of significant increases in credit risk since 
ini�al recogni�on. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not 
increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on if the financial asset is determined to have 
low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

 1.7 Inventories

  Inventories are valued as under:

  l Land and plots other than area transferred to constructed proper�es at the 
commencement of construc�on are valued at lower of cost/approximate average 
cost/as re-valued on conversion to stock and net realizable value. Cost includes 
land (including development rights) acquisi�on cost, borrowing cost, es�mated 
internal development costs and external development charges.

  l Cost of construc�on/development material is valued at lower of cost or net 
realizable value.

  l Building material and consumable stores are valued at cost, which is determined 
on the basis of FIFO.

  l Land is valued at cost, which is determined on average method. Cost includes cost 
of acquisi�on and all related costs. 

  l Unsold Por�on / Por�on under construc�on is shown at cost under the head stock 
in trade Construc�on Ac�vity.

 1.8 Advances for Assets

  Advances paid towards the acquisi�on of property, plant and equipment outstanding at 
each Balance Sheet date is classified as capital advances under Short Term Loans & 
Advances. Subsequent expenditures rela�ng to property, plant and equipment is 
capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these 
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
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 1.9 Foreign Currency Transac�ons

  The Company had not done any foreign currency transac�ons during the year.

 1.10 Employee Benefits

  Short term employee benefits are recognized in the year during which the services have 
been rendered.

  The employees of the Company are en�tled to compensate  absences which are non-
accumula�ng in nature. Expense on non-accumula�ng compensated absences is 
recognized in the period in which the absences occur.

  No employee of the company has been into employment of the company for more than 5 
Years. Therefore, no provision is accrued for gratuity and leave encashment.

 1.11 Borrowing Cost

  Financial Costs rela�ng to borrowed funds a�ributable to the acquisi�on or construc�on of 
fixed assets which takes substan�al period of �me to get ready for its intended use is 
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. The interest cost incurred for funding a 
qualifying asset during the construc�on period is capitalized based on actual investment in 
the asset at the average interest rate for specific borrowings. However, financing costs 
(including interest) on fixed assets purchased on deferred credit basis or on the monies 
borrowed for the construc�on or acquisi�on of fixed assets are not capitalized to the extent 
that such costs relate to periods a�er such assets are ready to be put to use.

 1.12 Taxes on Income 

  Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is 
recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Current income tax for current 
and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the 
tax authori�es, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substan�vely 
enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred income tax assets and liabili�es are 
recognized for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and 
liabili�es and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are 
reviewed at each repor�ng date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that the related tax benefit will be realized. 

  Deferred income tax assets and liabili�es are measured using tax rates and tax laws that 
have been enacted or substan�vely enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to 
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to 
be recovered or se�led. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and 
liabili�es is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or 
the substan�ve enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deduc�ble 
temporary differences and tax losses can be u�lized. Deferred income taxes are not 
provided on the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries and branches where it is expected 
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that the earnings of the subsidiary or branch will not be distributed in the foreseeable 
future. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabili�es, where it has a 
legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to 
se�le on a net basis, or to realize the asset and se�le the liability simultaneously.

 1.13 Trade Receivable

  In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, 
which requires measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to life �me expected 
credit losses. Life�me expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from 
all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. (For Details 
regarding Type of Trade Receivable and expected Loss. (refer Note 2.6)

 1.14 Earnings Per Share

  Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period 
a�ributable to equity shareholders(a�er deduc�ng a�ributable taxes) by the weighted-
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted-average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a 
bonus issue.

  For the purpose of calcula�ng diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the 
period a�ributable to equity shareholders and the weighted-average number of shares 
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilu�ve poten�al equity 
shares.

 1.15 Cash & Cash equivalents

 · Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and cash on deposit with banks and 
corpora�ons. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining 
maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily conver�ble to 
known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.     

 · Cash in hand has been cer�fied by the management at the close of the year.

 1.16 Current Assets

  In the opinion of the management, current assets, loans & advances have the value on the 
realiza�on in the ordinary course of business equal to the amount at which they are stated 
and all known liabili�es have been adequately provided for.

S.No. PARTICULARS For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

A. Net Profit Available for Shareholders 1,21,17,101.26  1,02,39,811.22

B. No. of Equity Shares 1,56,09,225  1,56,09,225

C. EPS 0.78  0.66

D. Diluted No. of Equity Share -  -

E. DEPS 0.78  0.66
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 1.17 Cash Flow Statement

  Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is 
adjusted for the effects of transac�ons of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of 
past or future opera�ng cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses 
associated with inves�ng or financing cash flows. The cash flows from opera�ng, inves�ng 
and financing ac�vi�es of the Company are segregated. The company considers all highly 
liquid investments that are readily conver�ble to known amounts of cash to be cash 
equivalents. 

  Effec�ve April 1, 2017, the Company adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which require the 
en��es to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes 
in liabili�es arising from financing ac�vi�es, including both changes arising from cash flows 
and non-cash changes, sugges�ng inclusion of a reconcilia�on between the opening and 
closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabili�es arising from financing ac�vi�es, to meet 
the disclosure requirement. The adop�on of amendment did not have any material impact 
on the financial statements.

 1.18 Provisions and Con�ngencies

  l A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present 
legal or construc�ve obliga�on that is reasonably es�mable, and it is probable 
that an ou�low of economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on. 
Provisions are determined by discoun�ng the expected future cash flows at a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the �me value of money and 
the risks specific to the liability.

  l A con�ngent liability is a possible obliga�on that arises from past events whose 
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present 
obliga�on that is not recognized because it is not probable that an ou�low of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on 
or the amount of the obliga�on cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 
Con�ngent liability has been disclosed in accordance with AS-29, issued by The 
Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India.

 1.19 Significant management judgment in applying accoun�ng policies and es�ma�on 
uncertainty

  The prepara�on of the Group's financial statements requires management to make 
judgments, es�mates and assump�ons that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabili�es and the related disclosures.

  Significant management judgments.

  The following are significant management judgments in applying the accoun�ng policies of 
the Group that have the most significant effect on the financial statements.
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  l Recogni�on of deferred tax assets – The extent to which deferred tax assets can 
be recognized is based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable 
income against which the deferred tax assets can be u�lized.

  l Evalua�on of indicators for impairment of assets – The evalua�on of applicability 
of indicators of impairment of assets -requires assessment of several external and 
internal factors which could result in deteriora�on of recoverable amount of the 
assets.

  l Con�ngent liabili�es – At each balance sheet date basis the management 
judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Group assesses the requirement 
of provisions against the outstanding warran�es and guarantees. However the 
actual future outcome may be different from this judgment.

  Significant Es�mates.

  Informa�on about es�mates and assump�ons that have the most significant effect on 
recogni�on and measurement of assets, liabili�es, income and expenses is provided below. 
Actual results may be different.

  l Revenue and inventories – The Group recognizes revenue using the percentage of 
comple�on method. This requires forecasts to be made of total budgeted cost 
with the outcomes of underlying construc�on and service contracts, which 
require assessments and judgments to be made on changes in work scopes, claims 
(compensa�on, rebates, etc.) and other payments to the extent they are probable 
and they are capable of being reliably measured. For the purpose of making 
es�mates for claims, the Group used the available contractual and historical 
informa�on.

l Impairment of financial assets – At each balance sheet date, based on historical 
default rates observed over expected life, the management assesses the expected 
credit loss on outstanding receivables and advances.

  l Defined benefit obliga�on (DBO) – Management's es�mate of the DBO is based 
on a number of cri�cal underlying assump�ons such as standard rates of infla�on, 
medical cost trends, mortality, discount rate and an�cipa�on of future salary 
increases. Varia�on in these assump�ons may significantly impact the DBO 
amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

  l Fair value measurements – Management applies valua�on techniques to 
determine the fair value of financial instruments (where ac�ve market quotes are 
not available). This involves developing es�mates and assump�ons consistent 
with how market par�cipants would price the instrument. 

  l Useful lives of depreciable/ amor�zable assets – Management reviews its 
es�mate of the useful lives of depreciable/ amor�zable assets at each repor�ng 
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date, based on the expected u�lity of the assets. Uncertain�es in these es�mates 
relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the u�lity of 
certain so�ware, customer rela�onships, IT equipment and other plant and 
equipment.

  l Valua�on of investment property – Investment property is stated at cost. 
However, as per Ind AS 40 there is a requirement to disclose fair value as at the 
balance sheet date. The Group engaged independent valua�on specialists to 
determine the fair value of its investment property as at repor�ng date.

   The determina�on of the fair value of investment proper�es requires the use of 
es�mates such as future cash flows from the assets (such as le�ngs, future 
revenue streams, capital values of fixtures and fi�ngs, any environmental ma�ers 
and the overall repair and condi�on of the property) and discount rates applicable 
to those assets. In addi�on, development risks (such as construc�on and le�ng 
risk)are also taken into considera�on when determining the fair value of the 
proper�es under construc�on. These es�mates are based on local market 
condi�ons exis�ng at the balance sheet date.

As per our report of even date      
For Praveen Om Jain & Co. 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 019993N For & on behalf of Board

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Praveen Kumar Sa�sh Chander Narang Naveen Narang Vandita Arora 
Prop. Chairman Managing Director Company Secretary 
M.No. 503734 DIN: 00095693 DIN: 00095708 M.No. 61149 

Date: 30.06.2021
Place: New Delhi

UDIN: 21503734AAAACX7530
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Total

As at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020

Unquoted Unquoted

(In `) (In `)

964,800.00                                 

Particulars

4,924,800.00                                  (a) Investment in Equity Instrument

4,924,800.00                                  964,800.00                                 

(Investment Stated as cost)

Less : Provision for dimunition in the value 

of Investments

4,924,800.00                                  964,800.00                                 

.
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Other

                   396,000 

Fully Paid

19.80%

               3,960,000 

Party Paid/ Fully Paid

                                                       388,800 

                                                       388,800 

Limited

No of Share/Units                                                        388,800 

Fully Paid

19.96%9.98%

Other

Fully Paid

Other

                                                    576,000 

                                                    576,000 

                                                    576,000 

Limited

Current investments

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2020

Quoted 

(In `)

As at 31 March, 2021

Quoted 

(In `)

89,917.7289,917.72                                      

89,917.72                                      

(Investment stated at Cost)

Invement in Mutual Funds

 Axis Equity Fund

Total 89,917.72
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2.3 Other Financial Assets

Particulars

Non Currents

100,000.00

         

100,000.00

         - Rental Security 181,500.00

         

54,000.00

         - Deposit with Govt. Deptt.

         - Electricity Dept 200,000.00

         
200,000.00

         

         - DHBVN (Application Fee) 348,750.00
         

-
                   

         - Mining Dept 37,500.00
           

586,250.00
         

37,500.00
           

237,500.00

         - Deposit with Bank

         - FDR (For Sales Tax Deposit) 200,000.00
         

200,000.00

         - Other Deposit 100,000.00         132,100.00

Total

Current

Advances to Suppliers [ Recoverable in cash or in kind for value to be received]

Unsecured, considered good 2,607,582.41      11,436,280.78

Balances with government authorities 

Unsecured, considered good

(i)     FBT Refundable 37,878.00
           

37,878.00

(ii)    Income Tax Refund Refundable 2,979,791.00
      

4,285,616.00

(iii)    Advance Income Tax 4,072,000.00
      

3,302,000.00

(iv)   TDS/TCS 1,710,012.55
      

1,958,235.00

(v)   Income Tax Demand (Appeal) 25,000.00
           

25,000.00

(vi)  Service Tax Recoverable -

                    
3,598,085.00

(vii)  VAT Deposit 5,728,257.53

      

17,793,296.53

(viii) GST Credit 4,516,367.18 21,198,731.60

(ix)  Cess 53,370.00

           

53,370.00

Others

(i)   Deposits (Booking of Plot & Flat) 3,420,000.00

      

9,901,899.00

(ii)   Rental Security Deposit -

                    

414,600.00

(iii)  Other Advances 14,231,645.00

    

21,481,618.50

Total

40,549,653.67 96,210,210.41

(In `)

Security Deposit Unsecured Considered Good

95,486,610.41

                               

As at 31 March, 2020

(In `)

         - Ansal Prop. & Infra. Ltd.

As at 31 March, 2021

39,381,903.67

                                

723,600.00                                   1,167,750.00                                  
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Particulars
Deferred Tax 

Liability/(Asset)

Change in Current 

Year

Deferred Tax 

Liability/(Asset)

As at 01.04.2020 As at 31.03.2021

Max Heights Infrastructure Limited              (655,655.00)                   (54,370.00)                 (710,025.00)

             (313,719.00)                  313,719.00                               -   

ICON Realcon Private Limited                  (3,155.00)                     (2,406.00)                     (5,561.00)

Max Heights Promoters Private Limited                 76,368.91                   (76,368.91)                               -   

Maxheights Realtors Limited                            -                                 -                                 -   

Max Heights Developers Private limited                            -                                 -                                 -   

Total              (896,160.09)                  180,574.09                 (715,586.00)

Max Heights
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2.5 Inventories

(In `) (In `)

Finished Goods

Real Estate 358,569,024.00           262,789,798.00          

Shares -                             -                             

Work in Progress 1,002,984,396.81        2,340,354,603.93       

1,361,553,420.81        2,603,144,401.93       Total

Particulars

2.6 Trade Receivables

(In `) (In `)

Current 

Unsecured Considered Good 2,078,727.00              129,787,044.00          

- -

2,078,727.00              129,787,044.00          

Particulars

Total

.

.
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 As at 31 March, 2021  As at 31 March, 2020 

(In `) (In `)

               6,140,083.65                 8,105,474.47 

             23,452,538.00               26,863,525.00 

                  960,767.88                 1,147,041.43 

             30,553,389.53               36,116,040.90 Total

In Current Accounts

In Deposits

Cash in Hand

Particulars

Balance with Banks

2.8 Loans

 As at 31 March, 2021  As at 31 March, 2020 

(In `) (In `)

                  318,700.00                   263,700.00 

Other Loans              32,770,804.00               44,422,055.00 

             33,089,504.00               44,685,755.00 

                               -                                  -   

             33,089,504.00               44,685,755.00 

Other (Advance Recoverable unsecured) -                             10,340,274.00              

             33,089,504.00               55,026,029.00 Total

Particulars

Current

Unsecured Considered Good

Loans to Employees

Less: Allowance for Credit Loss

.
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2.9 Other Current Assets

Particulars  As at 31 March, 2021  As at 31 March, 2020 

(In `) (In `)

Interest Accured on FDR 283,158.00                  4,414,515.00               

Advance Recoverable 640,000.00                  5,000,000.00               

Prepaid Expense 241,210.00                  222,836.00                 

Total 1,164,368.00               9,637,351.00                

2.10 Statement of Change in Equity

For F.Y. 2020-21

Particulars

Balance as on April 1, 2020     156,092,250.00   127,728,000.00     67,987,537.75                     -                         -         5,568,802.08    (35,095,521.92)           (51,073.60)                       -         322,229,994.31 

 Changes in equity for the year 

ended March 31, 2021 

                       -                        -                       -   
                      -                         -                         -                          -   

                      -                            -   

 Less: Disposed of Subsidary -                      -      (24,849,255.31)                     -                         -                         -                         -                          -                         -         (24,849,255.31)

-                      -                       -                         -                         -                         -                          -                         -   

-                      -           387,516.00                       -               387,516.00 

Balance as on March 31, 2021 156,092,250.00 127,728,000.00 55,642,899.70    -                   -                    5,568,802.08       (35,095,521.92)    (51,073.6) - 309,885,356.26

Provision 

attributable to 

equity holders of 

the Company

 Other Equity 

Share options 

Outstanding 

Preliminary 

Expense

Reserves & Surplus

Equity Share 

Capital

Capital Reserve

Capital Reserve Business

transfer

adjustment

reserve

Security 

Premiun 

Account

Retained 

Earning

 General 

Reserve 
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2.11 Borrowings

As on March 31, 2021 As on March 31, 2020 As on March 31, 2021 As on March 31, 2020

Secured

ICICI Bank Limited -                             1,279,070.00                -                            -

1,652,894.00               2,218,526.00                -                            -

HDFC Bank Car Loan -                             1,690,203.91                -                            -

1,652,894.00               5,187,799.91                -                            -

as ‘Current maturities of long-term borrowings’ 617,785.00                 1,866,751.98                -                            -

1,035,109.00               3,321,047.93                -                            -

Unsecured

Loans and advances from related parties 444,546,167.00           428,525,281.00            54,200,215.00             66,745,728.00

Other -                             -                              294,131,902.00            560,592,116.00

445,581,276.00           431,846,328.93                        627,337,844.00

Non Current Current
Particulars
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Additional Disclosure regarding Non Current Borrowings

As on March 31, 2021 As on March 31, 2020 As on March 31, 2021 As on March 31, 2020

Naveen Narang 118,175,000.00          74,613,669.00 - -

Mansi Narang 44,000,000.00            43,524,715.00 - -

Satish Chander Narang 10,000,000.00             -                              -                            -

Manan Narang 8,193,411.00              13,068,776.00 - -

Ranjitgarh Finance Company (P) Ltd. -                            - 54,200,215.00 66,745,728.00

Rakesh Pahwa 131,504,060.00          111,516,560.00 - -

Lalit Kumar Sapra 75,677,194.00            79,112,157.00 - -

Raj Pal Narang -                            2,500,000.00 - -

Pitampura Leasing & Housing Fiance Limited 17,500,000.00             5,540,000.00                -                            -

Anil Garg -                             39,971,835.00              -                            -

-                             13,197,000.00              -                            -

Herika Narang 18,083,286.00             8,083,286.00                -                            -

Varun Kumar Sapra 10,250,000.00             10,250,000.00              -                            -

Vikas Goel -                             3,100,000.00                -                            -

Manju Rathi -                             6,201,842.00                -                            -

Arun Kumar Rathi -                             7,500,000.00                -                            -

Jitesh Kumar Sapra 1,120,000.00               1,120,000.00                -                            -

Anita Sapra 10,043,216.00             6,150,000.00                -                            -

Sham Sundar Khurana -                             3,075,441.00                -                            -

Total 444,546,167.00           428,525,281.00            54,200,215.00             66,745,728.00

1. Unsecured Loan from Related parties consists of Loan from Directors/Shareholders of Group Companies and are Long Term payable as per Management.

The details of same as under:

Particulars

Loans and advances from related parties - 

Non Current

Loans and advances from related parties - 

Current
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2.12 Other Financial Liabilities

(In `) (In `)

Lokdhun Telemedia (P) Limited                1,000,000.00                              1,000,000.00 

               1,000,000.00                              1,000,000.00 

Current maturities of long-term debt - Secured

ICICI Bank Ltd                                -                                   670,118.00 

HDFC Bank Car Loan                                -                                2,220,342.68 

                  617,785.00                                 565,632.00 

Security Deposit

LS Power                                -                                1,153,874.00 

Other payables 

TDS Payable 2,340,603.00               5,006,429.00

269,652.75                  269,652.75

5,400.00                      168,765.00

1,000,000.00               13,835,161.00

              88,304,333.00                        1,210,658,290.00 

Audit fees 326,000.00                  442,500.00

Others 511,664.05                  1,486,542.05

Legal and Professional Expenses -                              116,100.00

-                              30,000.00                                

(vi) Excess Received from Customer -                                                              213,823.00 

              93,375,437.80                        1,236,837,229.48 

              94,375,437.80                        1,237,837,229.48 

(I) Statutory remittances

Dividend  unpaid a/c

GST Payable

(iv) Expenses payable

(v) Money Withheld

Total

Current

Rental Security

Particulars

Non Current
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(In `) (In `)

Trader Payables 266,921,594.95          277,005,031.92

266,921,594.95            277,005,031.92

Particulars

Current

Total

As the company has not received any information from any of the creditors of their being a micro

or small scale industries undertaking hence amount due to micro or small scale industrial

undertaking as on the balance sheet are not ascertainable.

(In `) (In `)

Provisions for Income tax 4,888,550.00             4,677,110.00

4,888,550.00               Total

Particulars

Current

2.13 Trade Payables

2.14 Provisions
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 As at 31 March, 2021  As at 31 March, 2020 

(In `) (In `)

Sale of Real Estate/ Property            72,460,000.00             421,863,887.50 

Lease Rental              4,000,000.00                 5,157,900.00 

Interest Income 3,853,800.00            5,110,139.00

Cancellation charges -                           299,255.00

Commission/consultancy Income 2,000,000.00            1,614,600.00

Contract Receipts            21,124,462.00                                -   

         103,438,262.00             434,045,781.50 Total

Particulars

'
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3.

4.

.
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2.16 Other Income

(In `) (In `)

Interest Income              3,405,864.67                 3,652,921.00 

Other                    2,923.59                                -   

                172,158.00                   705,312.55 

Discount Received                              -                       21,220.77 

Consultancy Income                              -                   1,500,000.00 

           23,896,000.00                                -   

           27,476,946.26                 5,879,454.32 Total

Particulars

 As at 31 March, 2021  As at 31 March, 2020 

(In `) (In `)

Salaries                 4,401,325.00                8,254,087.00 

                                -                       15,619.00 

Director's Remuneration                    500,000.00                2,400,000.00 

Keyman Insurance Policy 223,014.00                   197,807.79

                5,124,339.00              10,867,513.79 Total

Particulars

2.17 Cost of land, plots, development rights, constructed properties and others

(In `) (In `)

Cost of Building Constructions            70,016,175.00             365,581,345.89 

           70,016,175.00             365,581,345.89 

Particulars

Total
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2.19 Finance Cost

 As at 31 March, 2021  As at 31 March, 2020 

(In `) (In `)

Interest on

Car Loan                    298,186.44                   643,775.81 

Borrowings               34,754,977.00              33,144,294.00 

Interest on Bank Term Loan                                 -                     654,949.00 

On Income tax                                 -   13,832.00

On TDS                      46,366.00 56,407.00

On Service Tax/GST                                 -   600.00

Bank Guarantee Charges                                 -   151,026.88

Bank Charges                    291,895.45 1,019,692.74

              35,391,424.89              35,684,577.43 Total

Particulars
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2.20 Other Expenses

 As at 31 March, 2021  As at 31 March, 2020 

(In `) (In `)

Rent                                -                    530,664.00 

Accounting Charges                     18,000.00                    24,000.00 

Insurance                   194,332.00                  362,174.06 

                    38,794.00                    92,661.00 

Printing And Stationery                     68,740.00                  287,348.50 

Photocopy expenses                                -                        2,000.00 

                  890,601.75 972,448.00

Conveyence                                -   167.00

GST Late Fees                       1,000.00                      7,260.00 

Advertisement                   161,092.00 197,312.00

Business Promotion                                -                        1,939.00 

                      2,418.80 

Bank Charges                       2,507.50                         720.36 

                               -                        1,000.00 

Internet Expense                                -                      13,908.00 

                               -                      20,140.00 

Computer Maintenance Expenses                                -   40,950.00

                    20,334.00 18,601.03

Commission                 1,929,750.00 240,000.00

Vehicle Running and Maintenance                     47,930.45 178,166.00

ROC Filing Fees                     52,300.00 

Legal and Professional Charges                   794,744.00 1,568,800.00

Annual Fees (BSE)                   354,000.00 354,000.00

Annual Maintenance Expenses                                -   25,640.00

Annual General Meeting Expenses                       2,948.00 30,250.00

General Expense                       2,418.00 21,970.00

GST Audit Fees                                -   16,200.00

GST Expense                                -                      20,879.98 

Postage and Courier                                -   63,761.60

Processing Charges                                -   24,047.00

                               -   21,780.00

Site Maint                                -   101,276.00

Website Maint.                       4,423.00 15,647.00

Repair & Maintenance                   105,718.00 209,072.00

Share Transfer Expense                     48,600.00                               -   

Short & Excess                                -                           257.50 

Security Services                                -                    199,600.00 

Payment to Auditors

As Auditors - Statutory Audit 270,800.00 560,000.00

5,011,451.50 6,354,298.83Total

Particulars
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4. Notes to the Accounts

 I. NATURE OF OPERATIONS:

  MAX HEIGHTS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED is a Delhi Based professionally managed 
company incorporated on 28.07.1981  a growing real estate company having its registered 
office at SD-65, Tower Apartments, Pitampura, New Delhi-110034 is under the 
management control of the promoters having rich experience in Real Estate Sector. The 
company is listed in Bombay Stock Exchange and  Calcu�a Stock Exchange.

  The Company is carrying on the business as owners, builders, colonizers, developers, 
promoters of residen�al, commercial and industrial buildings, mall and mul�plexes, 
township projects and factory shed's and buildings and to deal in all kinds of immovable 
proper�es whether belonging to the Company or not. The promoters have proudly 
completed and delivered a number of projects in recent past and looking forward to many 
more projects. 

  ICON REALCON PRIVATE LIMITED was incorporated on 28th December, 2007. The 
Company's registered office is at 610, Best Business Park, Netaji Subhash Place, Delhi-
110034. Also the company is Subsidiary of Max Heights Infrastructure Limited. The 
Company is not listed on any Stock Exchange.  Presently the company is developing a group 
housing complex in Faridabad, Haryana.

  MAX HEIGHTS DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED was incorporated on 16th April, 2007. The 
Company's registered office at 124 N. N. Mall, Mangalam Place, Sector-3, Rohini, Delhi-
110085. The Company is engaged in Property Development and is also the Estate Agents. 
The Company is the Associate of Max Heights Infrastructure Limited. The Company is not 
listed on any Stock Exchange.

  MAXHEIGHTS REALTORS LIMITED (Formerly Known as Max Heights Finance Limited) 
incorporated in India on March 27, 2015, a company incorporated under the laws of India. 
The Registered office of the Company is situated at 65, GROUND FLOOR, SD BLOCK, DDA 
FLATS, PITAMPURA, DELHI - 110034. The company is wholly owned subsidiary of Max 
Heights Infrastructure Limited.

 II. CURRENT ASSETS

  In the opinion of the management, current assets, loans & advances have the value on the 
realiza�on in the ordinary course of business equal to the amount at which they are stated 
and all known liabili�es have been adequately provided for.
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 III. EXPENDITURE/EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (ON ACCRUAL BASIS) 

Par�culars For the year ended 
2March 31, 20 1 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020  

Expenditure  

On account of:  

Traveling NIL NIL

Interest NIL NIL

Total: - NIL NIL

 

Earnings  

Sale NIL NIL
Total: - NIL NIL

 IV. CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS

 V. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Par�culars For the year ended 
March 31, 2021  

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

Raw Materials NIL  NIL

Consumables NIL  NIL

Finished Goods NIL  NIL

Capital Goods NIL  NIL

Total: - NIL  NIL

Par�culars For the year ended 
March 31, 2021

 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

Audit Fee 2,70,800.00  5,60,000.00

Total: -  2,70,800.00  5,60,000.00

 VI. DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER THE MSMED 

ACT, 2006

  The informa�on regarding applicability of MSMED Act, 2006 to the various suppliers/ 

par�es is not available with the assessee, hence informa�on as required vide Clause 22 of 

Chapter V of MSMED Act, 2006 is not been given.

(In `) (In `)
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 VIII. DEBTORS & CREDITORS

  Balances appearing as Debtors & Creditors are subject to confirma�on.

 IX. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

  The segmental repor�ng of the company has been prepared in accordance with accoun�ng 

standard (AS-17), Accoun�ng for Segment repor�ng issued by The Ins�tute of Chartered 

Accountants of India.

  Segment repor�ng Policies:-

  a) Iden�fica�on of Segments: Primary – Business Segment

   Before Amalgama�on the company was a single segment company. A�er 

amalgama�on of three Transferor Companies, the company has iden�fied three 

reportable segments viz. financing of vehicles and other finance, Real Estate 

business and dealing in stock and shares.

  Secondary – Geographical Segments

  The Company operates en�rely in India and hence no geographical segment has been 

made.

  b) Revenue and expenses have been iden�fied to the segment on the basis of 

rela�onship to opera�ng ac�vi�es of the segment. Revenue and expenses which 

relate to enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on reasonable 

basis have been disclosed as un-allocable expenses.

 VII. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Par�culars For the year ended 
March 31, 2021  

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020

Salary 5.00 Lacs  24.00 Lacs

Others Nil  Nil

Total: -  5.00 Lacs  24.00 Lacs

(In `) (In `)
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 X. Note 1 to 4 Forms the integral part of the balance sheet and profit and loss account.

As per our report of even date      
For Praveen Om Jain & Co. 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 019993N For & on behalf of Board

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Praveen Kumar Sa�sh Chander Narang Naveen Narang Vandita Arora 
Prop. Chairman Managing Director Company Secretary
M.No. 503734 DIN: 00095693 DIN: 00095708 M.No. 61149 

Date: 30.06.2021
Place: New Delhi
UDIN: 21503734AAAACX7530

  c) Segment assets and liabili�es represent assets and liabili�es in respec�ve 

segments. Investments, tax related assets and other assets and liabili�es that 

cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as 

unallocated assets and liabili�es

Par�culars Finance  Real Estate 
Ac�vity  

Stock & 
Shares

Total

Revenue 72.54  995.84  238.96 1307.34

Opera�ng Profit of Segment 72.54  
 

295.68  238.96 607.18

Less : Interest  (353.94)
Less : Un-allocable Expenditure net of 
Un-allocable Income 

 (112.97)

EBT  140.28
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